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DEFINITIONS AND CORPORATE INFORMATION

BEEKLFER

‘Adoption Date”

[ R4 A H#1 |

"AGM”
[RRBFRE ]

“Articles of Association”
[#EE =24 A) ]

“Audit Committee”
[BEZZEE

“Auditor”
[ 126D ]

“Board”

B2

“BVI"
[RBERRES ]

“CG Code”
[TEER~FAI]

“Companies Act”

[ ARDE]

“Companies Ordinance”

[ &M ]

“Company”, “our Company”

or “the Company”

RN

December 6, 2019, being the date on which the Share Option Scheme was conditionally
approved and adopted by a resolution of the shareholders of the Company;

20195F 12 6 B » BIAR R RIBERORA R A RIHLE KRG BRET I B 5

the annual general meeting of the Company to be held on June 2, 2023;

DTN 2023F6 A2 BRITHRERERS ;

the articles of association of the Company, as amended from time to time;

ARAABERAR (BTRAERT)

the audit committee of the Company;

AAREZEZRE

KPMG, the auditor of the Company;
SNSRIV ERPT - AR FRZBEAD

the board of Directors;

-

the British Virgin Islands;
REBHERRHS

the Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules;

ERAIM S4B R E AR

the Companies Act (As Revised), Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961) of the Cayman Islands, as amended,
supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time;

FHEMNSEREFENERANE (1961 FHB3FEM - LIER]) » KPRIER] - HRIAEMT
ALK

the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as amended,
supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time;

BREDIF622F R RNED) (ETRHER] ~ fFTsRIAE M B

Jiumaojiu International Holdings Limited (LENLERIERBFR A 7)), an exempted company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability on February 1, 2019;

NENEGERBREAR  BR2019F2 81 BEMSE S MK ANERRHER AR
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“Deed of Non-competition”

[ 3 RIR

"Director(s)”

[E=%]

“Double Eggs”
[2REZEERIS ]

“Global Offering”
[ 2 IREE |

"o

“Group’, "our Group’,

”We”, “our” or “us”

(SR 5 [ 5]

“Guangzhou Jiumaojiu”

[EMAEN]

“Guan Family Trust”

[ERRIKEIEFE

“GYH BVI"

[GYH BVI

“GYH LIMITED”
[GYH LIMITED ]

DEFINITIONS AND CORPORATE INFORMATION
BEROFRER

the deed of non-competition dated December 6, 2019 and entered into by the controlling
shareholders of the Company with and in favor of our Company (for ourselves and as trustee
for each of our subsidiaries), details of which are set out in “Relationship with Controlling
Shareholders — Deed of Non-competition” in the Prospectus;
RRTERBRERR B WIARA R (REAF RIEABRMSHMBRRNRTEAN) X
AR20195F12 H6 AFTI M TR RIE - ARAFBHNBRERE [ EBERRROEE — T
BMERIE]

the director(s) of the Company;

RRREE:

our Double Eggs (2 FEZEFERISH#) brand, which had been disposed in June 2022;
BMR2BHE SRS RS ER20202F6 S

the Hong Kong public offering and the international offering of the Shares;
BRIV EFBELREE REREE

our Company and our subsidiaries or, where the context so requires, in respect of the period
before our Company became the holding company of our present subsidiaries, the business
operated by such subsidiaries or their predecessors (as the case may be);
RARRFAFIEME A RIS (MXEAHE) RARFIKRESE M B R BSERA R Z AT
HIFZEMBARSEA S EENER (RIBAME)

Guangzhou Jiumaojiu Catering Chain Co., Ltd. (BN ENEEEHEGRAF]), a company
established in the PRC with limited liability on August 30, 2005 and an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of our Company;

BMAENESEHEER AT - 70200558 A30 BEF B HIEREER A RAR R
B2 ERERA ;

the discretionary trust established by Mr. Guan Yihong as the settlor on August 30, 2021;
ERRFTEERETANR2021F8 A30BRIMZREETE

GYH J Limited, an exempted company incorporated in the BVl on December 7, 2018 with
limited liability, which is owned as to 1% voting shares by Mr. Guan Yihong and as to 99% non-
voting shares by GYH LIMITED, and a controlling shareholder of our Company;

GYH J Limited * 2018512 A7 A ERBHB RS EMKZNERREREEAR - A
BRI WA 1% KRB RAGYH LIMITEDHER 99% N EFKRERN R - AKX
DRI

GYH LIMITED, a company incorporated under the laws of Bahamas and wholly-owned by M.T.B,;
GYH LIMITED » 1RIRE R FIAREMAIZAIRR] - AMTB2EHES :

—Z2— — 4 ANNUAL REPORT 2022 @ 3



DEFINITIONS AND CORPORATE INFORMATION

BERLAER

“HKD’, "HKS" or
“Hong Kong Dollars”
[Tl

“Hong Kong”
[&E]

“IFRS”

[ B B 75 i 5 E A

“independent third
party(ies)”
(B %E=7]

“International Underwriting

Agreement”

[ BIBR B 3K 15

“J.P. Morgan”

[J.P. Morgan |

"Jiu Mao Jiu"

[NEN]

"Joint Global Coordinators”
[t w2 K BTA

“Lai Mei Li Grilled Fish”
[REEREKE A

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong;

BEEAEER BT

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC;
HEEEFRITHER ;

International Accounting Standards (“IAS”), International Financial Reporting Standards,
amendments and the related interpretations issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (“IASB");

HR et ElREe (RS EARES ) RHOBKR 2R ((ERERER]) -
B A1 s S 2B R - BRT AR ABRE R RS

person(s) or company(ies) who/which, to the best of our Directors’ knowledge, information

and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries, is/are not our connected persons;

RESFL—VAEEREMA - MERMEAIFRMNBEALOALHAR :

the international underwriting agreement relating to the international offering, which was
entered into by, among others, the Joint Global Coordinators, the international underwriters
and our Company on January 8, 2020;

B (EREE) BESEBAA - EREHEEEAQEN2020F1 A8 ARBEEREER LN
B A

J.P. Morgan Trust Company (Bahamas) Limited, a company incorporated under the laws of
Bahamas and the trustee of the Guan Family Trust;

J.P. Morgan Trust Company (Bahamas) Limited * —fERIBEE R S A REMKIZHAR] - BE
RERETENZTEA

our Jiu Mao Jiu (JLFE /1) brand;
BMONENGDE

CMB International Capital Limited and China International Capital Corporation Hong Kong
Securities Limited;

BREBEREERAALTEERERBBZSFERAF]

our Lai Mei Li Grilled Fish (FBERE1E ) brand;
HMBRBEBERGME

4 o JIUMAOJIU INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED N ENEFrIZERBR A A



“Latest Practicable Date”

[R1Z A 1T A &1

“Listing”
[ ]

“Listing Date”

[EmBEH]

“Listing Rules”

[ ERA

‘M.T.B."

[M.TB.]

“Machang Restaurant”

[H5EE]

“Main Board”

[EHR ]

“Model Code”

[R%E<P A

“MT BVI"

[MT BVI

DEFINITIONS AND CORPORATE INFORMATION
BEROFRER

April 20, 2023, being the latest practicable date prior to the bulk printing and publication of
this annual report;

2023F 48208 © BIARERMNEIE AMATHREBERAIITAL :

the listing of the Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on January 15, 2020;
BARPR20206F1 A 15 BAERE AR AT EMR 7T

the date, being January 15, 2020, on which the Shares were listed on the Stock Exchange and

from which dealings in the Shares are permitted to commence on the Stock Exchange;

BRI LT RN ERAEBZMERN B S - 81202051 5158 :

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, as
amended or supplemented from time to time;

BEMARSMARARES EMARR - ETRERIHMHER

M.T.B. CLIENTS NOMINEES LIMITED, a company incorporated under the laws of the BVI and
a nominee shareholder appointed by J.P. Morgan (in its capacity as the trustee of the Guan
Family Trust);

MT.B. CLIENTS NOMINEES LIMITED © —fRIZEBER RS EZEZMAIZHRF] - BIP.
Morgan (AEERERRIGELHNZEASH) TENBERE

Guangzhou Tianhe District Zhujiang Jiumaojiu Shanxi Noodles Restaurant (/& 1 i KAl kT 35k
AFER I FEERER), an individual business entity established in the PRC which was owned by
Mr. Guan Yihong before its deregistration on January 24, 2022;
BNTRATHAEA LT LA - —HARPEKZAOEEIES - £2022F1 4241
EHATRER RS AR

the stock exchange (excluding the option market) operated by the Stock Exchange which is
independent from and operated in parallel with GEM of the Stock Exchange;
R PTBERRE 55 b5 (N EIEERE™IS) - BB OB S PTGEM » I EEGEMIFTIEE

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules;
FHARBIMER10PFE R E BT AERETESFR ZNEETA

MT J Limited, an exempted company incorporated in the BVI on December 7, 2018 with limited
liability and our Shareholder, which is wholly-owned by 27 individuals, who are our employees
or former employees;

MT J Limited » 7A20185 12 A7 B ERBHBRH S LMK LNERREREERRLSE
FIEPIRER - Ef27 B EA (BERMEEXAIES) 2EHES



DEFINITIONS AND CORPORATE INFORMATION

EEKARER
“MX BVI"
[MX BVI] 15

“Nomination Committee”

[RRZEE] 5

“Over-allotment Option”

[ EERE A AR 1 | S|
“Pandemic”

(%15 i
"PRC”

[ E ] 5
"Prospectus”

(B ERE] i

“Reorganization”

[E4] i

“RMB" or “Renminbi”
[ARHEE ] b

MX J Limited, an exempted company incorporated in the BVlI on December 7, 2018 with
limited liability and our Shareholder, which is wholly-owned by 33 individuals, who are our
employees, former employees and one independent third party external investor;

MX J Limited * R20185 12 A7 B ERBHR RS LMK LNERCEREEARLAE
PIBARER - EE33BMEA (REMES  AIEER —RBUE=FINPRES) 2EHE

the nomination committee of the Company;

ARAREREE

the option granted to the international underwriters pursuant to the International
Underwriting Agreement, exercisable by the Joint Global Coordinators (on behalf of the
international underwriters), pursuant to which our Company was required to allot and issue
an aggregate of 50,010,000 Offer Shares, representing in aggregate 15% of the initial size of
the Global Offering at HK$6.60 to cover over-allocations in the international offering as further
described in the section headed “Structure of the Global Offering” in the Prospectus;
REBFEDHEBER TER2HEM L AT HBEEE2RBAA (RXERHE) /TR
% Bt - AARIARS. 6o/arcm®%@a%’§&§%ﬁa,ﬂiiso 010,000 X E 17 (SETHEER
’i\fﬁeé’*‘i%ﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂ’\] 5%) N R EREENBROE  BRE - LHBHNEKRER
[BIRBEENRE ] —

the outbreak of the novel coronavirus pneumonia (COVID-19) globally and in the PRC since
early 2020;
2020 F FHME 2B EF BB EHNFMETARRSHL019EREER) ;

the People’s Republic of China, and “Chinese” shall be construed accordingly;

hEARKME - [FE | EAERERE

the prospectus of the Company dated December 30, 2019;
RARBEA2019F12 A30 B BIRETR

the reorganization of the Group in preparation of the Listing, details of which are set out in

“History, Reorganization and Corporate Structure”in the Prospectus;

AEBREBHELTETNER  FBEEARBRERIEL - EARARRE]

the lawful currency of the PRC;

HEDEEE |

6 © JIUMAOJIU INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED NENEBRERBR AR



SEO”

[E5H NS A

“Shareholder(s)”
[ A% R

“Share Option Scheme”

[t &1 )

“Share(s)”

[t ]

“Song (cold pot skewers)”

[#28RERE ]

“Song Hot Pot”
[ & N5 ]

“Stock Exchange”
[ B <2 P |

“Tai Er”
(K=

"

“Tai Er Catering”

“Uncle Chef”
[ A AR AR ARE

DEFINITIONS AND CORPORATE INFORMATION

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as amended or
supplemented from time to time;

FREPIF S BCES LB IR) - K TEERT AT

holder(s) of Share(s);
BROFEBA

our share option scheme conditionally adopted pursuant to the written resolutions passed by
our Shareholders on December 6, 2019, the principal terms of which are set out in “Statutory
and General Information — D. Share Incentive Schemes — Share Option Scheme” in Appendix [V
to the Prospectus;

RIFRN 2019512 He B RBNERAZRE R GH RN BAGEST 8] - KX ZRFEN
BB RS A E R —RER — DA BT 8 — Bkt El ]

shares in the capital of our Company with nominal value of US$0.0000001 each;

RN R BN AR A B B 0.0000001 =TT HIRR AR

our Song (cold pot skewers) (#5885 ) brand that ceased operation permanently in
November 2021;
IR 2021 611 A AL IEEENARIRR B R

our Song Hot Pot (# X&) brand;
BRI K SRR

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,;
BRBMERZAARNANR] ;

our Tai Er (K=) brand;
BN —mE

Guangzhou Tai Er Catering Chain Co., Ltd. (BMAKZ&EEHAER A F]), a company
established in the PRC with limited liability and an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, which is owned as to 88% by Tai Er Investment and 12% by Huzhou Jiajun;
BMAZZEHAR AR —ERHREKRIHEREEAFRARBNEEIEZEN B
RE - EDRIRAZIRE AN A 88% & 12% e

our Uncle Chef (ABAR R FUZARET) brand;
BAT IR KN KEF ML

—Z2 = — 5 ANNUAL REPORT 2022 o 7



DEFINITIONS AND CORPORATE INFORMATION
BEROFER

“United States” the United States of America, its territories, its possessions and all areas subject to its
jurisdiction;

[=H B EINRERE - BEHEL  BMRXHIEEENMEE

“USD" or “USS”" United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States;

= B EBEAEEY  ET

“%" per cent.

[ %] i} AN

)

In this annual report, the terms ‘associate’, ‘close associate’ ‘connected

a

person’ ‘connected transaction’ ‘continuing connected transaction’ ‘core
connected person’, ‘controlling shareholder’ “subsidiary” and “substantial
shareholder”shall have the meanings given to such terms in the Listing Rules,

unless the context otherwise requires.

8 e JIUMAOJIU INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED NENEBRER AR AR

RAEFHA  FIXESBFIIE  BRIHE
AL TEZHEA]  [BEAL] [BEX
21 [1HEHEXS ] [BOBEAL]  [#
BRE | - [HE LR R+ ERE|EimEAR
B_L AR AIRE T 3% 5 Al s AR 2 o



DEFINITIONS AND CORPORATE INFORMATION
BERLAER

REGISTERED OFFICE

Walkers Corporate Limited
190 Elgin Avenue, George Town
Grand Cayman KY1-9008

Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTERS

Room 404-A197

1 Mingzhuyi Street, Hengli Town
Nansha District

Guangzhou, PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Level 17

Tower |, Grand Century Place
193 Prince Edward Road West
Mongkok, Kowloon

Hong Kong

COMPANY’S WEBSITE

WWW.jiumaojiu.com

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive directors

Mr. GUAN Yihong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. LI Zhuoguang

Ms. CUI Longyu

Mr. HE Chengxiao

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. DENG Tao
Ms. TANG Zhihui
Ms. ZHU Rui

GRS

Walkers Corporate Limited

190 Elgin Avenue, George Town
Grand Cayman KY1-9008
Cayman Islands

By

A E N T
fEFHEAZR— 41198
4045 —A197

ERTELEEME
BB
BT A
KFiEF1935%
it Es— 1
1718
YNEGTF ERE

WWW.jiumaojiu.com

B8

HITES
ERES A (EEHRITRAH)
FHHSE A

EFFLL

IR
BUFHNTES

WEEE

EEELT

RELT

— T — 5% ANNUAL REPORT 2022 @ 9



DEFINITIONS AND CORPORATE INFORMATION

BERARER

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. LI Zhuoguang
Mr. Matthew Mo Kan TSUI

(@ member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. LI Zhuoguang
Mr. Matthew Mo Kan TSUI

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. DENG Tao (Chairman)
Ms. TANG Zhihui
Ms. ZHU Rui

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. TANG Zhihui (Chairman)
Mr. DENG Tao
Mr. LI Zhouguang

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. GUAN Yihong (Chairman)
Ms. ZHU Rui
Mr. DENG Tao

HONG KONG LEGAL ADVISER

Han Kun Law Offices LLP

Rooms 3901-05, 39/F

Edinburgh Tower, The Landmark
15 Queen’s Road Central

Hong Kong

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

KPMG

Public Interest Entity Auditor registered in accordance

with the Financial Reporting Council Ordinance

8th Floor
Prince's Building
10 Chater Road
Central

Hong Kong

10 e JIUMAOJIU INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED NENEFRrZERBR A A
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FHREE
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RERE
RIS
ERB L
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DEFINITIONS AND CORPORATE INFORMATION
BERLAER

THE CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL SHARE HEHREFTERNMBFETE
REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Walkers Corporate Limited
190 Elgin Avenue, George Town
Grand Cayman KY1-9008

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Link Market Services (Hong Kong) Pty Limited
Suite 1601, 16/F., Central Tower

28 Queen'’s Road Central

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANK

Industrial Bank Co., Ltd.

Guangzhou Dongfeng Sub-branch

First Floor, Jin'an Building

300 Dongfeng Middle Road, Yuexiu District
Guangzhou, PRC

Walkers Corporate Limited
190 Elgin Avenue, George Town
Grand Cayman KY1-9008

Cayman Islands

BERERODBFETLE

Link Market Services (Hong Kong) Pty Limited
BEPIR

SRAEF 285

FEXE 1611601 E

EEERERT
BERTRHERAT
e

AR E M
S [ 3R A B 30057
SRAEEE

—Z = 453 ANNUAL REPORT 2022 o 11



FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

T FEBHE

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FHARGEZERER

For the year ended December 31,

HZ12A310LLEE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
20224 20214 20204 20194 20184
RMB'000
ARETTT

Revenue WA 4,005,722 4,179,704 2714830 2687287 1892821

Profit before income tax PR A5 5 Al A 94,331 505,920 176,608 259,151 104,381

Profit for the year FE R 55,610 372,153 138,006 185,770 73,848

Total comprehensive income for the year & 2B 142,461 425,154 5,858 185,479 73,848
Non-IFRS measures: FEBR SIS ERIFTED -

Store level operating profit® EHEmLEFEHY 516,578 809,297 404,602 534,218 337,913

Adjusted net profit IRRAR 69,343 380,427 116,141 216,600 78,638

Notes:

(1) See "Management Discussion and Analysis — Non-IFRS Measures” in this annual

report.

(2) We define store level operating profit as revenue for the year deducting the
following expenses at store level: (i) raw materials and consumables used, (ii)
staff costs, (iii) depreciation of right-of-use assets, (iv) other rentals and related
expenses, (v) depreciation and amortization of other asset, (vi) utility expenses,
(vii) advertising and promotion expenses and (viii) other expenses, excluding

unallocated headquarter expenses.

12 e JIUMAOJIU INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED NENEFrZERBR A A

fi:

(1) RAFHRIET
HERIFHE | 8

2Rl O — R SRS

Q) BFEEHEELCETEREAFEIRAIRMN
TESEERX : VFTARMERFEM : ()BT
BRAN 5 G EREEERE ¢ (vHEMmBALS kAR
X (EMEETEREE : (vikERX
(VilEERHEERS : Ryi)EaRx (TafEx

DEAERRZ)



CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
AFEMBHRE

A AR S MR &

As of December 31,

HZ12H31H0
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
20224 20214 20204 20194 20184
RMB'000
ARETTT
Assets 5E
Non-current assets FERBEE 2,821,841 2,575,666 1,944,741 1,271,101 960,351
Current assets MBEE 2,585,231 2559430 2,861,710 383,250 226,618
Total assets mEE 5,407,072 5135096 4806451 1,654,351 1,186,969
Equity and liabilities BZREE
Equity attributable to the equity ARAVERER A
owners of the Company ey 3,174,282 3082574 3,016,555 133,088 191,308
Total equity B 3,199,132 3,137,596 3,060,402 170,676 203,569
Non-current liabilities FRBEE 1,252,982 1,192,955 997,104 689,834 543,344
Current liabilities MENEE 954,958 804,545 748,945 793,841 440,056
Total liabilities maf 2,207,940 1,997,500 1,746,049 1,483,675 983,400
Total equity and liabilities wEEREE 5,407,072 5,135,096 4,806,451 1,654,351 1,186,969

—Z = —F 53, ANNUAL REPORT 2022 * 13
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEHE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the annual report of the
Group for the year ended December 31, 2022. The year ended December 31,
2022 was a remarkable year for the Group. By implementing our growth

strategies, we achieved outstanding operational results.

KEY FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

BAIRR

RAANERREFEMAREREBE E2022F
NANBIEFENFRERE - BlE2022F 124
BNBEEFEHASEMESERENLN—F -
BREHMERER  BMANG T ARMENL

B o

EE

ENHRE

For the year ended December 31,

BZ12A31ALEE

2022 2021
20225 20214F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TR ARBT T

Revenue WA 4,005,722 4,179,704
Store level operating profit” JE B E A= R EO 516,578 809,297
Profit before taxation BR A% A& A 94,331 505,920
Profit for the year FER A 55,610 372,153
Profit for the year attributable to equity AR ERAL R
Shareholders of the Company FEAEF F A 49,280 339,936
Adjusted net profit® KR A A 69,343 380,427
Final dividend proposed after the end of the year FEEREEZNRBRE 12,795 70,968
Notes: BT
(1) We define store level operating profit as revenue for the year deducting the (1) BMABESEELLFBRTEAFERATRNA
following expenses at store level: (i) raw materials and consumables used, (ii) TIEEEERES - VTR RMARFEM  (NET
staff costs, (iii) depreciation of right-of-use assets, (iv) other rentals and related PR (i EFREEENE : (iv)HMHE REHE
expenses, (v) depreciation and amortization of other assets, (vi) utility expenses, X (EMEENTE R - (vijKERX
(vii) advertising and promotion expenses and (viii) other expenses, excluding ViVESEREERY  RViEMASZ (TREXR
unallocated headquarter expenses. AEATFRSZ)
(2) We define adjusted net profit as profit for the year adding equity-settled share- Q) FEPMBERABAEANRERFE MM AR

based payment expenses, which are non-recurring charges.

14 o JIUMAOJIU INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED NENEFrZERBR A A

H AR AR AN (RIEEFIEH)



CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

> = =
FERE
KEY OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS FEREZY
As of/for the year ended
December 31,
HZ12H8318 7
BZ12A31ALEE
2022 2021
20224 20214F
Number of restaurants™ EEHEO 556 470
Seat turnover rate® BERO
Jiu Mao Jiu NEN 1.6 1.9
Tai Er K= 2.6 34
Table turnover rate® BE=Roe
Jiu Mao Jiu NEN 2.4 238
Tai Er A= 3.5 44
Average spending per customer (RMB)® BEEAGEE (AR¥T)®
Jiu Mao Jiu NEN 55 59
Tai Er K= 77 80
Same store sales (RMB’000)® BEHE (AR%TFT)®
Jiu Mao Jiu NEN 528,133 593,494
Tai Er K= 1,969,093 2,535,637
Same store sales growth (%) B EE R (%)
Jiu Mao Jiu NEN (11.0) 24.5
Tai Er A= (22.3) 5.7

—Z = 5% ANNUAL REPORT 2022 ® 15



CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EEHRE

Notes:

) Including both self-operated and franchised restaurants. As of December 31, 2022,
all restaurants of the Group were self-operated restaurants.

(2) Calculated by dividing total customer traffic by the product of total restaurant
operation days and average seat count during the year.

(3) Calculated by dividing total tables served by the product of total restaurant
operation days and average table count during the year.

(4) Calculated by dividing revenue generated from restaurant operations for the year
by total customer traffic for the year.

(5)  Same store sales for the year refers to the revenue of all restaurants that qualified
as same stores during that year. We define our same store base to be those
restaurants that opened for at least 300 days in both 2021 and 2022.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK
Overview

In the year of 2022, we adhered to our multi-brand and multi-concept
strategy and explored new business opportunities, aiming to further expand
our market share and maintain our market position as a leading Chinese
cuisine restaurant brand manager and operator in the PRC. We accelerated
the expansion of our restaurant network amid the resurgence of the
Pandemic. As of December 31, 2022, we operated 556 restaurants, covering

109 cities in the PRC, one city in Canada and Singapore.

We strived to maintain an optimal portfolio of restaurant brands and focus on
brands which we believe to have greater growth potential. To this end, we
disposed the Double Eggs brand in June 2022 taking into account its future
growth potential. We will continue to devote more resources to our Song
Hot Pot (% X $3) brand and Lai Mei Li Grilled Fish (F83<EB & £2) brand.

In view of the continuing impact of the Pandemic, our revenue decreased
by 4.2% from RMB4,179.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 to
RMB4,005.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2022, and our profit
decreased by 85.1% from RMB372.2 million for the year ended December 31,
2021 to RMB55.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2022.
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The Impact of the Pandemic

Whilst the business operation of substantially all of our existing restaurants
was severely affected due to the resurgence of the Pandemic, it has gradually
recovered from the Pandemic by the end of 2022, especially after the
dismantlement of “zero-COVID control measures” by the PRC government
authorities in December 2022. Due to the resurgence of the Pandemic
infected cases and multiple rounds of lockdowns of various scales in a
number of major cities in the PRC in 2022, the operation or dine-in services
of certain of our restaurants was temporarily suspended for an average of 38
days during 2022. The estimated loss of revenue resulted from the temporary
suspension of our restaurant operations or dine-in services in 2022 amounted

to approximately RMB1,366.6 million.

We have been closely reviewing the performance of our restaurants and
adjusting our business strategies from time to time to mitigate the impact
of the Pandemic on our business operations and prepare for post-Pandemic
business recovery. Despite the stabilization of the Pandemic, there remains
uncertainties regarding the future impact of the Pandemic, including, among
other things, how consumer dine-out behavior may be affected, and the
possible reemergence of the Pandemic and the measures and policies that
may be put in place as a result, which may impose potential adverse effect
on our results of operations, cash flows and financial condition going forward.
Nevertheless, following the relaxation of Pandemic prevention measures
both globally and specifically in the PRC, we are cautiously optimistic in our
operations in the next few years as we expect the economy will recover
gradually and that there will be a growth on dining-out activities in 2023.
Looking ahead, we will seize the opportunity as the Pandemic prevention
measures are relaxed, constantly monitor market changes and adapt to the

changes of demand and consumer behaviour in the post-Pandemic era.

Our Directors believe that our liquidity position remains healthy and
we possess sufficient cash and banking facilities available to meet our
commitments and working capital requirements. For details, see “—
Management Discussion and Analysis —Liquidity, Capital Resources and

Gearing.”
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2022 Business and Financial Performance Review
Restaurant network

In 2022, we opened 120 new restaurants, which comprise 102 Tai Er
restaurants and 18 Song Hot Pot restaurants. Among our restaurants, ten
self-operated restaurants were closed in 2022, primarily due to (i) the
termination of the relevant lease agreements and (ii) their underperformance
based on our evaluation. In addition, seven self-operated Double Eggs
restaurants and 15 franchised Double Eggs restaurants were removed from
our restaurant network following the disposal of our Double Eggs brand in
June 2022.

The table below sets forth a breakdown of our restaurants by brand as of the

dates indicated:

2022 F MK I RIREIRE
BERE

IR 2022FFFI120MEE - B 102K
BEEXISEHBNRAERE - REMABESR - 10
MEEEENR2022FME - 2R EBR
EMBEEIERBERMOTE  HEERE
IR o SN - 202246 A HE 2B E RIS
Mg - TR R ERN B AR RIS 2R
FERISMMBERERRMNEERBER -

TRINEEERTARRRERDNHPEE
HIBRAD

As of December 31,

BZ12831H
2022 2021
2022 20214

Number of restaurants E2EHE
Jiu Mao Jiu NEN 76 83
Tai Er A = 450 350
Double Eggs (self-operated)™ QREHEERIS (BE)O = 8
Double Eggs (franchised) QREFEERIS (HNER) O = 17
Song Hot Pot e N5 27 9
Uncle Chef AR AR BUEKNE 1 1
Lai Mei Li Grilled Fish FEEEIERA 2 2
Total @st 556 470
Note: BiaE -

(1) The Double Eggs brand had been disposed in June 2022.
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Restaurant performance

The table below sets forth the key performance indicators of our restaurants

by brand for the years indicated:

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EERE

EERE
TRIFEA IR FERmES D HAERD
FERRERT

For the year ended December 31,

BZ12AALEE

2022 2021

2022 20214
Revenue (RMB’000) WA (AR¥FT)
Jiu Mao Jiu NEN 604,752 758,756
Tai Er A= 3,098,041 3,285,180
Double Eggs (self-operated)™ DEHERS(BE)D 3,826 12,608
Double Eggs (franchised)" QREFEERIS (HNER) O 4,963 16,399
Song (cold pot skewers)? HREEO - 2,232
Song Hot Pot Y 259,402 87,405
Uncle Chef AR AR A BT 12,339 12,402
Lai Mei Li Grilled Fish BEBIEA 12,799 3,152
Seat turnover rate® BERe
Jiu Mao Jiu NEN 1.6 19
Tai Er A= 2.6 34
Song Hot Pot e N5 2.5 2.5
Uncle Chef AR AR A BT 2.0 17
Lai Mei Li Grilled Fish FEEBER 2.7 24
Table turnover rate® BER®
Jiu Mao Jiu NEN 2.4 2.8
Tai Er = 3.5 44
Song Hot Pot 7% X 58 3.6 35
Uncle Chef AR A BT 2.5 2.1
Lai Mei Li Grilled Fish FEEBER 3.7 32
Average spending per customer (RMB) BEEALEEY (AR T)
Jiu Mao Jiu NEN 55 59
Tai Er A= 77 80
Song Hot Pot 7 X 58 128 129
Uncle Chef AR A BT 148 144
Lai Mei Li Grilled Fish FEEBERA 77 84
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Notes:

M

The Double Eggs brand had been disposed in June 2022. Restaurant performance
for franchised Double Eggs restaurants is shown for reference only. Revenue
generated by franchised Double Eggs restaurants as shown in the table above
does not represent the Group's revenue recognized from these restaurants. Our
revenue recognized from these restaurants is contributed from fees we charge our
franchisees in accordance with the relative franchise agreements.

We ceased to operate the Song (cold pot skewers) brand permanently in
November 2021.

Calculated by dividing total customer traffic by the product of total restaurant
operation days and average seat count during the year.

Calculated by dividing total tables served by the product of total restaurant
operation days and average table count during the year.

Calculated by dividing revenue generated from restaurant operations for the year
by total customer traffic for the year.

Restaurant performance of our brands was negatively affected due to the

resurgence of the Pandemic and the prevention and control measures
being put in place to curb the surge in infected cases, such as nation-wide
suspension or restriction for varying duration of dine-in services of certain
restaurants, and multiple rounds of lockdowns of various scales in different
PRC cities.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

3 o e =
FERS
Same store sales EIEHE
The table below sets forth details of our same store sales by brand for the TRINFHAIREEIZRBEE SRS HEEE
years indicated. 15 o
For the year ended December 31,
BZ12A31HILEE
2022 2021 2021 2020
20224 20214F 20214F 20204F
Number of same store!" BRESE®
Jiu Mao Jiu NEAN 39
Tai Er = 225 124
Song Hot Pot 7K 3 =
Uncle Chef AR ARZ KNS =
Same store sales® (RMB’000) RIEHEY (ARETFT)
Jiu Mao Jiu HEN 528,133 593,494 370,120 297,391
Tai Er A= 1,969,093 2,535,637 1,553,558 1,470,215
Song Hot Pot e N 58 40,528 38,102 = =
Uncle Chef AR A A BT 12,339 12,402 - -
Same store sales growth (%) BESHEER (%)
Jiu Mao Jiu HEN (11.0) 245
Tai Er A= (22.3) 5.7
Song Hot Pot 7N 58 =
Uncle Chef AR AR BUE KRBT (0.5) -
Notes: BEE -

(1) We define our same store base to be those restaurants that opened for at least
300 days in both 2020 and 2021, and in both 2021 and 2022. Figures for Uncle
Chef and Song Hot Pot in 2020 and 2021 are not available since there was no
restaurant opened for more than 300 days in 2020.

(2)  Same store sales for the year refer to the revenue of all restaurants that qualified

as same stores during that year.

(1) BIEREELEFE AR2020F %2021 F A K
2021 F R20202FHHAEE D00 RNEEE - H)X
TEB AR RBURAR R A AR 20204F 52021 4F
HEE - RESMEZEREN2020FMAEEBiRE300
§E °

Q FAREHESHEEZFENTAREERNMAE
BaA -
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Outlook for 2023

We remain fully devoted to providing marvelous dining experience to our
customers through exquisite dishes, high-quality services and unique dining
ambience, and with a view to maintaining a strong market position and
enhancing our competitiveness, we will continue to implement the following

growth strategies:

Replicate our success through further expansion. We have been
closely monitoring the development of the Pandemic in the PRC
and adjusting the timeline of our restaurant network expansion plan
for different brands as and when appropriate. We have fulfilled our
restaurant network expansion plan for Tai Er as set out in the Prospectus.
We have been closely following the dining trend and preference of
customers and introduced two new brands, namely Song Hot Pot in
2020 and Lai Mei Li Grilled Fish in 2021, to expand our brand portfolio.
On the other hand, taking into account the future growth potential
of the Double Eggs brand, we disposed the Double Eggs brand in the
first half of 2022 in order to maintain an optimal portfolio of restaurant
brands and focus on brands which we believe to have greater growth

potential.

Continue to expand into more market segments by pursuing a
multi-brand and multi-concept strategy. \We plan to further promote
the brand image and recognition of Tai Er as it has achieved higher
operating profits compared with our other brands. We will continue to
develop our Song Hot Pot and Lai Mei Li Grilled Fish brands which we
believe have great growth potentials. We will also invest in companies in
the catering service industry. We intend to identify targets which adopt
innovative business models and possess development and growth
potential, or whose business models can create synergies with our
business and fit into our multi-brand development strategy. We currently
have not yet identified any potential target. We believe our multi-brand
and multi-concept strategy allows us to further expand into more market
segments, capture market opportunities, broaden our customer base
and ultimately increase our market share. The collaboration with various
young and innovative brands would enable us to stay attuned to market
trends. We will keep exploring potential opportunities and may further

adjust our brand portfolio to maintain our competitive advantage.
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Continue to strengthen our supply chain and support capabilities.
In 2020, we rented a new warehouse near our central kitchen in Foshan
to take up inventories originally stored in the original warehouse (‘First
Warehouse") of our Foshan central kitchen. This freed up space in the
First Warehouse, thereby enabling us to install additional equipment and
convert the First Warehouse into a food processing center to expand
our production lines, increase our production capacity, and enhance our
supply chain capabilities in support of our future expansion plan. We
have also commenced the construction of our new supply chain centers
in Southern China and Northern China, and a production plant of hot
pot base and compound condiments and a central kitchen in Southwest
China, to enhance our supply chain capabilities in support of our future
expansion plan. To facilitate our production capacity improvement plan,
we have a preliminary idea to construct an additional central kitchen in
Eastern China to better support the restaurant network expansion in that
region, which will be subject to further discussion by the Board and our
senior management. In addition, we will continue our cooperation with
suppliers of our key ingredients by way of joint ventures or other means

to secure stable supply of key ingredients.

Expand into the global markets to gain international presence. \We
currently operate Tai Er restaurants in Canada and Singapore. We will
continue to carry out comprehensive research into potential overseas
target markets and carefully evaluate and select appropriate locations
for our expansion to gain international presence. We will prioritize
countries and cities with high population of Chinese people, such as
North America, Southeast Asia, Oceania, and other Chinese communities,

for our future expansion.

APPRECIATION

The Board would like to express its sincere gratitude to the shareholders,
suppliers and customers of the Company for their continued support and
trust. The Board would also like to thank all the employees and management
team for executing the Group's strategies with professionalism, integrity and

dedication.

GUAN Yihong
Chairman

Hong Kong

March 21, 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SR =R

REVENUE

Our revenue decreased slightly by 4.2% from RMB4,179.7 million for the year
ended December 31, 2021 to RMB4,005.7 million for the same period in 2022.

Revenue by brand

We generate revenue from three segments classified by brands, including
Jiu Mao Jiu, Tai Er and all other brands. The following table sets forth a

breakdown of our revenue by brand for the years indicated:

WA

RANMABEEE2021F12 831 BIEFEENHA
R¥4179.7 A B LMK 42%E 2022 FREH A
R¥4005788TT °

ZmEE D WA

BEPNBAREZREE DN =EDH 2%
NEN  RZEFBEMRE - TRIIBERE
NEERMRMEE SRR

For the year ended December 31,

BZ12A31ALEE

2022 2021

20224 20214F
RMB’000 % RMB'000 %
ARET T % ARETIT %
Jiu Mao Jiu E! 605,511 15.1 760,462 182
Tai Er K= 3,108,328 77.6 3,292,184 78.8
Others HAh 291,883 7.3 127,058 3.0
Total et 4,005,722 100.0 4,179,704 100.0

Our revenue from Jiu Mao Jiu decreased by 20.4% from RMB760.5 million for
the year ended December 31, 2021 to RMB605.5 million for the same period
in 2022 primarily due to a decrease in the number of Jiu Mao Jiu restaurants
and a decrease in overall customer traffic attributable to the reemergence of
the Pandemic in 2022. Our revenue from Jiu Mao Jiu as a percentage of total
revenue decreased from 18.2% in 2021 to 15.1% in 2022, primarily due to the

expansion of our other brands.

Our revenue from Tai Er decreased slightly by 5.6% from RMB3,292.2 million
for the year ended December 31, 2021 to RMB3,108.3 million for the same
period in 2022 primarily due to a decrease in overall customer traffic
attributable to the reemergence of the Pandemic in 2022, partially offset by
the expansion of restaurant network of Tai Er. As a result, our revenue from
Tai Er as a percentage of total revenue decreased slightly from 78.8% in 2021
to 77.6% in 2022.
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Our revenue from other brands increased by 129.7% from RMB127.1 million
for the year ended December 31, 2021 to RMB291.9 million for the same
period in 2022 primarily due to an increase in revenue contribution from
Song Hot Pot attributable to its restaurant network expansion. As a result,
revenue from other brands as a percentage of total revenue increased from
3.0% in 2021 to 7.3% in 2022.

Revenue by service line

Services provided by us or activities we engage in comprise (i) restaurant
operations, (ii) delivery business, (iii) sales of specialties and (iv) others
including franchising before the disposal of our Double Eggs brand and the
management and operation of Machang Restaurant before its deregistration.
The following table sets forth a breakdown of our revenue from each service

line for the years indicated:

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB WD AT

IR A E MR ERKRAREZE2021F12 831
AIEFEFEMARKI2ZIIEBITEMNI20.7%E
2022FRIHMARKE 201988 HEEZHR
#N SR B R B EE A4S T B B W A G AN o
E it - B 8 E G 2 A IS U A B B
Bl B8 2021 G #93.0% £ F+ 52022 F #97.3% o

BARFSIE B 87 BV A

BARENREREENEDRENEREE
(NINERTS - (iFEHE k(v EM (BFEMNE
(REE2RBEAS DR AREEREES
SRR (REZHR))  TRIBBMRARE
R B &R EE UARRA

For the year ended December 31,
BZ12A3MHLEE

2022 2021
20224 20214

RMB’000 % RMB'000 %

ARBT % ARBTT %

Restaurant operations BELE 3,203,210 80.0 3,524,424 843

Delivery business EIS=ES 787,114 19.7 621,506 14.9

Sales of specialties REHE 1,478 0.0 15,855 0.4

Others® HAtbm 13,920 0.3 17,919 0.4

Total #st 4,005,722 100.0 4,179,704 100.0
Note: Mz -

(1) The Group no longer generated revenue from franchising following the disposal 1) AEEBEEZEENREHREZEREERATLEEMmMT

of Guangzhou Double Eggs Catering Co., Ltd., or the management and operation
of Machang Restaurant following its deregistration. See “— Material Acquisitions,
Disposals and Future Plans for Major Investment” for details.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEWED T

Revenue from restaurant operations decreased by 9.1% from RMB3,524.4
million for the year ended December 31, 2021 to RMB3,203.2 million for the
same period in 2022, primarily due to the reemergence of the Pandemic
in several provinces in the PRC, leading to a decrease in total restaurant
operation days in 2022. As a result, revenue from restaurant operations as
a percentage of total revenue decreased from 84.3% for the year ended
December 31, 2021 to 80.0% for the same period in 2022.

Revenue from delivery business increased by 26.6% from RMB621.5 million for
the year ended December 31, 2021 to RMB787.1 million for the same period
in 2022, primarily due to the increased customer demand on delivery services
in view of the reemergence of the Pandemic. Revenue from our delivery
business as a percentage of total revenue increased from 14.9% for the year
ended December 31, 2021 to 19.7% for the same period in 2022.

Revenue from sales of specialties decreased by 90.7% from RMB15.9 million
for the year ended December 31, 2021 to RMB1.5 million for the same period
in 2022, primarily due to a decrease in overall customer traffic as a result
of the reemergence of the Pandemic. As a result, revenue from sales of
specialties as a percentage of total revenue decreased from 0.4% for the year
ended December 31, 2021 to 0.0% for the year ended December 31, 2022.

Revenue from others decreased by 22.3% from RMB17.9 million for the
year ended December 31, 2021 to RMB13.9 million for the same period in
2022, primarily due to a decrease in revenue from the franchised Double
Eggs restaurants following the disposal of Double Eggs brand, and from
the management and operation of Machang Restaurant following its
deregistration. Revenue from others as a percentage of total revenue
decreased from 0.4% for the year ended December 31, 2021 to 0.3% for the
same period in 2022.

OTHER REVENUE

Our other revenue increased by 11.1% from RMB64.2 million for the year
ended December 31, 2021 to RMB71.3 million for the same period in
2022 primarily due to (i) an increase in interest income on bank deposits
attributable to the increased interest rates, and (i) an increase in government

grants.
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RAW MATERIALS AND CONSUMABLES USED

Our raw materials and consumables used decreased slightly by 5.9% from
RMB1,537.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 to RMB1,447.1
million for the same period in 2022 primarily in line with the decrease in
revenue as a result of the reemergence of the Pandemic. Our raw materials
and consumables used as a percentage of revenue remained relatively
stable at 36.8% and 36.1% for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2022,

respectively.

STAFF COSTS

Our staff costs increased by 7.3% from RMB1,056.9 million for the year ended
December 31, 2021 to RMB1,133.9 million for the same period in 2022
primarily due to an increase in the number of our store level employees as
a result of our restaurant network expansion. Our staff costs as a percentage
of revenue increased from 25.3% for the year ended December 31, 2021 to
28.3% for the same period in 2022, primarily due to the decrease in same

store sales as a result of the reemergence of the Pandemic.

DEPRECIATION OF RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Depreciation of right-of-use assets increased by 17.7% from RMB342.5 million
for the year ended December 31, 2021 to RMB403.0 million for the same
period in 2022 primarily due to an increase in the number of our restaurants.
Depreciation of right-of-use assets as a percentage of revenue increased from
8.2% for the year ended December 31, 2021 to 10.1% for the same period in

2022, primarily due to the decrease in our total revenue.

OTHER RENTALS AND RELATED EXPENSES

Our other rentals and related expenses decreased by 14.1% from RMB96.9
million for the year ended December 31, 2021 to RMB83.2 million for the
same period in 2022 primarily due to a decrease in variable rent payment
as a result of a decrease in revenue attributable to the reemergence of the
Pandemic. Our other rentals and related expenses as a percentage of revenue
remained relatively stable at 2.3% and 2.1% for the years ended December
31,2021 and 2022, respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEWED T

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION OF OTHER
ASSETS

Depreciation and amortization of other assets increased by 19.6% from
RMB159.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 to RMB190.3
million for the same period in 2022 primarily due to an increase in restaurant
decoration expenditures and purchases of kitchen and other equipment
along with our restaurant network expansion. Depreciation and amortization
of other assets as a percentage of revenue increased from 3.8% for the year
ended December 31, 2021 to 4.7% for the same period in 2022, primarily due

to the decrease in our total revenue.

UTILITY EXPENSES

Our utility expenses increased by 12.3% from RMB132.4 million for the
year ended December 31, 2021 to RMB148.7 million for the same period in
2022 primarily due to the expansion of our restaurant network, especially
the expansion of our Song Hot Pot restaurants and Lai Mei Li Grilled Fish
restaurants which have higher power consumption compared with our other
brands. Our utility expenses as a percentage of revenue remained relatively
stable at 3.2% and 3.7% for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2022,
respectively.

TRAVELLING AND RELATED EXPENSES

Our travelling and related expenses increased by 8.1% from RMB23.6 million
for the year ended December 31, 2021 to RMB25.5 million for the same
period in 2022 primarily because our staff traveled more frequently for daily
operations as a result of the nationwide restaurant network expansion of Tai
Er in 2022. Our travelling and related expenses as a percentage of revenue
remained stable at 0.6% for both years ended December 31, 2021 and 2022.

ADVERTISING AND PROMOTION EXPENSES

Our advertising and promotion expenses increased by 16.4% from RMB47.7
million for the year ended December 31, 2021 to RMB55.5 million for
the same period in 2022, primarily due to an increase in advertising. Our
advertising and promotion expenses as a percentage of revenue remained
relatively stable at 1.1% and 1.4% for the years ended December 31, 2021 and
2022, respectively.

OTHER EXPENSES

Our other expenses increased by 21.7% from RMB259.8 million for the year
ended December 31, 2021 to RMB316.1 million for the same period in 2022,
primarily due to (i) an increase in delivery service fees in line with the growth
of our delivery service business and (ii) an increase in transportation and

related expenses along with our restaurant network expansion.
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SHARE OF (LOSSES)/PROFITS OF ASSOCIATES

We incurred share of losses of associates of RMB3.3 million for the year ended
December 31, 2022, while we recognized share of profits of associates of
RMB1.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2021, primarily because the
associates we invested in incurred losses in 2022.

OTHER NET (LOSSES)/INCOME

We incurred other net losses of RMB87.8 million for the year ended December
31, 2022, while we recognized other net income of RMB11.4 million for the
year ended December 31, 2021, primarily due to the foreign exchange losses
of approximately RMB78.9 million incurred in 2022.

FINANCE COSTS

Our finance costs increased by 7.7% from RMB75.3 million for the year ended
December 31, 2021 to RMB81.1 million for the same period in 2022 primarily
due to an increase in interest on lease liabilities recognized in accordance
with IFRS 16 associated with our increased number of leases as a result of the
expansion of our restaurant network.

INCOME TAX

Our income tax decreased by 71.1% from RMB133.8 million for the year
ended December 31, 2021 to RMB38.7 million for the year ended December
31, 2022, primarily due to a decrease in our taxable income. Our effective tax
rate increased from 26.4% for the year ended December 31, 2021 to 41.0%
for the year ended December 31, 2022, primarily due to the loss before tax of
the Company with zero tax rate.

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

As a result of the foregoing, our profit for the year decreased by 85.1% from
RMB372.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 to RMB55.6 million
for the year ended December 31, 2022.

NON-IFRS MEASURES

We adopt the store level operating profit and adjusted net profit, which are
not required by or presented in accordance with IFRS as important financial

measures to supplement our consolidated financial statements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEWED T

Store Level Operating Profit and Store Level Operating Profit
Margin

We believe that store level operating profit helps shareholders and investors
better understand our multi-brand and multi-concept strategy by directly
illustrating the profitability of our different brands at store level, and that it
is frequently used by analysts, investors and other interested parties in the

evaluation of companies in our industry.

We define store level operating profit as revenue deducting the following
expenses at store level: (i) raw materials and consumables used, (ii) staff costs,
(i) depreciation of right-of-use assets, (iv) other rentals and related expenses,
(v) depreciation and amortization of other assets, (vi) utility expenses, (vii)
advertising and promotion expenses and (viii) other expenses, excluding
unallocated headquarter expenses. The following table illustrates our store
level operating profit and store level operating profit margin by brands for

the years indicated:

i 8 FE T A5 & MR I U o FE T A AR
%2

-

BPRA EHEELENEEAERGBR
MTARAMERNEREENRTNESD - BBHR
BREFEEEETHREMNZ mEREHER
B - BEROMED - REEREMBAMEEBAL
FERHMEAITE A RIS PISAZER -

BAEEREOLEFNBREARAMBAT
EHEERE - () FTARMERFEM : ()BIK
R (NVEREEERE  (vEMES RAEF
X (EMEERNITEREN  (vViKERX
ViNEE RHEERX « ki) B (TBER
DRBEFEL) - TREVNFIRFEERRIESEH
B P A T A7 T8 TED A & ) 0P8 I U 7 T8 TD 46 &

For the year ended December 31,

BZ12A31ALEE

2022 2021

20225 20214F
Store Level Store Level
Store Level Operating Store Level Operating
Operating Profit Operating Profit
Profit Margin Profit Margin
JEHEE JEHEE JEHEE JEHEE
REMNE KLERBP=E RERE  REREE
RMB’000 (%) RMB'000 (%)
AR¥T T (%) AR¥TT (%)
Jiu Mao Jiu NEN 78,031 12.9 97,965 129
Tai Er N_ 444,893 14.3 718,540 21.8
Other Brands H fth o & (6,346) (2.2) (7,208) (5.7)
Total st 516,578 12.9 809,297 194
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Adjusted Net Profit and Adjusted Net Profit Margin

The presentation of adjusted net profit facilitates comparisons of operating
performance from period to period and company to company, by eliminating
potential impacts of items that our management does not consider indicative
of our operating performance. Equity-settled share-based payment expenses
are non-operational expenses arising from granting restricted stock units and
share options to selected executives and employees, the amount of which
may not directly correlate with the underlying performance of our business
operations. We believe that the adjusted net profit is frequently used by

other interested parties when evaluating the performance of a company.

We define adjusted net profit as profit for the year adding equity-settled
share-based payment expenses, which are non-recurring charges. The
following table illustrates a reconciliation from profit for the year to adjusted

net profit for the years indicated:

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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For the year ended December 31,

HE12831BLLEE

2022 2021
20225 20214F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARET T

Profit for the year F & e A 55,610 372,153
Add: o :
Equity-settled share-based LARE = 4 E AR AR

payment expenses NRAX 13,733 8,274
Adjusted net profit AR AR 69,343 380,427
Revenue WA 4,005,722 4,179,704
Adjusted net profit margin (%) AR B AEFIZE (%) 1.7 9.1
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEWED T

INVENTORIES

Our inventories mainly represented our (i) food ingredients, (ii) condiment
product, (iii) beverage and (iv) other materials used in our restaurant
operations. The following table set forth a breakdown of our inventories as of

the dates indicated:

i
BN FEFZRRMEBKEMANGERM
(DR 5 (i)EREE - R (v) AR o TSR
AR B B E S RRAR

As of December 31,

HZ12A31H
2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET R ARBTT
Food ingredients B 73,056 34,919
Condiment product AR 23,547 17,203
Beverage Rk 4,240 2,218
Other materials H iR 17,256 16,410
Total wst 118,099 70,750

Our inventories increased by 66.9% from RMB70.8 million as of December
31, 2021 to RMB118.1 million as of December 31, 2022 primarily due to the

expansion of our restaurant network.

Our inventory turnover days in 2021 and 2022, being the average of the
beginning and ending inventories for that year divided by raw materials and
consumables used for the same year and multiplied by 365 days, was 14.5
days and 23.8 days, respectively. The increase in our inventory turnover days
was primarily because the consumption of inventories was slowed down as
our restaurant operations were adversely affected by the reemergence of the
Pandemic in 2022.
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RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Our right-of-use assets, which represented the leases for our restaurant
premises, headquarters offices, central kitchens and certain kitchen
equipment, increased by 8.8% from RMB1,444.1 million as of December 31,
2021 to RMB1,571.0 million as of December 31, 2022, primarily due to an

increase in the number of our restaurants.

TRADE DEBTORS

Our trade debtors primarily consisted of (i) bills settled through third party
payment platforms such as Alipay or WeChat Pay, which were normally
settled within a short period of time, (ii) bills for our delivery business settled
through third party delivery services platform, which were settled within
three calendar days, and, to a lesser extent, (iii) bills received by shopping
malls on behalf of us for certain restaurants, which were normally settled
within one month. Our trade debtors increased by 68.7% from RMB12.2
million as of December 31, 2021 to RMB20.6 million as of December 31, 2022,
primarily due to the expansion of our restaurant network. Our trade debtors
turnover days, being the average of the beginning and ending balances
of trade debtors for that year divided by revenue for the same year and
multiplied by 365 days, remained relatively stable at 1.2 days in 2021 and 1.5
days in 2022, respectively.

TRADE PAYABLES

Our trade payables primarily consisted of payables to our suppliers. Our trade
payables increased by 33.3% from RMB141.2 million as of December 31, 2021
to RMB188.2 million as of December 31, 2022, primarily due to our restaurant
network expansion. Our trade payables turnover days, being the average of
the beginning and ending balances of trade payables for that year divided
by raw materials and consumables used for the same year and multiplied
by 365 days, increased from 33.1 days in 2021 to 41.5 days in 2022, primarily
due to the delay in settling certain purchases as a result of the impact of the

Pandemic.

LOANS AND ADVANCES TO ASSOCIATES

As of December 31, 2022, the Group's loans and advances to associates
amounted to approximately RMB139.1 million (as of December 31, 2021:
RMB71.5 million). Such loans and advances were mainly provided to
associates that supplied food ingredients to us and to secure stable supply of
our key food ingredients. For details, see note 14, note 16 and note 30(c) to
the consolidated financial statements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEWED T

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Our total assets increased from RMB5,135.1 million as of December 31, 2021
to RMB5,407.1 million as of December 31, 2022. Our total liabilities increased
from RMB1,997.5 million as of December 31, 2021 to RMB2,207.9 million as
of December 31, 2022. Liabilities-to-assets ratio increased from 38.9% as of
December 31, 2021 to 40.8% as of December 31, 2022.

The current ratio, being current assets divided by current liabilities as of the
respective date, decreased from 3.18 as of December 31, 2021 to 2.71 as of
December 31, 2022.

LIQUIDITY, CAPITAL RESOURCES AND GEARING

For the year ended December 31, 2022, we financed our operations primarily
through cash generated from operations, proceeds from the Global Offering
and proceeds from the Subscription (as defined in the announcement of the
Company dated July 16, 2020 in relation to the subscription for new Shares
under the general mandate). We mainly utilized our cash on procurement of
food ingredients, consumables and equipment, and restaurant renovations.
Our cash and cash equivalents decreased by 18.1% from RMB1,342.1 million
as of December 31, 2021 to RMB1,098.9 million as of December 31, 2022,
primarily attributable to (i) a decrease in cash generated from operations as
a result of the reemergence of the Pandemic and (ii) an increase in net cash

used for investing activities for restaurant openings.

Our gearing ratio, being interest-bearing bank loans divided by total equity
and multiplied by 100%, increased from nil as of December 31, 2021 to 0.9%
as of December 31, 2022, primarily due to the bank loans of RMB30.0 million
obtained in 2022.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

Our capital expenditures, which referred to the payment for purchases of
property, plant and equipment, are incurred primarily for opening new
restaurants, procuring property, plant and equipment for new restaurants,
renovating existing restaurants and purchasing furniture and equipment
used in our restaurant operations. Our total capital expenditures increased
by 10.0% from RMB336.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2021 to
RMB370.1 million for the same period in 2022.
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INDEBTEDNESS
Bank Loans

As of December 31, 2022, all of our bank loans of RMB30.0 million were
repayable within one year or on demand and were unsecured and

unguaranteed (as of December 31, 2021: nil).

As of December 31, 2022, all of our borrowings were at fixed interest rates.

Lease Liabilities

Our lease liabilities increased by 9.7% from RMB1,504.8 million as of
December 31, 2021 to RMB1,650.4 million as of December 31, 2022, primarily

due to our restaurant network expansion.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As of December 31, 2022, we did not have any material contingent liabilities,
guarantees or any litigations or claims of material importance, pending
or threatened against any member of our Group that was likely to have a
material and adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of

operations.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As of December 31, 2022, bank deposits of RMB10,563,000 were pledged as
securities for a currency forward contract (as of December 31, 2021: bank
deposits of RMB1,792,000 restricted for two contractual disputes by the

relevant courts).

Save as disclosed above, as of December 31, 2022, the Group did not have

any pledge on its assets.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Except as disclosed in note 32 to the financial statements, there are no
material events subsequent to December 31, 2022 which could have a
material impact on our operating and financial performance as of the date of

this annual report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEWED T

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK AND HEDGING

The Group mainly operates in the PRC with most of the transaction
denominated and settled in RMB. However, the Group has cash and deposits
denominated in other currencies which are exposed to foreign currency
exchange risks. The Group has used currency forward contracts to hedge its
foreign currency exchange risks, and will closely monitor the exposure and
take additional measures when necessary to make sure the foreign exchange

risks are manageable.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS, DISPOSALS AND
FUTURE PLANS FOR MAJOR INVESTMENT

On June 17, 2022, Guangzhou Pin Xin Yue Gu Enterprise Management Co.,
Ltd. ("Pin Xin Yue Gu’, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company)
entered into an equity transfer agreement with Ms. Chen Rui who is an
independent third party, in relation to the disposal (the “Disposal”) of 80.85%
equity interest in Guangzhou Double Eggs Catering Co., Ltd. (the "Disposal
Company’, an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company prior
to the Disposal) by Pin Xin Yue Gu to Ms. Chen Rui at a consideration of
RMB509,400. After the completion of the Disposal on June 21, 2022, the
Group ceased to hold any interest in the Disposal Company, and accordingly,
the financial results of the Disposal Company were no longer be consolidated
into the Group's financial statements. As all the applicable percentage ratios
under Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules in respect of the Disposal are below 5%,
the Disposal is not a notifiable transaction of the Company under Chapter
14 of the Listing Rules. For details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated June 17, 2022.

Save as disclosed above, during the year ended December 31, 2022, the
Group did not conduct any material investments, acquisitions or disposals.
In addition, save for the expansion plans as disclosed in the sections headed
“Business” and “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus and
the intended use of proceeds from the Subscription as disclosed in the
Company's announcements dated July 16, 2020, July 23, 2020 and July 30,
2020, the Group has no specific plan for major investment or acquisition for
major capital assets or other businesses. However, the Group will continue to

identify new opportunities for business development.
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EMPLOYEES

As of December 31, 2022, the Group had a total of 9,711 employees and 6,479

outsourced personnel, substantially all of whom were based in the PRC.

Our success depends on our ability to attract, retain and motivate qualified
personnel. The remuneration package for our employees generally includes
salary and bonuses. We determine employee remuneration based on factors
such as qualifications and years of experience. Employees also receive
welfare benefits, including medical care, retirement benefits, occupational
injury insurance and other miscellaneous items. We make contributions to
mandatory social security funds for our employees to provide for retirement,

medical, work-related injury, maternity and unemployment benefits.

During the year ended December 31, 2022, our staff costs (including

Directors’ emoluments) were RMB1,133.9 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEWED T

USE OF PROCEEDS FRERTEAZE

Use of Proceeds from the Global Offering ZIRBEMBRIEAR

The Company was listed on the Stock Exchange on January 15, 2020. The net RATRR20209F1 A 15 BIEREAZFT £ o 2ERkE
proceeds from the Global Offering amounted to approximately HKD2,372.9 EMBRIBREENB23729A 88T ° TRE
million. The following table sets forth the status of the use of net proceeds P BB EMSRIBFEMNBABTRO

from the Global Offering™:

Intended use of Percentage Percentage
Percentage  proceeds from of used of unused
of intended the initial amount as of balance as of  Timeframe for the
Intended use of proceeds use of proceeds  public offering  March 10,2023  March 10,2023  unused balance

B EBE03E  HEE023F
EFERE AMREME 3B10ACBA 3B10BXHA

PR ERE AR RBERAZASL EREAR E2 R HHBEAL  ADAABKER
(%)  (In HKD millions) (%) (%)
(%) (BE#ET) (%) (%)
Expand our restaurant network 77.4 1,837.9% 73.1 26.9 By the end of 2024®
RREEAL 2024 FFEZF

Further strengthen the supply and support capabilities
for our restaurants and enhance our centralized

procurement system 5.6 133.7 100.0 - -
E-SRBAMEENMER SN
BBERMANEFRBRS
Construct and establish a supply chain center in Southern
China by 2023 32 764 100.0 - -

R0BEZFIAERZRREY —AHERS L
Renovate our existing central kitchens and upgrading our

equipment and facilities 24 57.3 100.0 - -
B 5 AR R BT YT AR R RE

Repay part of our bank loans 8.9 210.2 100.0 - -
BEBIRTER
Working capital and general corporate purposes 8.1 191.1 100.0 - -

EEEAR-REEAR

Total 100.0 2,372.9 79.2 20.8 By the end of 2024
@it 2024 FE 2 A
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Notes:
(1) The figures in the table are approximate figures.

(2) Including the net proceeds of approximately HKD315.0 million (after deducting
the underwriting fees and commissions and other estimated expenses payable
by the Company in connection with the exercise of the Over-allotment Option)
for the 50,010,000 shares issued upon the exercise in full of the Over-allotment
Option.

(3) The net proceeds from the Global Offering have been used according to the
intentions previously disclosed, except that, in light of the persistently uncertain
business environment and the outbreak of the Pandemic, barring any unforeseen
situations beyond the Group's control, it is expected that the unused net proceeds
of approximately HKD494.1 million for the expansion of our restaurant network,
including opening of new restaurants and the renovation of existing restaurants,
as of March 10, 2023 are to be fully utilized by the end of 2024.

The expected timeline of full utilization of the unutilized net proceeds is
based on the Directors’ best estimation barring unforeseen circumstances,
and would be subject to change based on the future development of market
conditions. The Directors will constantly evaluate the Group’s business
objective and may change or modify plans against the changing market
condition to ascertain the business growth of the Group. The Directors
will also take a cautious approach continually when considering using
the proceeds and closely monitor the changes of the market conditions
from time to time. Should there be any material change in the intended
use of the unutilized net proceeds, the Company will make appropriate

announcement(s) in due course.

As of the date of this annual report, the Directors are not aware of any
material change to the planned use of the proceeds as disclosed in the
section under “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus and the

announcement of the Company dated March 22, 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B EF WD AT

Use of Proceeds from the Subscription

The following table sets forth the status of the use of net proceeds from the

Subscription which is consistent with the intentions previously disclosed:

Intended use of proceeds

Percentage Intended use of

of intended  proceeds from

use of proceeds the Subscription

wIBBEREREAR

TR RESEMEHIBFHNBAER (HE
FRTRBENER—B) :

Percentage Percentage
of used of unused
balance as of  Timeframe for the

March 10, 2023

amount as of

March 10, 2023 unused balance

EEE2023F  hEZE2023F
EHERE RABBEME 3A10AEBA 3R108XEA
FERERERR RERZEAINL REREAZR SEEAIN #BEIL  ADALHEER
(%) (In HKD millions) (%) (%)
%  (ABET) (%) (%)
Invest in suppliers for key raw material 550 456.5 404 596 By the end of 2026
REREERVEHER 2006 FEE 2Rl
General working capital 300 249.0 100.0 - -
—UEEA
Invest in other companies in the catering industries 15.0 1245 69.5 305 By the end of 2026
RERERTENALAT 2026FF B Z Al
Total 100.0 830.0 62.6 37.4 By the end of 2026
@t 2026 F F K2 Al
Note: B E

(1) The figures in the table are approximate figures.

ROUNDING

Certain amounts and percentage figures included in this annual report

have been subject to rounding adjustments. Any discrepancies in any table

between totals and sums of amounts listed therein are due to rounding.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

OUR DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. GUAN Yihong (E BEBRE), aged 53, is an executive Director, the
chairman of the Board, and chief executive officer of our Group. He is also
our controlling shareholder. He is responsible for formulating the overall
development strategies and business plans of our Company and overseeing
the management and strategic development of our Company. Mr. Guan
started his first noodle restaurant in Haikou, Hainan Province in 1995 and
founded our Group in 2005. Mr. Guan has over 25 years of experience in the
catering industry. He has been the chief executive officer of our Company’s
subsidiary, Guangzhou Jiumaojiu since August 2005. He also served as
chairman of the board of Guangzhou Jiumaojiu from August 2005 to May
2019 and has been the executive director of Guangzhou Jiumaojiu since May
2019. Mr. Guan received his bachelor’s degree in business management from
Tianjin Institute of Textile Science and Technology (K4 T %) (now
known as Tianjin Polytechnic University (RIZTEAKE)) in 1990.

Mr. LI Zhuoguang (ZE#}), aged 40, was appointed as the chief financial
officer of our Group and Director on February 1, 2019, and was redesignated
as an executive Director on December 6, 2019. He has been appointed as
our joint company secretary with effect from the Listing and is responsible
for overseeing finance, strategic investments and investors' relationship
of our Company. He has also been appointed as the vice president of our
Group with effect from May 1, 2020. As of the Latest Practicable Date,
Mr. Li held 1.7% of the total issued share capital in MT BVI, which held
approximately 2.6% of the total issued share capital in our Company. From
January 4, 2013 to February 28, 2022, he was the chief financial officer of
Guangzhou Jiumaojiu, and served as a director and the board secretary of
Guangzhou Jiumaojiu from October 2015 to May 2019 and the vice president
of Guangzhou Jiumaojiu since May 2020. He worked at Tianji Real Estate
Development (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (REFEHERZE(RINERAF), a
real property development company as vice financial controller from April
to December 2012 and KPMG Huazhen LLP (5 EZERS A=A
TREBAE)) as manager from June 2005 to April 2012. He is a member of
the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Li graduated from
Sun Yat-sen University (FFILIRER) in July 2005 with a bachelor's degree in
English.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
ESRENEERE

Ms. CUI Longyu (5 ), aged 48, was appointed as our Director on May
22, 2019, and was redesignated as an executive Director on December 6,
2019. She is responsible for overseeing the supply chain and human resource
management of our Group. She has also been appointed as the vice president
of our Group with effect from May 1, 2020. As of the Latest Practicable Date,
Ms. Cui held 1.7% of the total issued share capital in MT BVI, which held
approximately 2.6% of the total issued share capital in our Company. She has
been the director of human resources of Guangzhou Jiumaojiu since joining
the company in December 2014 and served as a director of Guangzhou
Jiumaojiu from November 2018 to May 2019. Before that, she worked as the
senior brand manager at McDonald (China) Co., Ltd. (X&E & (FFE)AR A
A]), an international fast food franchise, from 2013 to 2014 and the operation
manager at Guangdong San Yuan McDonald Food Co., Ltd. (BR=TTE & %
RimAR2A7]) (‘San Yuan McDonald’s"), a McDonald's franchised business,
from 1997 to 2012. Ms. Cui obtained a higher diploma in secretary and public
relations from Guangzhou University (BN A Z2) in 1996.

Mr. HE Chengxiao (fIE®), aged 45, was appointed as our executive
Director on July 2, 2020. He joined our Group in 2013 and has served as
the general manager of Tai Er Catering, a subsidiary of our Company since
November 2017. He is responsible for coordinating the brand management
and operational business of our various brands. He has also been appointed
as the vice president of our Group with effect from May 1, 2020 and as a
director of Jiumaojiu (Guangzhou) Holdings Limited, a subsidiary of our
Company with effect from July 2, 2020. As of the Latest Practicable Date,
Mr. He held 2.1% of the total issued share capital in MT BVI, which held
approximately 2.6% of the total issued share capital in our Company. Mr. He
served as the operation director of Guangzhou Jiumaojiu from November
2013 to October 2017. Before joining our Company, he worked at San Yuan
McDonald’s from July 1999 to November 2013. He served as an operations
manager before leaving San Yuan McDonald’s. Mr. He has extensive
experiences in both brand and operation management over 21 years. Mr. He
graduated from Guangdong University of Foreign Studies (EEERANBINE K

B2 in 1999, specializing in international finance.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. DENG Tao (B%}3), aged 42, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on August 12, 2019. He is responsible for providing
independent advice and judgment to our Board. He was an independent
director of Guangzhou Jiumaojiu from October 1, 2015 to May 30, 2019. From
August 2017 to May 2020, he served as chief financial officer, and later as
the vice president and board secretary of Guangzhou Holike Creative Home
Co., Lid. (BN HFEIBERERNDER AT, a furniture customization
company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 603898). From
May 2020 to April 2021, he worked at Guangzhou U&I Technology Company
Limited (B /M A FEEHERRD AR 2 R]), a wireless Bluetooth solution provider
company listed on the National Equities Exchange and Quotations (stock
code: 839438), and served as the vice president and secretary of the board
of directors of the company from June 2020 to April 2021. Since April 2021,
he has served as the vice president of Towngas China Energy Investment
Limited (BERERIEE B A R]). He has acquired rich industry experience
and obtained a number of industry awards, including Sina Finance 3rd
Board Secretary Gold Award GFTRBIEE =8 €M E W), Guangdong
Listed Companies Quanjing Annual Investor Relations Gold Award (/& SR &8
& EHAR'"FEE2RIREEMELIE), New Fortune 15th Golden Board
Secretary Award (781 & % + A [ £ K E W), 12th Chinese Listed Companies
Information Disclosure Outstanding Board Secretary Award (851 —f& EX
AR EHEL T EM), Chinese Listed Company The Most Valued
Board Secretary Award (FE L ABIEENEEFBEM), Sina Finance
4th Golden Board Secretary Award GETR A 4C 28 MU fE & K2 EE M), 2017 Jinniu
Investor Relations Management Award (2017 FES4REEBERETER).
He worked at KPMG Huazhen LLP (B EFERS M EBHAGHRERBE
#)) from August 2006 to August 2013, where he served in various positions,
including manager. From August 2013 to June 2015, Mr. Deng worked as
the deputy director of accounting at Zhuhai Zhongfu Enterprise Co., Ltd. (&
B EEERMAR AR, which is engaged in the plastic manufacturing
business and listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000659).
He is a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr.
Deng graduated from South China University of Technology (ZEm3E T KE2)
in 2003, with a bachelor's degree in materials science and engineering, then
a master's degree in physics from Sun Yat-sen University (1 LLIAE2) in June
2006.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
ESRENEERE

Ms. TANG Zhihui (FEEHE), aged 54, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on April 16, 2021. She is primarily responsible for
providing independent advice and judgment to the Board. She has extensive
experience in human resource management and had held various senior
level positions in listed companies. She previously served as a vice president
of JD.com, Inc. (NASDAQ: JD) from 2014 to 2017 responsible for human
resources function and as a vice president of Renren Inc. (NYSE: RENN) from
2007 to 2013 responsible for human resources function. Ms. Tang obtained a

bachelor of arts degree from Wuhan University in July 1990.

Ms. ZHU Rui (% %), aged 48, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on April 16, 2021. She is primarily responsible for
providing independent advice and judgment to the Board. She has extensive
knowledge in branding, consumer behavior, consumer information
processing and psychology and corporate social responsibility. Ms. Zhu has
been a Professor of Marketing, Director of the Social Innovation and Business
for Good Centre and Academic Director for the EMBA Program of Cheung
Kong Graduate School of Business from 2013 to present. Prior to that, Ms. Zhu
was an associate professor at the University of British Columbia, Canada, from
2005 to 2013 and an assistant professor at Rice University, the United States,
from 2003 to 2005. Ms. Zhu received her Ph.D. in Business Administration
from University of Minnesota, the United States, in 2003. Ms. Zhu has been
appointed as an independent director of ATRenew Inc. (a company listed on
The New York Stock Exchange, NYSE: RERE) in May 2022.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. GUAN Yihong (B2 %), aged 53, is also our chief executive officer. See
the paragraph headed “Executive Directors” for his biography.

Mr. LI Zhuoguang (ZEX}), aged 40, is also our chief financial officer
and vice president. See the paragraph headed “Executive Directors” for his

biography.

Ms. CUI Longyu (5 TF), aged 48, is also our vice president. See the
paragraph headed “Executive Directors” for her biography.

Mr. HE Chengxiao (filE%), aged 45, is also our vice president. See the
paragraph headed “Executive Directors” for his biography.

Mr. FU Danwei (fff#&), aged 49, joined our Group as the director of
information technology of Guangzhou Jiumaojiu on September 11, 2017 and
is primarily responsible for overseeing the information technology matters of
our Company. Prior to joining our Group, he accumulated extensive working
experience in the information technology sector. He worked as the chief
technology officer at Shenzhen Holpe Commercial Chain Co., Ltd. CRYI™
1ER 2B MR AR A R]), which provides sales and repair services of
telecommunication and digital products, from August 2015 to September
2017. From June 2013 to August 2014, he worked at McDonald (China)
Co, Ltd (EE L (FE)BRAF]) as the information technology manager.
From November 2011 to December 2012, he worked as a senior manager
at Huawei Technologies Co., Ltd (ZE&#MTARAA]). Mr. Fu graduated
from Hubei Institute of Technology (#1t TE£28%) (the predecessor of Hubei
University of Technology (#33t T2 KE)) in 1995 with a bachelor's degree
in electrical engineering. He then obtained a master's degree in law in South-
Central University for Nationalities (R F R fR A Z2) in 2002.

Mr. HU Zhonghua (1 #), aged 44, joined our Group on September 20,
2008 and has been the director of development of Guangzhou Jiumaojiu
since January 1, 2014 and is primarily responsible for overseeing the
restaurant expansion and development. As of the Latest Practicable Date,
Mr. Hu held 2.9% of the total issued share capital in MT BVI, which held
approximately 2.6% of the total issued share capital in our Company. Mr. Hu
graduated from Hunan Construction Materials College (HFEM = EE R
1), now known as Hunan Institute of Technology (#7 T &%), in 2003.
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Ms. Zhao Yuanyuan (B#E#E), aged 42, has been the director of the
public affairs department and the assistant to the chairman of the Board of
the Group since she joined the Group on July 2, 2018. She has also been
appointed as the vice president of the Group since February 9, 2021 and
is responsible for the management of the public affairs department of the
Group. Prior to joining the Group, she has extensive work experience in
public relations and corporate affairs. She worked at Inner Mongolia Yili
Industrial Group Co., Ltd. ("Yili Group”), a dairy product manufacturer listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 600887), from October 2005
to June 2018. Prior to her departure from Yili Group, she was the head
of the corporate affairs department of the liquid milk business division,
responsible for external affairs, crisis management and risk investigation of
the corporate. Ms. Zhao obtained a bachelor’s degree in biological education
from Heilongjiang University in 2004 and received a postgraduate diploma in
integrated and practicing management from The University of Hong Kong in
2021.

Joint Company Secretaries

Mr. LI Zhuoguang (Z#¥), aged 40, is also one of our joint company
secretaries. See the paragraph headed “Executive Directors” for his biography.
As disclosed in the Prospectus, the Stock Exchange has granted to the
Company a waiver from strict compliance with the requirements under Rules
3.28 and 8.17 of the Listing Rules in respect of the eligibility of Mr. Li to act as
one of the joint company secretaries of the Company for an initial three-year
period commencing from January 15, 2020 (being the date of the Listing) to
January 14, 2023. As confirmed by the Stock Exchange on January 9, 2023,
Mr. Li is qualified to act as the company secretary of the Company under Rule
3.28 of the Listing Rules after the expiry of the waiver period on January 14,
2023. For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated
January 12, 2023.
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Mr. Matthew Mo Kan TSUI (% #)), aged 41, has been appointed as one
of our joint company secretaries with effect from the Listing. He is a member
of the CPA Australia and Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
He has assisted in numerous IPO projects and has deep knowledge of
the listing procedures and regulatory requirements of listed companies,
including internal controls, accounting and financial disclosure. Mr. Tsui
has served as an independent non-executive director, the chairman of the
audit committee, and a member of each of the nomination committee,
remuneration committee and corporate governance committee (currently
known as environmental, social and governance committee) of Grand Field
Group Holdings Limited (83’5 5B G R A 7]*), the shares of which are listed
on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 115) since July 23, 2021. Mr. Tsui has
been a corporate consultant of Richdale Consultants Limited, a consultancy
company that provides corporate advisory services to both private and
listed company clients, including financial reporting matters, compliance
with various rules and regulations, fund raising and corporate development
planning, from October 2018. He was the company secretary and financial
controller of Poly Property Management Group (Hong Kong) Limited (fR 7
Y% EIBEE (FB)BRR2A A, a company providing property management
services in the PRC, from September 2017 to September 2018. He worked as
assistant financial controller at Ocean Empire International Co., Ltd. (& 2 B
BABR A 7)), which operates chain restaurants of traditional Cantonese congee
in Hong Kong and Macau, from September 2016 to September 2017 and the
chief listing officer of Linglun Daycrown Case & Bag Industries (Shenzhen) Co.,
Ltd. (RfeiRAT LM BE ORI BPR AT, a company primarily engaged
in sales of various luggage, and other products from September 2014 to
June 2016, primarily responsible for group restructuring as well as further the
improvements in financial reporting framework. Mr. Tsui worked from May
2007 to August 2014 in KPMG and his last position was manager. Before that
he worked as an accountant in Hertzberg Yong & Co., Chartered Accountants
in Australia from August 2003 to November 2006. He obtained a bachelor’s

degree in commerce in Macquarie University in Australia in 2003.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board recognizes the importance of good corporate governance to
the Company’s healthy growth and has devoted considerable efforts to
formulating and implementing corporate governance practices appropriate
to the Company's needs. The Company has adopted the principles and
code provisions of the CG Code as the basis of the Company's corporate

governance practices.

During the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company has complied
with all applicable code provisions as set out in the CG Code save for the
deviations from code provision C.2.1 which are explained in the relevant

paragraphs of this Corporate Governance Report.

The Company will continue to review and monitor its corporate governance
practices to ensure compliance with the CG Code. Key corporate governance

principles and practices of the Company are summarized below.

THE BOARD

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of the
Board

Direction and control of Company business are vested in the Board. The
Board establishes policies, strategies and plans for the development of
Company business, and provides leadership in the creation of value for
Shareholders. All Directors have carried out their duties in good faith,
have been in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, have taken
decisions objectively and have acted in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders at all times. The Directors shall disclose to the Company details

of other offices held by them.

The Board takes responsibility for all major matters of the Company,
including approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies and
budgets, risk management and internal control systems, material transactions
(particularly those involving conflict of interests), financial information,
appointment of Directors and other significant financial and operational

matters.
The Board regularly reviews the contribution required from a Director to

perform his/her responsibilities to the Company, and whether the Director is

spending sufficient time performing them.
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The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the Company
are led by the Board and senior management of the Company. The
Board has delegated a schedule of responsibilities to the management
for implementing Board decisions, and directing and coordinating the
daily operation and management of the Company. The Board reviews the
delegated functions and work tasks regularly. The management has to obtain

Board approval prior to entering into any significant transactions.

If a substantial shareholder or a Director has a potential conflict of interest
in a matter to be considered by the Board which the Board has determined
to be material, the relevant Director shall abstain from voting and a Board
meeting attended by independent non-executive Directors who, and whose
close associates, have no material interest in the matter shall be held to

discuss and vote on the same.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage on Directors’
liabilities in respect of any legal actions taken against Directors arising out of
corporate activities. The insurance coverage would be reviewed on an annual

basis.

Board Composition

The composition of the Board during the year ended December 31, 2022 is as

follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Guan Yihong (Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Li Zhuoguang

Ms. Cui Longyu

Mr. He Chengxiao

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Deng Tao
Ms. Tang Zhihui
Ms. Zhu Rui
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The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules
from time to time. The independent non-executive Directors are expressly

identified in all corporate communications pursuant to the Listing Rules.

The biographical details of the Directors and the relationships among the
members of the Board are disclosed in the section headed “Directors and
Senior Management” in this annual report. To the best knowledge of the
Company, there is no other financial, business, family or other material/

relevant relationship among the members of the Board.

During the year ended December 31, 2022, the Board at all times met the
requirement of the Listing Rules of having a minimum of three independent
non-executive Directors (representing at least one-third of the Board) with
one of them possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting

or related financial management expertise.

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary balance of skills and
experience appropriate for the business requirement and objectives of the

Group and for the exercise of independent judgement.

The Company has received a written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive Director of his/her independence pursuant
to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
independent non-executive Directors to be independent in accordance with

the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Company has implementable and effective mechanisms to ensure
independent views and input are available to the Board. All Directors have
timely access to all relevant information as well as the advice and services
of the joint company secretaries and senior management of the Company,
with a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable laws and
regulations are followed. Any Director may seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company's expenses, upon
reasonable request made to the Board. During the year ended December
31, 2022, the Board has reviewed the board independence mechanisms and

considered that the implementation of the mechanisms was effective.
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Chairman and Chief Executive

Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by the

same individual.

Mr. Guan Yihong currently serves as both the chairman of the Board and
the chief executive officer of the Company. Since the founding of the Group
in 2005, Mr. Guan Yihong has been responsible for formulating the overall
business development strategies and leading the overall operations, and
therefore has been instrumental to the growth and business expansion of
the Group. Mr. Guan Yihong's vision and leadership have played a pivotal role
in the Group’s success and achievements to date, and therefore the Board
considers that vesting the roles of chairman and chief executive officer in the
same person is beneficial to the management of the Group. The long-serving
and outstanding senior management team of the Company and the Board,
which comprises experienced and high-caliber individuals, provides a check
on the balance of power and authority. The Board comprises four executive
Directors (including Mr. Guan Yihong) and three independent non-executive
Directors, and therefore has a fairly strong independence element in its

composition.

The chairman provides leadership to the Board by ensuring the Board works
effectively and discharges its responsibilities in time. The chairman himself, or
a Director or a joint company secretary delegated by him, is responsible for
drawing up and approving the agenda for each Board meeting. The chairman
ensures that good corporate governance practices and procedures are
established. The chairman encourages all Directors to make a full and active
contribution to the Board's affairs and take the lead to ensure that it acts in
the best interests of the Company. The chairman ensures that all Directors
receive adequate information to fulfill their duties, which must be accurate,
clear, complete and reliable in a timely manner. The chairman ensures
effective communication with Shareholders and that views of Shareholders
are communicated to the Board as a whole. The chairman promotes a culture
of openness and debate by facilitating the effective contribution of non-
executive Directors in particular and ensures constructive relations between

executive and non-executive Directors.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years. The Company has also issued a letter
of appointment to each of the independent non-executive Directors for a
term of three years. Under the Articles of Association, at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being, or if their number
is not three or a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than
one — third shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. The

retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Articles of Association, Mr. Guan Yihong, Ms.
Tang Zhihui and Ms. Zhu Rui shall retire at the AGM and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election at the AGM. The Board recommended the re-
election of the above retiring Directors at the AGM. The Company’s circular,
sent together with this annual report, contains detailed information of such

retiring Directors as required by the Listing Rules.

Training and Continuing Professional Development of Directors

The Directors keep abreast of regulatory developments and changes and of
the conduct, business activities and development of the Company in order to

effectively perform their responsibilities.

Every newly appointed Directors has received a comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction on his/her appointment to ensure appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Group and full
awareness of Director’s responsibilities and obligations under the Listing
Rules and relevant statutory requirements. Such induction is normally

supplemented with meetings with the senior management of the Company.

The Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
Continuing briefings and professional development for the Directors are
arranged whenever necessary. In addition, reading materials relating to the
Company'’s business or Directors" duties and responsibilities, updates on
salient laws, corporate governance, regulations applicable to the Group are
provided to the Directors from time to time for their studying and reference.
All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the

Company's expenses.
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The Directors are required to submit to the Company details of the training
they received in each financial year for the Company’s maintenance of proper
training records of the Directors. During the year ended December 31, 2022,
Mr. Guan Yihong, Mr. Li Zhuoguang, Ms. Cui Longyu, Mr. He Chengxiao, Mr.
Deng Tao, Ms. Tang Zhihui and Ms. Zhu Rui attended training sessions on
regulatory development, directors’ duties or other relevant topics. In addition,
relevant reading materials have been provided to the Directors for their

studying and reference.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct
regarding the Directors’ dealings in the securities of the Company. Having
made specific enquiry of all the Directors, all Directors confirmed that they
have complied with the provisions of the Model Code during the year ended
December 31, 2022.

The Company has also established written guidelines for securities
transactions by employees who are likely to be in possession of inside
information of the Company (the “Guidelines for Securities Dealings by
Relevant Employees’) on terms no less exacting than the Model Code. No
incident of non-compliance with the Guidelines for Securities Dealings by

Relevant Employees by the employees has been noted by the Company.

In case the Company is aware of any restricted period for dealings in the
Company's securities, the Company will notify its directors and relevant

employees in advance.

Board Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are normally
made available to the Directors in advance. Notice of a regular Board meeting
is served on all the Directors at least 14 days before the meeting. For other

Board and committee meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable information
are sent to all Directors at least three days before each Board meeting or
committee meeting to keep Directors apprised of the latest development
and financial position of the Company and to enable them to make decisions.
The Board and each Director also have separate and independent access to

the senior management where necessary.
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The senior management normally will attend regular Board meetings and
where necessary, other Board and committee meetings, to advise on business
development, financial and accounting matters, statutory and regulatory

compliance, corporate governance and other major aspects of the Company.

The Articles of Association contain provisions requiring Directors to abstain
from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at the meetings for
approving transactions in which such Directors or any of their associates have

a material interest.

The secretary of the meetings is responsible for taking and keeping minutes
of all Board meetings and committee meetings. Minutes of Board meetings
and committee meetings record in sufficient detail the matters considered
and decisions reached, including any concerns raised by Directors or

dissenting views expressed.

Draft minutes are normally circulated to all the Directors for comment within
a reasonable time after each meeting. Final versions of the minutes are sent

to the Directors for their records and are open for their inspection.

Attendance Records of Directors and Committee Members

The attendance records of each Director at the Board and Board Committee
meetings and annual general meeting of the Company held during the year

ended December 31, 2022 are set out in the table below:

SREEERATEHRENESE AT SHR
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EEEH GEEARHEMBEAZERHER -

AEEREAREEERR  BREREENIE
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MERE THERBRAVYTHASEETAL

ERNERAMAESEER R B e M
BOREIME EFZegaRZBEEeHY
BB N FALEE LEENEE LERN
RE - BRESFRONEABIEEHREN
REZH -

ERLBERATNERR —BRAEREAH
PRE=EMAUBRERER - SRLENERE
BXRTERMHARLE  WARBEER -

EEREEEREHFETE

REZ202F12A31BILEE » KSEERNAR
RAHNESSREERE SR URKRESR
FREHNHELEERHNTE ¢

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HERE EERH
Annual
Audit Remuneration Nomination General
Name of Director EEnE Board Committee Committee  Committee Meeting
EE® ERZEEE FMEES REZES RRBEFAE
Mr. Guan Yihong ERREE 6/6 = = 1/1 11
Mr. Li Zhuoguang TN LA 6/6 = 1/ = 11
Ms. Cui Longyu EFEFLL 6/6 - - - 11
Mr. He Chengxiao AT AR 5T A 6/6 = = = 11
Mr. Deng Tao BOSEAE 6/6 2/2 /1 11 11
Ms. Tang Zhihui EEEL L 6/6 2/2 1/1 - 11
Ms. Zhu Rui REZ L 6/6 2/2 - 1/1 1/1
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In addition, Mr. Guan Yihong, the chairman of the Board, held a meeting
with the independent non-executive Directors without the presence of other

Directors during the year ended December 31, 2022.

BOARD COMMITTEES AND CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee for overseeing particular aspects
of the Company’s affairs. The Board committees have sufficient resources to
execute their requisite duties. All the Board committees should report to the

Board on their decisions or recommendations made.

Audit Committee

As of December 31, 2022, the Audit Committee comprised three independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Deng Tao (Chairman), Ms. Tang Zhihui
and Ms. Zhu Rui. Mr. Deng Tao possesses the appropriate professional
qualifications as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. None of
the members of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the Company's

existing external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to (i) review the financial
statements and reports and consider any significant or unusual items
raised by the financial officers of the Group or external auditors before
submission to the Board; (ii) review and monitor the relationship with the
external auditors by referencing to the work performed by the external
auditors, their fees and terms of engagement, and make recommendations
to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of external
auditors; (iii) review the Company'’s financial controls, internal control and risk
management systems; and (iv) establish a whistleblowing policy and system
for employees and those who deal with the Company to raise concerns
in confidence about possible improprieties in any matter related to the

Company.
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The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on the

websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

During the year ended December 31, 2022, the Audit Committee held two
meetings to review the annual financial results and report for the year ended
December 31, 2021, the interim financial results and report for the six months
ended June 30, 2022, major audit findings, significant issues on the financial
reporting and compliance procedures, internal control and risk management
systems, the effectiveness of the Company’s internal audit function, scope
of works and re-appointment of external auditors and arrangements for

employees to raise concerns about possible improprieties.

The external auditors were invited to attend the Audit Committee meetings
without the presence of executive Directors to discuss with the Audit
Committee issues arising from the audit and financial reporting matters.
There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee

regarding the re-appointment of external auditors.

Remuneration Committee

As of December 31, 2022, the Remuneration Committee comprised two
independent non-executive Directors and one executive Director, namely,

Ms. Tang Zhihui (Chairman), Mr. Deng Tao and Mr. Li Zhuoguang.

The main duties of the Remuneration Committee are to (i) assess
performance of executive Directors and approve the terms of executive
Directors’ service contracts; (ii) review and approve performance-based
remuneration by referencing to corporate goals and objectives; (iii) make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration policy
and structure and the remuneration packages of Directors and senior
management (i.e. the model described in the code provision E.1.2(c)(ii) of the
CG Code is adopted); and (iv) establish a formal and transparent procedure
for developing such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no
Director or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding his/her own
remuneration, which will be determined with reference to the performance

of the individual and the Group as well as market practice and conditions.

The written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available

on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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During the year ended December 31, 2022, the Remuneration Committee
(i) reviewed and discussed the remuneration policy and structure and the
remuneration packages of the Directors and senior management of the
Group; and (ii) recommended to the Board on the grant of share options

under the Share Option Scheme to the Directors and eligible persons.

Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual remuneration of
the senior management by band for the year ended December 31, 2022 is set

out below:
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Number

of senior

management

Remuneration Band FMEE EREEEAY
RMBO to RMB1,000,000 AR 02 AR 1,000,0007T 3
RMB1,000,001 to RMB1,500,000 AR#1,000,001 72 ARE1,500,0007T 1
RMB1,500,001 to RMB2,000,000 AR#1,500,001 T2 A K% 2,000,0007T 2
RMB2,000,001 to RMB2,500,000 AR#2,000,001 T2 AR 2,500,0007T 2
8

Details of the remuneration of each director of the Company for the year
ended December 31, 2022 are set out in note 7 to the consolidated financial

statements contained in this annual report.

Nomination Committee

As of December 31, 2022, the Nomination Committee comprised one
executive Director and two independent non-executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Guan Yihong (Chairman), Mr. Deng Tao and Ms. Zhu Rui.
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The main duties of the Nomination Committee are to (i) review the structure,
size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board on a regular basis and recommend any changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy; (i) identify qualified
and suitable individuals to become Board members and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships; (i) assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors of the Company, having regard to the requirements under the
Listing Rules; and (iv) make recommendations to the Board on relevant
matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors, in particular the chairman and the chief

executive of the Company.

The Company also recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a diverse
Board to enhance its performance and has adopted a Board Diversity Policy
aiming to set out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The
implementation of the policy is monitored by the Nomination Committee. In
designing the Board’s composition, board diversity has been considered from
a number of measurable objectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, and professional experience. The
Nomination Committee shall report its findings and make recommendation
to the Board, if any. Such policy and objectives will be reviewed from time
to time and at least on an annual basis to ensure their appropriateness in
determining the optimum composition of the Board. As of December 31,
2022, the Board has 3 female Directors out of 7 Directors, representing
42.9% of the Board; and 2 of 7 of the senior management of the Group are
female, representing 28.6% of the senior management. As of December 31,
2022, the Group had a total of 5,181 female staff out of 16,190 employees,
representing 32.0% of the employees of the Group. The Group will continue
to take opportunities to increase the proportion of female board members
and workforce over time as and when suitable candidates are identified. For
further details, please refer to the Environmental, Social and Governance

Report of the Company.
During the year ended December 31, 2022, the Board has reviewed the Board

Diversity Policy and considered that the implementation of the policy was

effective.
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The Company has also adopted the Procedures for the Nomination
Committee to nominate to the Board a person as Director which sets out the
criteria and process of selection and performance evaluation, and provides
guidance to the Board on nomination and appointment of directors of the
Company. The Board believes that the defined selection process is good
for corporate governance in ensuring the Board continuity and appropriate
leadership at Board level, and enhancing better Board effectiveness and

diversity as well as in compliance with the applicable rules and regulations.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorship, the
Nomination Committee would consider the candidate's character including
integrity, honesty and fairness, backgrounds and qualifications including
professional qualifications, skills, knowledge, experience, independence and
other relevant criteria necessary to complement the corporate strategy and
achieve board diversity, where appropriate, before making recommendation
to the Board. The Nomination Committee and/or the Board may select
candidates for directorship from various channels, including but not limited
to internal promotion, re-designation, referral by other members of the

management and external recruitment agents.

The written terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on

the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

During the year ended December 31, 2022, the Nomination Committee
reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board to ensure that
it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate to the
requirements for the business of the Group and reviewed the Board diversity
policy; considered and recommended the re-election of the retiring Directors
standing for re-election at the 2022 annual general meeting and assessed the

independence of the independent non-executive Directors.
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the code
provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

During the year ended December 31, 2022, the Board has reviewed the
Company's corporate governance policies and practices, the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior management,
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance with the Model Code and the
Guidelines for Securities Dealings by Relevant Employees, and the Company's
compliance with the CG Code and the disclosure in this Corporate

Governance Report.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the financial

statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2022.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment of annual and interim reports, inside information announcements
and other disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other statutory
and regulatory requirements. The management has provided to the Board
such explanation and information as are necessary to enable the Board to
carry out an informed assessment of the Company's financial statements,
which are put to the Board for approval. The management provides all
members of the Board with monthly updates on the Company's performance,

positions and prospects.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to

continue as a going concern.
The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about their

reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is set out

in the Independent Auditor’s Report of this annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management and
internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness on an ongoing
basis. Such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and

not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board is fully responsible for evaluating and determining the nature and
extent of the risks it is willing to take to achieve the Company's strategic
objectives, and for establishing and maintaining appropriate and effective
risk management and internal control systems to safeguard Shareholders’

investments and the Group's assets.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in overseeing the design and
implementation of the risk management and internal control systems. The
Company has developed and adopted different risk management procedures
and guidelines. Self-evaluation would be conducted each year to confirm
that the Company has properly complied with the risk management
and internal control policy. All divisions would conduct internal control
assessment to identify risks factors with potential impact on the Group's
business. The management would assess the likelihood of risk occurrence,
monitor the progress of risk management and report to the Board and the

Audit Committee on the findings and effectiveness of the systems.

The Group has developed its disclosure policy to provide a general guide
to the Company'’s directors, officers, senior management and relevant
employees in handling confidential information, monitoring information

disclosure and responding to enquiries.

The Company has recruited experienced personnel for providing the
internal audit function and performing independent review of the
adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems. The internal audit function examined key issues in relation to the
accounting practices and all material controls and provided its findings and
recommendations for improvement to the Audit Committee. The Company
has also engaged an external professional firm to provide an ongoing
review of the Group's execution and launch of its procurement system in
order to identify, evaluate and manage significant risks, including ongoing
review of the segregation of duties, enhancement of the organizational
structures, fine-tuning of the standard operating procedures, goal settings,
KPI management as well as provide training and updates to shape the

continuing improvements.
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The Board, as assisted by the Audit Committee and the management, has
reviewed the report from the management and the internal audit findings,
and reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group, including the financial, operational and compliance
controls for the year ended December 31, 2022. The annual review also
covered areas on the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programs and budget of the Company’s accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions as well as those relating
to the Company’s environmental, social and governance performance
and reporting. The Board considered that such systems are adequate and
effective and ongoing review of the same nature would be conducted in

SUbSEC]UEﬂt years.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS AND AUDITORS'
REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities for the Company's financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2022 is set out in the section headed “Independent Auditor’s

Report”in this annual report.

The external auditor of the Company will be invited to attend the annual
general meeting to answer questions about the conduct of the audit, the

preparation and content of the auditor’s report and auditor’s independence.

During the year ended December 31, 2022, the remuneration paid/payable

to the Company'’s external auditors, KPMG, is set out below:
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Remuneration

(RMB’ 000)

F2a ]

Nature of Services REMHE (AR®F )
Audit services FiT RS 2,800
Non-audit services (Note) JEEET RS (FFE) 1,218
TOTAL: 5t 4,018

Note: The non-audit services provided mainly included review of interim results and
tax consultation services.
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Li Zhuoguang and Mr. Matthew Mo Kan Tsui, being the joint company
secretaries of the Company, report to the chairman of the Board and are
responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance matters and
ensuring that the Board policies and procedures, as well as the applicable

laws, rules and regulations are followed.

Mr. Li Zhuoguang and Mr. Matthew Mo Kan Tsui have taken not less than
15 hours of relevant professional training and comply with the requirement
under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules for the year ended December 31, 2022.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication with Shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investors' understanding
of the Group's business performance and strategies. The Company also
recognizes the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of corporate
information, which will enable Shareholders and investors to make the best

investment decisions.

The Company maintains a website at “www.jiumaojiu.com” as a
communication platform with shareholders and investors, where information
and updates on the Group's business operations, developments and financial

information are available for public access.

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the Board and the Shareholders. The chairman
of the Board as well as chairmen of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee and, in their absence, other members
of the respective committees, are available to answer questions at general
meetings. The chairman of a meeting will provide the detailed procedures
for conducting a poll and answer any questions from the Shareholders on
voting by poll. A notice to Shareholders is sent by the Company at least 21
days before the annual general meeting and at least 14 days before all other

general meetings.

The Company continues to enhance communications and relationships with
its investors. Designated senior management maintains regular dialogue with
institutional investors and analysts to keep them posted of the Company'’s

developments.
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SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

As one of the measures to safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights,
separate resolutions are proposed at Shareholders’ meetings for each
substantially separate issue, including the election of individual Directors, for
Shareholders’ consideration and voting. All resolutions put forward at general
meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll
voting results will be posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the

Company immediately after the relevant general meetings.

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary
General Meeting

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, any one or more Shareholders holding
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to
the Board or either of the joint company secretaries of the Company, to
require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the

transaction of any business specified in such requisition.

Procedures for Shareholders to Put Forward Proposals at
General Meetings

There is no provision allowing the Shareholders to move new resolutions at
general meetings under the Companies Act or the Articles of Association.
Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the Company
to convene a general meeting following the procedures set out in the

preceding paragraph.

If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a retiring Director for
election as a director of the Company at a general meeting, the Shareholder
(other than the person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote
at the general meeting shall lodge a written notice, duly signed by the
Shareholder, of his/her intention to propose such person for election and
also a notice signed by the person to be proposed of his/her willingness to
be elected. The minimum length of the period during which such notices
may be lodged at the Company’s head office in Guangzhou, PRC or the
Company's share registrar in Hong Kong shall be at least seven days and
that the period for lodgment of such notices shall commence no earlier than
the day after the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed
for such election and end no later than seven days prior to the date of such
general meeting. The “Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for

Election as Director” are available on the website of the Company.
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Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, Shareholders may send
written enquiries to the Company. The Company will not normally deal with

verbal or anonymous enquiries.

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholders must deposit and send the original
duly signed written requisition, notice, statement or enquiry (as the case may
be) to the following address and provide their full name, contact details and
identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders' information may

be disclosed as required by law.

Address:  Room 404-A197, 1T Mingzhuyi Street, Hengli Town, Nansha District,
Guangzhou, the PRC (For the attention of the Board/Company
Secretary)

E-mail: comsec@jiumaojiu.com

For enquiries about shareholdings, Shareholders should direct their enquiries

to the Company's Hong Kong Share Registrar. Their details are as follows:

Name: Link Market Services (Hong Kong) Pty Limited
Address:  Suite 1601, 16/F., Central Tower 28 Queen’s Road Central, Hong
Kong

Tel No..  (852) 3707 2600

Fax No..  (852) 3707 2699

POLICIES RELATING TO SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has in place a Shareholders” Communication Policy to
ensure that Shareholders’ views and concerns are appropriately addressed.
During the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company has reviewed
the Shareholders” Communication Policy and considered that the policy
was effectively implemented with the measures as disclosed under the
paragraphs headed “Communications with Shareholders and Investors” and
“Shareholder Rights”.
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The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy on payment of dividends.
The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend payout ratio.
Depending on the financial conditions of the Company and the Group and
the conditions and factors as set out in the Dividend Policy, interim, special,
final dividends and any distribution of net profits that the Board may deem
appropriate may be proposed and/or declared by the Board for a financial
year or period. Any final dividend for a financial year will be subject to the

Shareholders’ approval.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company has amended its
constitutional documents. Details of the amendments are set out in the
circular of the Company dated April 26, 2022. The second amended and
restated memorandum and articles of association of the Company is available

on both the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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The Board is pleased to present its report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended December

31, 2022.

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on February 1, 2019
as an exempted company with limited liability under the Companies Act. The
Shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on January 15,
2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is principally
engaged in managing and operating Chinese cuisine restaurant brands in
the PRC. Details of the principal activities of the significant subsidiaries of the

Company are set out in note 13(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review and performance analysis of the Group for the year
ended December 31, 2022 as required by Schedule 5 to the Companies
Ordinance are set out in the section headed “Chairman’s Statement” from
pages 14 to 23 and “Management Discussion and Analysis” from pages 24 to

40 of this annual report which constitute part of this directors’ report.

OUTLOOK FOR 2023

For the year ending December 31, 2023, the Group will continue to pursue
the following: (i) replicate our success through further expansion; (i) continue
to expand into more market segments by pursuing a multi-brand and multi-
concept strategy; (iii) continue to strengthen our supply chain and support
capabilities; and (iv) expand into the global markets to gain an international
presence. Further discussion of the future development in the Group's
business is set out in the section headed “Chairman’s Statement” from pages

14 to 23 of this annual report which constitutes part of this directors' report.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

P RR

For the year ended December 31,

BZE12A31BLEE

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBFT ARBTT

Revenue

Store level operating profit

Profit before taxation

Profit for the year

Profit for the year attributable to equity
Shareholders of the Company

Adjusted net profit

Final dividend proposed after the end of the year

A 4,005,722 4,179,704
JE &6 JE T 4 = R 516,578 809,297
R A5 Al A 94,331 505,920
F & i A 55,610 372,153
NA Al AR R PG G Z R T

49,280 339,936
KR LA 69,343 380,427
FREREBEZNHARPRKRE 12,795 70,968
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KEY RELATIONSHIPS
Relationship with Suppliers

We typically have at least three suppliers for each of our main ingredients
to minimize any potential disruption in our operations, maintain sourcing
stability, avoid over-reliance risk, and secure competitive prices from
suppliers. To safeguard food quality, our comprehensive requirements cover
reputable large suppliers both domestically and overseas. In order to facilitate
cooperation with our suppliers and secure a stable supply of key ingredients,
we have established co-operative relationships with two suppliers of our
key ingredient (i.e. bass) by forming joint venture companies with them.
One of the joint venture companies has been supplying bass to the Group
since January 2021, and the other joint venture company has commenced
operation of the breeding process and it is expected that it will be able
to start supplying bass to the Group since around mid-2023. Further, our
Company has entered into cooperation agreements with certain sauerkraut
suppliers to obtain early payment discounts and secure stable and quality

supply of sauerkraut.
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For the year ended December 31, 2022, the total purchases from our five
largest suppliers in aggregate accounted for 42.2%, and our purchases from
our largest supplier accounted for 23.3%, of our total purchases. On average,
we have over five years of business dealings with our major suppliers. We
did not experience any interruption in our supply of food ingredients, early
termination of supply agreements, or failure to secure sufficient quantities of
irreplaceable food ingredients that had any material adverse impact on our

business or results of operations during the year ended December 31, 2022.

Relationship with Customers

In pursuit of our philosophy of serving delicacies at affordable prices ("%,
TE"), we are fully devoted to providing marvelous dining experience to our
customers through exquisite dishes, high-quality services and unique brand
culture. We have a large and diverse customer base. Revenue derived from
our largest customer and five largest customers both accounted for less than

1.0% of our total revenue for the year ended December 31, 2022.

All of our top five largest customers and suppliers are independent
third parties. None of our Directors, their close associates or any of our
Shareholders (who, to the knowledge of our Directors, own more than 5% of
the issued share capital of our Company) had any interest in any of our top
five largest customers or suppliers that is required to be disclosed under the

Listing Rules for the year ended December 31, 2022.
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Relationship with Employees

Our success, to a considerable extent, depends upon our ability to attract,
motivate and retain a sufficient number of qualified employees. The
remuneration package for our employees generally includes salary and
bonuses. We determine employee remuneration based on factors such
as qualifications and years of experience. Employees also receive welfare
benefits, including medical care, retirement benefits, occupational injury
insurance and other miscellaneous items. We make contributions to
mandatory social security funds for our employees to provide for retirement,
medical, work-related injury, maternity and unemployment benefits. We also
granted restricted stock units as share incentives to qualified directors and
employees, details of which are set out in the section headed “Restricted
Stock Unit Scheme and Share Option Scheme” in this directors’ report. In
order to incentivize Directors, senior management and employees for their
contribution to our Company and to attract, motivate and retain skilled and
experienced personnel, we have granted share options under the Share
Option Scheme, details of which are set out in the section headed “Restricted

Stock Unit Scheme and Share Option Scheme”in this directors’ report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to fulfilling social responsibility, promoting
employee benefits and development, protecting the environment and giving
back to community and achieving sustainable growth. Details of such are set

out in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Company.

LICENCES, REGULATORY APPROVALS AND
COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the year ended December 31, 2022, there were no material breaches
or violations of relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, where the Group
has business entities and operations, and the Group obtained all requisite
licenses, approvals and permits from relevant authorities that are material to
the Group's operations in the PRC. Details of our compliance with relevant
laws and regulations are set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance

Report of the Company.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

A number of factors may affect the results and business operation of the

Group. The principal risks and uncertainties that the Group faces and key

mitigations that the Group adopts are summarized as follows:

Principal Risks and
Uncertainties

TERBRRARERE

Description
it

FTEERBETRERER
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Key Mitigations
TEERIENE

Uncertainty to successfully

enter into new markets

B )3 B8 37 717 355 69 T SE
ESES

In obtaining new restaurant sites, we may face
intense competition from our competitors
in the catering service industry. We may also
encounter delays when applying for relevant
material licenses during the approval process
from the government authorities, for which the
timeline is beyond our control. Even if we are
able to open additional restaurants as planned,
these new restaurants may neither be profitable
nor have results comparable to our existing

restaurants for a period of time.
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We adopt a prudent approach in entering
into new markets and conduct a detailed and
comprehensive due diligence exercise which
includes researches on the overall market trend,
development schedule for new shopping malls
and information in relation to the regulations,
policies and taxation system of the cities where
we intend to open our new restaurants. We
have strong preference for top commercial
districts in a city with convenient transportation
and high pedestrian flow. We deploy at least
one restaurant staff for each key operational
function from our existing restaurants to the
new restaurant to ensure an efficient transfer of
our operational procedures and best practices

to the new restaurant.
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Principal Risks and
Uncertainties

TERBRRIRERE

Description
i
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Key Mitigations
TEEMRIEHE

Uncertainty to maintain
and increase the sales and
profitability of our existing

restaurants

MR RIB IR PR A B
HY$H &5 S B FBE D 9T
HEERZE

Our ability to increase existing restaurant sales
depends in part on our ability to successfully
implement our initiatives to increase
customer traffic, seat turnover and spending
per customer. There can be no assurance
that we will be able to achieve our targeted
sales growth and profitability for our existing
restaurants. Also, we cannot ensure that
existing restaurant sales will not decrease. If
we are unable to achieve our targeted sales
and profitability goals in our existing markets,
our business, financial condition and results of

operations may be materially adversely affected.
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We endeavor to offer tasty cuisines with
optimal presentation to our customers by
constantly improving the quality and flavor of
our dishes which cater to the specific tastes of
local customers. For example, we review and
change three to five menu items for our Jiu
Mao Jiu and Tai Er menu on a quarterly basis,
taking into account customer evaluations and
seasonality factors. We also strive to provide our
customers with superior services and distinctive
dining experience. For example, Tai Er, Song
Hot Pot and Lai Mei Li Grilled Fish brands
pursue unique and interesting dining culture
and builds rapport with customers through eye-
catching and off-the-rail slogans. Further, we
introduce a variety of interesting and interactive
activities carefully designed by our dedicated
team for our online members to boost our sale
of featured products on our online platforms
and increase their frequency of visits to our
restaurants. We build our brand image through
a combination of online and offline promotional

campaigns.
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Principal Risks and
Uncertainties

TERBRRIEERE

Description

it

Key Mitigations
TEERIEHE

Risks related to changes
in consumer taste and

discretionary spending

ELH B & QUK ] Al ST AC 2
2 B 1R R A R R

The catering service industry is affected by
consumer taste and preference. We cannot
assure you that we can continue to maintain our
menu to develop new products and maintain
an attractive menu to suit changing customer
demands.

To a significant extent, our success also
depends on discretionary customer spending,
which is influenced by general economic
conditions. Accordingly, we may experience
declines in sales during economic downturns
or prolonged periods of high unemployment
rates. Any material decline in the amount of
discretionary spending in the PRC may have a
material adverse effect on our business, results
of operations and financial condition.
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We closely monitor changes in consumer taste
and preference. We conduct customer surveys
to collect feedback from customers so that we
update our menus as necessary to maintain a
degree of freshness. We also monitor customer
satisfaction through consumer review websites
and through our frontline staff who interact

with our customers to collect feedback.

When experiencing material declines in sales,
we will review and adjust our strategies on a
case by case basis to counter their effect on our
business. For example, since the Pandemic in
2020, Tai Er launched food delivery service. We
may adopt a more prudent restaurant opening
strategy and freeze non-essential hiring to
minimize expenditures.

We introduced two new brands, namely Song
Hot Pot in 2020 and Lai Mei Li Grilled Fish in
2021, and disposed the Double Eggs brand in
the first half of 2022 in order to maintain an
optimal portfolio of restaurant brands.
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Principal Risks and

Uncertainties

TERBRRIRERE

Description
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Key Mitigations
TEEMRIEHE

Risks related to quality control

and food safety
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The catering service industry in the PRC as a
whole is subject to concerns over food safety
and quality related issues. The catering service
industry as a whole can be negatively impacted
by reports and negative publicity related to
food safety and quality incidents. Our prospects,
business, results of operations and financial
condition can be negatively impacted if the
catering service industry experiences slower
growth from concerns over food safety and
quality related issues even if such concerns are
through no fault of our own or are not related

to our business.
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We have implemented a comprehensive set
of stringent food safety and quality control
standards and measures covering different
aspects of our operations, including (i)
procurement, (ii) food processing, (iii) storage,
(iv) logistics and (v) restaurant operations.
In particular, our quality control department
conducts, or engages third parties to conduct,
regular and ad hoc spot-checks on our
restaurants from time to time to identify and
rectify potential quality and food safety issues.
We also continuously provide training programs
to our restaurant staff to ensure that they have
clear understanding on operating procedures

and quality standards.
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Principal Risks and
Uncertainties

TERBRRIEERE

Description
i pud

Key Mitigations
TEERIEHE

Risks related to events that
disrupt the operations of
any of our restaurants or our

central kitchens

B B IR BB Sk R
FEENE AR ER

Our operations are vulnerable to interruption
by fires, floods, earthquakes, other natural or
man-made disasters and other events beyond
our control. Our business is also dependent on
prompt delivery and transportation of our food
ingredients and raw materials. Certain events,
such as adverse weather conditions, natural
disasters, severe traffic accidents and delays and
labor strikes, could also lead to delayed or lost
deliveries of food supplies to our processing
plants, logistics facilities and our restaurants. In
addition, fires, floods, earthquakes and terrorist
attacks may lead to evacuations and other
disruptions in our operations, which may also
prevent us from providing quality food and
service to customers, thereby affecting our

business and damaging our reputation.

In particular, the Pandemic has significantly
affected the global economy including
the economy of the PRC and has not been
completely contained. The Pandemic may

continue to affect our business operations.
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Amid the Pandemic, in order to effectively
monitor the supply chain, we requested that
all imported raw materials should possess five
certificates and one code, namely the Certificate
of Inspection and Quarantine for Entry Goods,
the Delivery Certificate from a Centralised
Warehouse, Covid-19 Nucleic Acid Negative
Test Report, Disinfection Certificate, Customs
Declaration form for Imported Goods, and
the attached traceability code, ensuring that
the food ingredients were not contaminated.
In addition, to avoid the disturbance to the
daily operation of various brands due to the
inability of suppliers to supply in exceptional
circumstances during the Pandemic, we actively
searched for alternative materials to ensure a

stable supply of raw materials.
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SUBSEQUENT EVENT

Particulars of important events affecting the Group that have occurred
subsequent to December 31, 2022 are stated in note 32 to the consolidated

financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2022 and the state
of the Group's financial position as at that date are set out in the consolidated

financial statements from pages 113 to 244 of this annual report.

Final Dividend

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HKD0.01 per
ordinary share for the year ended December 31, 2022 (for the year ended
December 31, 2021: a final dividend of HKD0.06 per ordinary share). The
proposed final dividend is declared and will be paid in Hong Kong Dollars.
Subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the AGM, the proposed
final dividend will be paid to the Shareholders whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company on Tuesday, June 13, 2023. The
proposed final dividend is expected to be distributed to the Shareholders on
Friday, June 30, 2023.

Distributable Reserves

As of December 31, 2022, the aggregate amount of distributable reserves of
the Company, calculated in accordance with the Companies Act, amounted
to RMB2,758,767,000 (as of December 31, 2021: RMB2,640,634,000).

Reserves

Changes to the reserves of the Group during the year ended December 31,
2022 are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity in this

annual report.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year ended December 31, 2022 are set out in note 11 to the

consolidated financial statements in this annual report.
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Share Capital

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the year
ended December 31, 2022 are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial

statements in this annual report.

Bank Borrowings and other Loans

Details of bank borrowings and other loans of the Group as at December 31,
2022 are set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements of this

annual report.

Donation

Donations made by the Group during the year ended December 31, 2022
was RMB848,372.2.

Financial Summary

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 12 to 13 of this
annual report. This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated

financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended December 31, 2022 and up to the date of this annual
report, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or

redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company.
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RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT SCHEME AND SHARE
OPTION SCHEME

Restricted Stock Unit Scheme

The Group's controlling shareholder, Mr. Guan Yihong, operated a share-
based incentive scheme (the “Old RSU Scheme”) under which the restricted
stock units (“RSUs") of Guangzhou Jiumaojiu were granted as share
incentives to qualified directors and employees of Guangzhou Jiumaojiu
and its subsidiaries (the “"RSU grantees”) through an employee shareholding
platform (the “RSU platform”), Guangzhou Maixuan, which was a shareholder
of Guangzhou Jiumaojiu prior to the Reorganization. The following is a
summary of the principal terms of the restricted stock units scheme (the “RSU
Scheme’), which largely mirror that of the Old RSU Scheme, approved and
adopted by the Board to govern the RSU granted under the Old RSU Scheme
approved and adopted by the board of directors of Guangzhou Jiumaojiu
on December 3, 2014. All RSUs granted under the Old RSU Scheme were
converted into the shares of MT BVI and MX BVI upon the completion of the
Reorganization on June 14, 2019. No restricted stock units have been granted
or will be granted under the RSU Scheme. No more RSUs will be granted
under the Old RSU Scheme. If any RSU lapses, the corresponding Shares will
be transferred to Mr. Guan Yihong or his wholly owned investment vehicle
after the Listing. The RSU Scheme will terminate as soon as all the RSUs

granted under the Old RSU Scheme lapse or vest.

Persons eligible to receive RSU(s) under the RSU Scheme are employees,
senior management, directors (whether executive or non-executive, but
excluding independent non-executive directors) or officers who have worked
in Guangzhou Jiumaojiu or any of its subsidiaries for two years or more (the
“RSU Eligible Persons”). The board of directors or the sole director (as the
case may be) of Guangzhou Jiumaojiu selects and approves the RSU Eligible
Persons, and the chairperson of the board of directors or the sole director (as
the case may be) of Guangzhou Jiumaojiu reserves the final right to confirm

the RSU Eligible Persons at his/her own discretion.
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Each participant in the RSU Scheme (the “RSU Participant”) shall remain in
service with Guangzhou Jiumaojiu or any of its subsidiaries for five years from
the date of granting the RSUs (the “Service Period”) and the RSUs shall vest
at the end of the Service Period. Once the vesting conditions underlying the
respective RSUs are met, the RSUs are considered duly and validly issued to
the holder, and free of restrictions on transfer. The RSUs granted pursuant to
the RSU Scheme are personal to each RSU Participant, and are not assignable

during the Service Period, unless otherwise permitted under the RSU Scheme.

There are certain circumstances the occurrence of which during the Service
Period will result in the lapse of the RSUs granted to the RSU Participant,
including, among others, (i) the RSU Participant ceases to be an employee
of Guangzhou Jiumaojiu or any of its subsidiaries; (ii) serious breach of
employment contract or any other internal guidelines by the RSU Participant;
and (iii) serious acts of misconduct committed by the RSU Participant leading

to loss suffered by Guangzhou Jiumaojiu.
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Details of the RSUs granted under the RSU Scheme and the movements in
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As of December 31, 2022, the total number of unvested RSUs was 7,053,710,
the number of Shares represented by which accounted for approximately

0.49% of the total number of Shares in issue at that date.

For the year ended December 31, 2022 and up to the date of this annual
report, no RSUs have been or would be granted by the Company pursuant to
the RSU Scheme.

Details of movements in the RSUs under the RSU Scheme are also set out in

note 26(a) to the consolidated financial statements.
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Share Option Scheme

On December 6, 2019, the Share Option Scheme was approved and adopted
by the then Shareholders. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to
provide our Company with a means of incentivising any director or any
employee or officer of any member of our Group who in the sole discretion
of our Board has contributed or will contribute to our Group (the “Eligible
Persons”) and retaining any employee or officer of any member of our
Group (the “Employees”), and to encourage Employees to work towards
enhancing the value of our Company and promote the long-term growth of
our Company. The Share Option Scheme will link the value of our Company
with the interests of the Eligible Persons, enabling the Eligible Persons and
our Company to develop together and promoting our Company's corporate

culture.

Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, our Board shall be entitled
at any time within the period of ten years after the Adoption Date to grant
options to any Eligible Person as our Board may in its absolute discretion
select. As at December 31, 2022, the remaining life of the Share Option
Scheme is approximately six years and eleven months. No offer shall be made
and no option shall be granted to any Eligible Persons in circumstances
prohibited by the Listing Rules at a time when the Eligible Persons would
or might be prohibited from dealing in the Shares by the Listing Rules or
by any applicable rules, regulations or law. In particular, no options may be
granted during the period commencing one month immediately preceding
the earlier of: (i) the date of the Board meeting (as such date is first notified
to the Stock Exchange in accordance with the Listing Rules) for the approval
of our Company'’s results for any year, half-year, quarterly or other interim
period; and (i) the deadline for our Company to publish its interim or annual
results announcement under the Listing Rules, and ending on the date of

actual publication of such results announcement.
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The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and all other share
schemes existing at such time of our Company shall not in aggregate exceed
133,340,000 Shares, being 10% of the total number of Shares in issue as at the
Listing Date (the “Scheme Mandate Limit"), which represents approximately
9.17% of the total number of Shares in issue as at the date of this annual
report. Options or awards lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme and (as the case may be) such other share schemes of our
Company will not be counted for the purpose of calculating the Scheme
Mandate Limit. Our Company may renew the Scheme Mandate Limit at
any time subject to prior Shareholders’ approval but in any event, the total
number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share schemes of our
Company under the limit as refreshed must not exceed 10% of the Shares in

issue as at the date of approval of the renewal of the Scheme Mandate Limit.

The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted and to be granted to each Eligible Person under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in any twelve-
month period shall not at the time of grant exceed 1% of the Shares in issue,
unless otherwise separately approved by Shareholders in general meeting

with such Eligible Person and his associates abstaining from voting.

An offer made to the Eligible Person is open for acceptance by the Eligible
Person for a period of 28 days from the date of the offer made. The Eligible
Persons shall accept the offer by returning the duly signed duplicate letter
clearly stating the number of Shares in respect of which the offer is accepted,
with payment of HK$1.00 as consideration for the acceptance of an option

granted to them.
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Subject to such terms and conditions as our Board may determine, there
is no minimum period for which an option must be held before it can be
exercised and no performance target needs to be achieved by the grantee

before the options can be exercised.

Subject to the terms of grant of any option, an option may be exercised
by the grantee of the option at any time during the option period and in
accordance with the vesting schedule and other terms specified in the offer.
No option may be vested more than ten years after the date of the offer
made. Subject to earlier termination by the Company in general meeting
or by the Board, the Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a

period of ten years commencing on the Adoption Date.

The exercise price shall be a price determined by our Board at our Board’s
absolute discretion and notified to an Eligible Person but in any event shall

be at least the higher of:

(i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily

quotation sheets on the date of the offer made;

(i) the average of the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of the offer made (provided that the new issue price
shall be used as the closing price for any business day falling within the
period before listing of the Shares where our Company has been listed

for less than five business days or at the date of the offer made); and
(iii) the nominal value of a Share on the date of the offer made.

Further details of the principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are set out

in Appendix IV to the Prospectus.
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The table below sets out the details of share options granted and

outstanding during the period from January 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022

TREHIR2022F1 B1HE20226F12A31 B H
] AR 15 B AR M B 52 HH R 1 SR 17 168 MO BB R o

under the Share Option Scheme: 15 -
Weighted
average
Closing price ~ closing price Fair
immediately immediately  value of
hefore the beforethe date  Shares at
dateof of exerciseof the date of
Outstanding Qutstanding ~ Evercise ~ grantduring options during grant
asat  Granted Exercised  Cancelled  Lapsed asat price the year theyear  during the
January 1, during Dateof  duing  during  during December31, (HKD (HKD (HKD year Vesting Exercise
Name of grantee 2002 the year grant  theyear  theyear theyear 202 perShare)  perShare)  per Share) (HKD) period period
Engg
FRER BREEGR ERRER
Rk g RURHH REdbmE RuAS
181R ER RER RER NANA ARE WWEE  TOMRE  WATE
RRARE HATE REARY RERE R #E AN HAGRE (BKED)  (BRED)  (BKED)  (En) #RE fiREs
Directors of the Company
KATES
Guan Yihong 200000 - 0ct 29,201 - - - 200000 024 - - - (ct 29,2021 - (ct 29,2022~
(ct 28,2022 (ct 28,2024
BhE ANEINALE WIENABA- N0EI0AVE-
WFI0ABE  NU4EI0ARA
- 250000 Nov 14,2022 - - - 250,000 1604 1654 - 1186707 Nov14202-  Nov14203-
Nov 13,203 Nov 13,2025
A0ENA14A WENAME- NBENAUA -
WBEIABA  WsENABH
Li Zhuoguang 20500 - (ct 28,2020 - - - 20500 179 - - - (ct 28,2000 - (ct 28,201 -
Oct 27,201 0ct 27,203
30y NNEI0ABR ANEI0ABA - N1EI10ABA-
MENATR  1BE0AVA
321,00 - (ct 29,201 - - - 321,00 2024 - - e (ct29,2021 - (ct29,2022-
(ct 282022 Qct 28, 2024
WEI0ABA WEI0ABA - N0EIALA -
NENABE - NUEI0ABA
- 45000 Nov 14,2022 - - = 445000 16,04 16.54 - 21238 Nov14202-  Nov1d 2003-
Nov 13,2023 Nov 13,2025
0E1A14A WENAIE- NBENAIMA -
WBENABE  05ENABA

—Z = 4% ANNUAL REPORT 2022 » 87



DIRECTORS’ REPORT

EEERE
Weighted
average
Closing price ~ closing price Fair
immediately ~ immediately  value of
hefore the beforethedate  Shares at
dateof of exerciseof ~the date of
Outstanding Qutstanding ~ Exercise ~ grant during options during grant
asat  Granted Exercised  Cancelled  Lapsed asat price the year theyear  during the
January 1, during Dateof  duing  duing  during December31, (HKD (HKD (HkD year Vesting Exercise
Name of grantee 2002 theyear grant  theyear  theyear theyear 002 perShare)  perShare)  per Share) (HkD) period period
Eng
FhRE BRERGRE FakHR
Rng Hng ReR®A BMANNE  ReAH
1818 RER WEA RER nANE GRE KUGE  TOMRE  HOYE
ARARS WAE HERRE Rup® R EE KX HAGR (BHED)  (8HED)  (SKED) (%0 L freaE
Cui Longyu 22500 = (ct 28,200 2 s = W50 179 = = = (ct 28,200- Oct 28,2021 -
Qct 27,2021 Qct 27,203
BT NE0ABE NOEABE- NNF10ABA-
WIENRTR  N3E0ANE
299,800 = 0ct 29,2021 = = = 299800 N4 = = = 0ct 29,2021 - (ct 29,2022 -
(ct 28,2022 (ct 28,204
NI510A9R WIEI0ABA- N0FI0ABA-
ADEINRBA  NUEI0ARA
- 400 Nov 14,2022 = = = 42000 1604 1654 - 2003061 Nov14,202-  Nov'14,203-
Nov 13,2023 Nov 13, 205
NENAUE NENAMB- NBEIAME-
ABENABE sENABE
He Chengyiao 289200 = 0ct 28,200  (289,200) = - £ 1798 - 200 = (ct 28,2020- (ct 28,2021 -
Qct 27,2001 0ct 27,2003
L N0EI0A28A NOE0ABE- NE0ABE-
0BT A3EI0AVA
389800 - 0ct 29,2001 - - - 389800 2024 - - - 02200 Oct9,00-
0ct 28,2022 (ct 28,2024
WIFI0AMA WIE0ABE- NE0ANE-
NNEOABE  NUE0ABA
- 538000 Nov 14,2022 - = = 538,000 1604 1654 - 2537%  Novi42022-  Novid 2083-
Nov 13,2013 Nov 13,205
ADENAMA WENAUA- NBF1AKA -

W3ENABE  WsENABA
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Closing price ~ closing price Fair
immediately  immediately  value of
hefore the beforethedate  Shares at
dateof of exerciseof the date of
Outstanding Qutstanding ~ Exercise ~ grant during options during grant
asat  Granted Exercised  Cancelled  Lapsed asat price the year theyear ~ during the
January 1, during Dateof  duing  duing  during December31, (HKD (HKD (HKD year Vesting Exercise
Name of grantee 002 theyear grant  theyear  theyear the year 002 perShare)  perShare)  per Share) (HkD) period period
EhgE
FREE BREEGE EARHR
Rng Mg ReAS BMANNE  ReAH
1818 RER WEA RER nANE GRE KUGE  TOMHE  HOYE
ARARE WATE HEARE Rep® R EE AR HAGR (BEED) (5HED)  (SKEn) (R0 L frEas
Employees of the Group
v L
Employees of 834700 = 0ct28,200  (392000) - ) 414800 179 = 017 = (ct 28,2020- Oct 28,2021 -
the Group Qct 27, 2021 Qct 27, 203-
T58ES N0E0ABE N0E0ABE- NFI0ABA-
WIENRYA W3E0AVA
2547500 = 0ct29,201  (120900) - (3700) 2202900 2024 = 209 = (ct 29,201 - (ct29,2022-
Oct 28,2022 Qct 28, 2024
WIF10A9A WIEI0AVA- NNEABE-
ADENABE  NUEI0ARE
- 403000 Nov 14,2022 - - (1590000 4054000 1604 1654 - 18918000 Now14202-  Nov'4203-
Nov 13,203 Now 13,2005
NNENAUB NENAMB- NBEIAUE-
NBEIABE  NsEIABE
Total 5327,200 5,868,000 (802,100) - (4106000 9982500
it

Subject to the vesting conditions, the share options granted on October RIRER B &M - 72020810 H28H ~ 2021410

28, 2020, October 29, 2021 and November 14, 2022 under the Share Option 298 K2022F 11 A 14 BIREBERETEIRE
Scheme are vested on the date ending 12 months after October 28, 2020, K RERRHE -+ D RIF 20209108288 ~ 20214F10
October 29, 2021, and November 14, 2022, respectively. A20BR2022F 1M1 A48+ —@ERERER
BE o
LB

As of January 1, 2022, the number of Shares in respect of which options may HE2022F1 A1 8 - AIRIBERETSI#E—F
further be granted under the Share Option Scheme was 128,012,800. ¥ HO RS AR PO R I BR 9 1B /% 128,012,800
A& o
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As of December 31, 2022, the number of Shares in respect of which options
had been granted and remained outstanding under the Share Option
Scheme was 9,982,500, representing 0.69% of the total number of Shares in
issue at that date, and the number of Shares that may be issued in respect
of share options granted under the Share Option Scheme during the year
ended December 31, 2022 divided by weighted average number of Shares in
issue for the year ended December 31, 2022 is 0.69%. The number of Shares
in respect of which options may further be granted under the Share Option
Scheme was 122,555,400, representing 8.43% of the total number of Shares

in issue at that date.

As at the date of this annual report, the number of Shares available for issue
under the Share Option Scheme amounts to 132,238,300 Shares, representing
approximately 9.09% of the total number of issued Shares.

Further information of the Share Option Scheme and the value of share
options granted during the year ended December 31, 2022 are set out in
note 26(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended December 31, 2022 and up to the Latest
Practicable Date were:

HZE2022F 128318 ' BREBRETESERTE
B A ARTTEBAREATS R AR EL B 49,982,500
I EEBEEITRMBER0.69% « MREL
F2022F 12 A31 B It FEREERETEIRE
BRI AT R ATRE BT TR D LB R IAE =
202212 A31 HIEFERE BT MD NEFH
H50.69% o IRIRBRERT ST — PR LB
REREFT S R AR D B 5122,555,4008% © (5&
HE BTN BEN843% ©

RAFRAE - RIFERE ST TR
B8 E A132,238,30008 % - (hEBITRMH R
£#499.09% °

BRETEIZE—PEREREE2022F12 A
JIHLEFEERHBEREZEESNGEETHE
SRR MIFE26(D) ©

S

REZE2022F 12831 BEFEREEREAT
BHN=ESA

Name Position/Title

e B

GUAN Yihong Executive Director, chief executive officer and chairman of the Board
ERR WITES  (THRESGFESFEER

LI Zhuoguang Executive Director and chief financial officer
FRH HITEFREFEHMBEE

CUI' Longyu Executive Director

EFRT WITES

HE Chengxiao Executive Director

Rl WITES

DENG Tao Independent non-executive Director

iy BIUFNTES

TANG Zhihui Independent non-executive Director
B B IEMITEE

ZHU Rui Independent non-executive Director

RE BYERITES

In accordance with the Articles of Association, Mr. Guan Yihong, Ms. Tang
Zhuhui and Ms. Zhu Rui will retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.
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The biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Company as at the Latest Practicable Date are set out in the section headed

“Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report.

Directors’ Service Contracts and Letters of Appointment

Each of our executive Directors entered into a service contract with our
Company on December 6, 2019, except for Mr. He Chengxiao who entered
into a service contract with our Company on July 2, 2020. We have issued
letters of appointment to each of our independent non-executive Directors.
The service contract with each of our executive Directors and the letter of
appointment with each of our independent non-executive Directors were for
an initial fixed term of three years commencing from December 6, 2019 and
were expired on December 5, 2022, except for Mr. He Chengxiao's service
contract which is for an initial fixed term of three years commencing from
July 2, 2020, and except for Ms. Tang Zhihui's and Ms. Zhu Rui's letters of
appointment which are for an initial fixed term of three years commencing
from April 16, 2021. The Directors' service contracts of our executive Directors
and the letters of appointment of our independent non-executive Directors
which had expired on December 5, 2022, were renewed with the same
terms. The service contracts and the letters of appointment are subject to

termination in accordance with their respective terms.

The service contracts may be renewed in accordance with our Articles of
Association and the applicable Listing Rules. None of our Directors proposed
for re-election at the AGM has a service contract with members of our Group
that is not determinable by our Group within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Confirmation of Independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from each of the independent non-
executive Directors (being Mr. Deng Tao, Ms. Tang Zhihui and Ms. Zhu Rui),
and the Company considers such Directors to be independent for the year
ended December 31, 2022.
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RIS AITE RN 2019512 A6 B EARRA R
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Directors’ and Controlling Shareholders’ Interests in
Transactions, Arrangements or Contracts of Significance

Save for the related party transactions as disclosed in note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements and the connected transactions as
disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions” in this directors’
report, there was no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director and/or any of his/her connected entity had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, and there was no transaction, arrangement or
contract of significance between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and
the Company’s controlling shareholders or any of its subsidiaries, subsisted at

the end of, or at any time during the year ended December 31, 2022.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures

As at December 31, 2022, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which have been notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they were taken or deemed
to have taken under such provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded
in the register required to be kept pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the

Model Code were as follows:

92 e JIUMAOJIU INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED NENEFRIZERBR A R

EERERRRREARS - ZHHE
WP AR

MERE B HREMF30MEZENBEBE TR S R
AERGHREBERS ] —HMEENBER
S8  ARRKEFEMMBARBEITIES
R/ SREEMREERNE RS E NS (
WEESEE) WENEARS - THSEL
AR R) S E AT ] B B A R) B AR A B2 AR AR R sk
HAMWMB AR ERT IR EE 2022612 A31
B 1FF [E 45 R ok ax B3R (T S R TR 4B e (X (]
BARS  RHHEL -

EERSRTERAERRSD - HER®D
REEENERN LR

20226128310 - EFERARFSRITERA
BRARRSEEMAEEER (TR R FH L
EEBIEXVER) MR « BRERG & EREE T
BEREFES RAEROIEXVEE7 %85 &4
EARNT R RATEER AR (BIERIEES
B KO BBEX SRS WRAEAD
BamRKAR)  HE RN BIEES &R &M
FINHKAGTENECMANERRAS - %E
BBIEAESF R BT AE AR A B KRB TR 2
BRBT -



DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEEHRE

(1) Long positions in ordinary Shares of the Company: (1) RARAREBRVEE :

Approximate

percentage of

Number of shareholding

Name of Director Nature of Interest Shares held interest®™

EEgS it E FEROBE  RESOEI O

Guan Yihong? Interest in controlled corporation 542,945,000 37.34%

BRR R HLEE S

Notes: Bt 53

(1) The percentage represents the number of ordinary Shares interested divided (1) BORRGEERDLEIREE BRUARAD
by the number of the Company’s issued shares as at December 31, 2022. FIR2022% 12 A31 BB RTIRS A -

(2) GYH BVIis owned as to 1% voting shares by Mr. Guan Yihong and as to 99% (2) GYH BVIERE R R L LA 1% A=
non-voting shares by GYH LIMITED. GYH LIMITED is wholly-owned by M.T.B., a B% 15 & F GYH LIMITED#E /5 99% 1 4% 15 2 #E 1y
nominee shareholder appointed by J.P. Morgan (in its capacity as the trustee B&f ° GYH LIMITEDEJ.P. Morgan (LARLYEA
of the Guan Family Trust). The Guan Family Trust is a discretionary trust ERRGEIZTANER) ZEENEZER
established by Mr. Guan Yihong as the settlor for the benefit of his family HEMTB LB ERRESTILERE
members. Accordingly, GYH BVI is controlled as to 100% by Mr. Guan Yihong HE(EAPEBRFA)UEREKRE &S
and Mr. Guan Yihong is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by HZARTHEEEEE c Bt GYH BVIERE
GYH BVI. BREEED100% s - BRAELEEE

RGYH BV B IR B IR h HE A ez o
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(2) Long positions in underlying Shares of the Company:

Share options - physically settled unlisted equity derivatives

(2) READBHEBERDHTR :

BRE -BUEEFLTRENTE
TA

Approximate

Number of percentage of
underlying shareholding
Name of Director Nature of Interest Shares held interestNote)
EEpnA e FEHEEROBE RESHBDLL®D
Guan Yihong Beneficial owner 450,000 0.03%
ERE EmEEA
Li Zhuoguang Beneficial owner 988,700 0.07%
FH E=EBA
Cui Longyu Beneficial owner 944,300 0.06%
EFTF EREBA
He Chengxiao Beneficial owner 927,800 0.06%
faI 2L EnlEEA

Details of the shares options granted by the Company are set out under
the section “Restricted Stock Unit Scheme and Share Option Scheme —

Share Option Scheme”in this directors’ report.

Note: The percentage represents the number of underlying Shares interested
divided by the number of the Company’s issued shares as at December 31,
2022.

Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2022, none of the Directors
or the chief executive of the Company had or was deemed to have any
interest or short position in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of
the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) that was required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they have taken or deemed to have taken
under such provisions of the SFO), or required to be recorded in the register
required to be kept pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares

As at December 31, 2022, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the
following persons (not being a Director or chief executive of the Company)
had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares which fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:

DIRECTORS' REPORT
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FTERRREMATHRESG RBBERHD
HER AR

M2022F 128310 - MEBSFAM - U TAL
(WIESRARARRBITHAE) REHD A
RARR (5 P B BRI B R B R KB B XVERSE 2
K3 EIEXAARR RHETED DN AR RIREE
EH RIEKRDIZE336146AFENE R MARRE
mAR

Approximate

percentage of

Number interest in
Name of shareholder Nature of Interest of Shares our Company®
PUNGTE:
IRER I & EEME R BB BMAOBEDLES
GYH BVI™ Beneficial owner 542,945,000 (Long position) 37.34%
GYH BVI? EmEAA (#F2)
Yang Sanyin® Interest of Spouse 543,395,000 (Long position) 37.37%
B=R? fl B (F&)
Notes: ks

1. GYH BVI is wholly-owned by Mr. Guan Yihong. Such interests were also disclosed
as the interests of Mr. Guan Yihong in the above section headed “Directors’ and
Chief Executive's Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures”.

2. Ms. Yang Sanyin, the spouse of Mr. Guan Yihong, is deemed under the SFO to be
interested in these 543,395,000 Shares in which Mr. Guan Yihong is deemed to be
interested.

3. The percentage represents the number of ordinary Shares interested divided by
the number of the Company’s issued shares as at December 31, 2022.

Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2022, the Directors were not
aware of any persons (who were not Directors or chief executive of the
Company) who had an interest or short position in the Shares or underlying
Shares which would fall to be disclosed under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or which would be required, pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to

be entered in the register referred to therein.

1. GYHBVHAEBERRILEZEMS - BEERIMER
ERREENEZN EXESREBATHAER
RERG - HEERG REEBNER AR | —&
W o

2. MEFEHRHAERN  S=8HRZt (BEREEE
WERE) HEARER R TEWNRAEEERN
543,395,000 %% 1 F B s ©

3. BORREEEZNTBREE BRUAKRA AR
202212 A3 BB BEITRDEE -

B EXFRIREE SN - 20226128318 » 8%
WARHFBERATL (W IEEERARR T @ RITH
AB) R SR RIRR (D o B BB IR 5 5 R A
EAEBI B XVERE 2 & 35 BB SR 7R sk IR 15 75 5
KA RGP E336 KA A Z Gl & R R

e

HERRAR o
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or

existed during the year ended December 31, 2022.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association,
although there are no restrictions against such rights under the laws in the
Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a

pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to the

Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company's securities.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

Our Directors believe that the ability to attract, motivate and retain a
sufficient number of qualified employees including restaurant managers and
kitchen assistants is of significant importance to the long-term successful
development of our Group. The remuneration package for our employees
generally includes basic wages, variable wages, bonuses and other staff
benefits. We made contributions to mandatory employee benefit plans
(including pension, work-related injury benefits, maternity insurance,
medical and unemployment benefit plans and housing fund). We also
granted restricted stock units and share options as share incentives to
qualified directors and employees under the RSU Scheme and the Share
Option Scheme, respectively, details of both schemes are set out under the
section headed “Restricted Stock Unit Scheme and Share Option Scheme”
in this directors’ report, to motivate our employees. In addition, our brand
managers and their team members hold certain equity interests in the brands
they manage, details of which are set out in “Business — Organizational
Structure — Brand-specific Management” in the Prospectus. Our Group has
established a remuneration committee to review the policy and structure
of the remuneration for our Directors and senior management and make
recommendations on the remuneration packages of individual Directors
and senior management. In general, our Group determines the emolument
payable to our Directors based on each Director's time commitment and
responsibilities, salaries paid by comparable companies as well as the

employment conditions elsewhere in our Group.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Particulars of the employee benefits of the Group are set out in note 5(b) to

the consolidated financial statements.
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Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual remuneration of
the senior management by band for the year ended December 31, 2022 is set

out below:

Remuneration band

RIBEEERTRTARXFEE 156K SRE

BEREE2022F12A31BIEFERFAEEE S
ZEEFHME T

Number of senior management

E240 kol EREERE A
Nil to RMB1,000,000 3

0= AR 1,000,0007T

RMB1,000,001 to RMB1,500,000 1

AR #1,000,001 TLE AR 1,500,0007T

RMB1,500,001 to RMB2,000,000 2
AR¥1,500,001 7TE A R#2,000,0007T

RMB2,000,001 to RMB2,500,000 2

AR2,000,001 7TE AR 2,500,0007T

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the Latest Practicable Date and based on the information that is
publicly available to the Company and to the knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has maintained minimum public float of 25% as required under the

Listing Rules.

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE THE COMPANY’S SECURITIES
AND EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed under the sections headed “Restricted Stock Unit Scheme
and Share Option Scheme” and “Connected Transactions” in this directors’
report, at no time during the year ended December 31, 2022 was the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors or chief executive of the Company or their respective associates to
subscribe for securities of the Company or any of its associated corporations
as defined in the SFO or to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of Shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate, nor did the

Company enter into any equity-linked agreement.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS'
INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Mr. Guan Yihong owned Machang Restaurant before its deregistration on
January 24, 2022. Machang Restaurant was not transferred to our Group as
Guangzhou Municipal Government did not allow any change of ownership
in the land users or occupiers on the land where Machang Restaurant was

located due to land-use planning.

The Cooperation Agreement expired on December 31, 2021 and was not
renewed by the parties. Machang Restaurant was not accounted for or
consolidated in the consolidated accounts of our Group as a subsidiary.
Upon the expiry of the Cooperation Agreement and up to the date of its

deregistration, Machang Restaurant had ceased operations.

Save as disclosed above and save for their respective interests in the Group,
none of the Directors and the controlling shareholders of the Company was
interested in any business which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group for the year ended
December 31, 2022 which would require disclosure under Rule 8.10 of the

Listing Rules.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

We have received annual written confirmations from the controlling
shareholders of the Company, consisting of Mr. Guan Yihong and GYH BV,
of the compliance with the provisions of the Deed of Non-competition by
such controlling shareholders and their close associates. The independent
non-executive Directors have reviewed the compliance with the Deed of
Non-competition during the year ended December 31, 2022 based on the
information and confirmation provided by or obtained from the controlling
shareholders, and were satisfied that our controlling shareholders have duly

complied with the Deed of Non-competition.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, the Directors, auditors and other
officers of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets of the Company from and against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them shall or
may incur or sustain by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or
about the execution of their duty or supposed duty in their respective offices.
Such provisions were in force throughout the year ended December 31, 2022

and are currently in force.

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors’
liabilities in respect of legal actions that may be brought against the Directors

during the year ended December 31, 2022.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE GLOBAL OFFERING
AND THE TOP-UP PLACING

Our shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on January
15, 2020. A total of 333,400,000 ordinary shares comprising the Global
Offering with nominal value of US$0.0000001 each of the Company were
issued at HK$6.60 per Share for a total of approximately HK$2,200 million.
The net proceeds raised by the Company from the Global Offering is
approximately HK$2,057.9 million. On February 7, 2020, the Joint Global
Coordinators exercised the Over-allotment Option granted by the Company
under the Global Offering in full and pursuant to which the Company issued
and allotted an aggregate of 50,010,000 additional Shares at HKS$6.60 per
Share for a total of approximately HK$330 million. The net proceeds raised
by the Company from the issue of Shares pursuant to the exercise of the
Over-allotment Option in full is approximately HK$315 million. Details of the
Group's use of proceeds from the Global Offering and the exercise of the
Over-allotment Option in full as at March 10, 2023 are set out in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis — Use of Proceeds — Use of

Proceeds from the Global Offering” in this annual report.
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The Company entered into a placing and subscription agreement with GYH
BVI, three placing agents and certain other parties on July 16, 2020. The
Company successfully raised total net proceeds of approximately HK$829.5
million through the top-up placing of 70,000,000 Shares to not less than six
professional, institutional and/or individual investors at the placing price of
HKD11.99 per Share on July 30, 2020. Details of the Group's use of proceeds
from the top-up placing as at March 10, 2023 are set out in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis — Use of Proceeds — Use of

Proceeds from the Subscription”in this annual report.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

There was no connected transaction or continuing connected transaction
undertaken by the Company during the year ended December 31, 2022
and up to the date of this annual report which was required to be disclosed
pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The related party transaction
disclosed in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements did not
constitute connected transactions or continuing connected transactions of

the Company.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The AGM will be held on Friday, June 2, 2023. A notice convening the AGM
and all other relevant documents will be published and dispatched to the

Shareholders in the manner required by the Listing Rules in due course.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to determine the entitlement of the Shareholders to attend and
vote at the AGM, the register of members will be closed from Tuesday, May
30, 2023 to Friday, June 2, 2023, both dates inclusive, during which period
no transfer of share will be registered. In order to be eligible to attend and
vote at the AGM, unregistered holders of Shares shall ensure that all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Link Market
Services (Hong Kong) Pty Limited, at Suite 1601, 16/F., Central Tower, 28
Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Monday, May 29, 2023.

In order to determine the entitlement of the Shareholders to receive the
proposed final dividend, the register of members will be closed from Friday,
June 9, 2023 to Tuesday, June 13, 2023, both dates inclusive, during which
period no transfer of share will be registered. In order to be eligible to receive
the proposed final dividend, unregistered holders of Shares shall ensure that
all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’'s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Link
Market Services (Hong Kong) Pty Limited, at Suite 1601, 16/F., Central Tower,
28 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m.
on Thursday, June 8, 2023.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s corporate governance principles and practices are set out in

the Corporate Governance Report from pages 48 to 66 of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company has reviewed the accounting
principles and policies adopted by the Group and discussed the Group's
risk management, internal controls and financial reporting matters with the
management. The audit committee has reviewed the audited consolidated

financial statements of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2022.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2022 have been
audited by KPMG who shall retire at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution will be proposed at the

forthcoming AGM to re-appoint KPMG as the auditor of the Company.

Save as otherwise stated, all references above to other sections, reports or

notes in this annual report form part of this directors’ report.

On behalf of the Board
GUAN Yihong

Chairman

March 21, 2023

DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEEHRE

ARRBERZECEBHASEMEMEETR
EJ&E&%M&E@ BENRASERREE
NBEERMBREEE - BREESEEEH
AEBEHE202212 A31 B L FENKEEZLS
B RE -

¥ B

HZE202F12A31BEFENBKHRREBAES
REMEBMER 25 RN EBAE
REERFRBAFAE LRELEERBRBERE

B o RARIBREERFRAFASRE —
IE/?% S RABENEZEAEETHEAMEBHARAE
N AZEEAD o

BRAJRAEN  EXMEREANFERSEE
B  MEXMFOENAESTGRSE — -E‘B

77 °

RREZFE
FE
ERE

20233 H21H

ZZT - FFW ANNUAL REPORT 2022 103



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B BN R

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of Jiumaojiu
International Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Jiumaojiu
International Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the
Group”) set out on pages 113 to 244, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of

significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2022
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs") issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
("IASB") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(“the Code") together with any ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the consolidated financial statements in the Cayman lIslands, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have

obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional judgement, was of
most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. The matter was addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion

thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on the matter.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B ZHEN R E

FERFZER

RREZSRERERMANERABERME
ARG EMBRRETHERTR/EEN
ZIH - HIEH S M BRRETERERR
BEZFE BEHMUNGEEVBRRTLKE
R ZATHRAREZEREBREHRER

AEEENERAREEUARYE  BERRENETRE

Assessing potential impairment of right-of-use assets and property, plant and equipment in restaurants

EREGAEIREN 1 REI138E 140 EHI S -

Refer to note 11 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 138-140.

The Key Audit Matter
ARELER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMESKTEEZSEANSRX

Local economic conditions, competition from other restaurants
impact the performance of the Group's restaurants. Therefore,
there is a risk that the recoverable amount of right-of-
use assets and property, plant and equipment of certain
restaurants of the Group falls below the future net cash flows
to be generated from the operations of such restaurants or
from disposal of related right-of-use assets and property, plant
and equipment.

BB  REAMERNBRFZEEEETERBNK
BBt FEESEETEENEREEEALYE - B
ERREHIHRESBERNEEZEERMELENRKRRS
mEFHEINEREERAEEEURYE  BE XX ENE

)
N

Our audit procedures to assess the potential impairment of
right-of-use assets and property, plant and equipment in
restaurants included the following:
BMHEEREREEEARYDE - BEKEHELRERN
BRZEFOAT

understanding and evaluating the design and
implementation of key internal controls over the
impairment assessment;

WA L RT R A R ER AR AR EH R LE
B

evaluating the methodology adopted by management
to identify Impairment Indicators with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing accounting standards;
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Assessing potential impairment of right-of-use assets and property, plant and equipment in restaurants

AEEENERAREEEARYE  BERRENEERE

Refer to note 11 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 138-140.

BRAZEEEIREN T RE138E 140 AT FTHFE °

The Key Audit Matter
BEREEZERE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BPEELTEEZSENSR

Each of the restaurants of the Group is identified as a cash
generating unit ("CGU"). Management reviews the performance
of individual restaurants at the end of each reporting period
to identify if there is any indicators of impairment of assets
("Impairment Indicators”). Such indicators include:

BB EEENEREERNA—ERSELSEML ([RE
EEE])  EEENSWEAREHERNEBHRE - A
BB AEEMEERERER (DREEE] - Z5EEE
EEE

- operating losses sustained in a specific period of time by
restaurants that have been in operation for more than

three months; or

- REBEE=AANEENPTHREXLLER X

- management plans to close a restaurant.

- EEEFEMEEA-REEE -

with the assistance of our internal valuation specialists,
assessing the methodology adopted by management
in its preparation of the discounted cash flow forecasts
with reference to the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards;
ERMASEEERNHH T - 2ERITET LR
E o RHEEREARHEARE R ERASARAN T
bz

comparing the actual performance and results of
selected restaurants for the current year with forecasts
adopted by management in the prior year and making
enquiries of management as to the reasons for any
significant variations identified and considering if there
was any indicator of management bias;
RETEBRAFENERREREEHEEEEN
F—FERAE TR EITLLE - I BEAT BB E ]
EAEZRNEREELENR  UERERSHETMY
SERNEEERE
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Assessing potential impairment of right-of-use assets and property, plant and equipment in restaurants

FEEENERAEEEUARYE  BERRENEERE

Refer to note 11 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 138-140.

BRAZEEBREN T RE138E 140 BT HFE °

The Key Audit Matter
HRERER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMEELPEEZSENSR

The recoverable amount of each of the restaurants with
Impairment Indicators is assessed at the end of each
reporting period. The recoverable amount of each CGU is
determined by management on a restaurant-by-restaurant
basis based on the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value-in-use calculation of the relevant CGU.
Based on the recoverable amounts derived from value-in-
use calculations, the Group recognised an accumulated
impairment loss of RMB37,541,000 as at 31 December 2022
and an impairment loss of RMB7,167,000 for the year then
ended.
BRERENERERNIKRE BN S RENRET
FHE  RREEABUNAINESHEREEERANT
BEREEXAEFEEAReELEUEREBZER
EUEEEERELEET - REEAEEFESLD
el &R - EEEBEREE2022F12A31 B RFHR
BEEEBARE37,541,000t REBEZ B LFERRERE
AR¥7,167,0007T °

The value-in-use model used to assess the recoverable
amount of each CGU involves significant management
estimation and judgement, in particular in determining
the key assumptions adopted in the cash flow forecasts,
including future revenue, food costs, staff costs and the
discount rate applied.

AR REELEMHAIKRE S BEAERNEREE
BRESERERERE G LA  LEREEETREM
ERARKRANBRRR - BRERKEA - B@mKA
BIARRERNITIREK o

evaluating the appropriateness of key assumptions
adopted by management in the discounted cash flow
forecasts, including growth rate of revenue and major
costs to revenue ratio by comparing to recent financial
performance, and management’s budgets approved by
the board of directors for the operations in 2023;
BRI BRAMEETSRHENEEERM
2023 FMEERE SIAEEERMREERER
AP RANBERRR (BRERABRERFEZXARY
WAL ) 8@ E It

with the assistance of our internal valuation specialists,
assessing the discount rates used in the cash flow
forecasts by benchmarking against other similar listed
catering groups; and
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AEEENERAREEEARYE  BERRENEERE

Assessing potential impairment of right-of-use assets and property, plant and equipment in restaurants

BRAZEEEIREN T RE138E 140 AT FTHFE °

Refer to note 11 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 138-140.

The Key Audit Matter
BEREEZERE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BPEELTEEZSENSR

We identified assessing potential impairment of right-of-
use assets and property, plant and equipment in restaurants
as a key audit matter due to the significance of right-of-use
assets and property, plant and equipment to the consolidated
financial statements and the significant degree of management
judgement involved in forecasting future cashflows, which are
inherently uncertain and could be subject to management
bias.

HRNEREEEARYE - BB RREHEEMBEHRR
WEEMURRKRRRETRA (FEEENTHREMLE
AREXIINEEEBRANTE) DS REXNEIREHE -
BAETHEEERAREEURDE  BERRENE
FEREB R R —TRREREZEIR

performing a sensitivity analysis of key assumptions and
considering the resulting impact on the impairment
charge for the year and whether there were any indicators
of management bias.
ETHERBROBRESMEEREYFEREE RN
TR EEFEEANERERANTR -
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all the information included in the annual report, other than the

consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion

thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or

otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report

that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs issued
by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but

to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their

responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability

to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken

on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of

internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of

the Group's internal control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by

the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to

cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group

audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify

during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable,

actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B2 HE RS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B2 HE RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of

such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s

report is Lam Kai Wa.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

21 March 2023

112 © JIUMAOJIU INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED N E N EFRZEAR B R A A

REMMBERGEMBERRNE
F )

EFREZZEBEBNEET  RMABEEHAX
HRASEVBRERNEZRLSEZTRALBER
MREZEENEE - IS ERMINZERED
BETHAZEEE @ EERIOERE AR
FENARBE  HEZINBERT - BER
MR EPHAXBEEENAEER RS IETEY
REBEETHREFARAN ARG - HPIRRT
FEERMIMBMERAZEENER TAERI -

REIZBEN IR E B IZ R BARMRE -

EERETHESEEAR
HEETED
BAEFIR

EFTE 105
KFRESHE

20233 A21H



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

AN
N

= N2

Hm

for the year ended 31 December 2022 £ 2022F 12 831 B IEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (A A B #ZI7R)

2022 2021
20225 20214F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
HaE ARBT T AREETTT
Revenue WA 3 4,005,722 4,179,704
Other revenue HABKA 4 71,348 64,236
Raw materials and consumables used i IR 8 R FE#4 5(e) (1,447,132) (1,537,366)
Staff costs BIRAR 5(b) (1,133,857) (1,056,868)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEENE 5(e) (403,013) (342,546)
Other rentals and related expenses Hb & KRR 5(e) (83,248) (96,885)
Depreciation and amortisation of HtEER
other assets e REE 5(e) (190,268) (159,142)
Utility expenses KEMX (148,668) (132,352)
Travelling and related expenses Z ik AR (25,537) (23,624)
Advertising and promotion expenses EERERRE (55,546) (47,722)
Other expenses HAbpAx 5(d) (316,124) (259,814)
Share of (losses)/profits of associates FE(REE & A BN (E518), 5 T 14 (3,264) 984
Other net (losses)/income Hith (F518), W $ 5 5(c) (87,805) 11,422
Finance costs BE KA 5(a) (81,110) (75,307)
Impairment losses of property, plant and YIS - KB R e A K
equipment and right-of-use assets EREEERERE 5(e) (7,167) (18,800)
Profit before taxation RRBE A& R 5 94,331 505,920
Income tax FriE#t 6 (38,721) (133,767)
Profit for the year FEmF 55,610 372,153
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

mEBER

for the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z 2022 12 A31HIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi) (LAA R #ZI7R)

2022 2021
2022 % 20214F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Hat AR®T T AR¥EFTT
Attributable to: U TR :

Equity shareholders of the Company PAWNGI L2 49,280 339,936
Non-controlling interests FEPERR 6,330 32,217
Profit for the year FEBF 55,610 372,153

Earnings per share SREF 10
Basic (RMB) EXR(ARET) 0.03 0.23
Diluted (RMB) e (AR%T) 0.03 0.23

The notes on pages 122 to 244 form part of these financial statements. Details

of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company attributable to

the profit for the year are set out in note 27(d).
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
HitzE k=R

for the year ended 31 December 2022 £ 2022F 12 831 B IEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (A A B #ZI7R)

S AR

2022 2021
2022 % 20214F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
HaE AR®T T AREETTT
Profit for the year FERF 55,610 372,153
Other comprehensive income for the year FEH 2 mE K 9
Items that will not be reclassified to B TrEEF D EEEmAEE
profit or loss:
Equity investments at fair value through BN ER AEMEE RS
other comprehensive income — R E —
net movement in fair value reserve N EFEZ S
(non-recycling) JFER (PATEEED) (126,444) 132,771
Items that may be reclassified BEEAEENHEE
subsequently to profit or [oss: EmfiEE -
Exchange differences on translation of B R B i A SN E TS
financial statements of operations BT s BB i 22 58
outside the Mainland China 213,295 (79,770)
Other comprehensive income for FEHMEZEKE
the year 86,851 53,001
Total comprehensive income for the year FEZHEUREEAEE 142,461 425,154
Attributable to: BT :
Equity shareholders of the Company PAWNGI L2 8 136,131 392,937
Non-controlling interests FEEIRE 6,330 32,217
Total comprehensive income for the year FEZ2HINZAEE 142,461 425,154
The notes on pages 122 to 244 form part of these financial statements. FI22EEF 244 B MM B A B HREK A —
o o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e IR &

as at 31 December 2022 22022412 A31H

(Expressed in Renminbi) (LAA R #ZI7R)

2022 2021
2022%F 20214
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
HiaE ARET T AREETF T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment YIZ - R ki 11 736,623 572,178
Right-of-use assets RS E 11 1,570,992 1,444,128
Intangible assets BEEE 12 24,562 18,389
Interests in associates REEE D BRI 14 10,066 13,085
Other non-current financial assets HtIERBemiE 15 153,864 320,602
Deferred tax assets REF B & B 25(b) 115,015 82,219
Rental deposits HERS 83,383 75,599
Other non-current assets HIERBEE 16 127,336 49,466
2,821,841 2,575,666
Current assets REBEE
Inventories ra 17 118,099 70,750
Trade and other receivables B 5 M E b KGR 18 505,456 408,958
Restricted bank deposits SR FIERTTIE R 19(a) 10,563 1,792
Deposits with banks with original maturity ~ RZEIHIABBE=1E A
date over three months RITFER 19(a) 852,241 735,840
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 19(a) 1,098,872 1,342,090
2,585,231 2,559,430
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade and other payables B 5 R E M fETFRIE 20 460,364 369,730
Contract liabilities BHEE 21 4,214 5,871
Lease liabilities HEAE 22 442,913 390,685
Bank loans RITEK 24 30,000 =
Current taxation BNHEARS 18 25(a) 17,467 38,259
954,958 804,545
Net current assets RENEERE 1,630,273 1,754,885
The notes on pages 122 to 244 form part of these financial statements. FI22EEF 24BN EBN AT BHREKA —
o o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

4 A
b2 0 =]

BRI R

as at 31 December 2022 722022412 A31H
(Expressed in Renminbi) (AN ER¥ZIR)

2022 2021
20224 20214F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
HiaE ARET T AREETTT
Non-current liabilities knRBERE
Lease liabilities HESE 22 1,207,438 1,114,106
Provisions B 23 37,949 31,645
Deferred tax liabilities EIEFRIEEE 25(b) 7,595 47,204
1,252,982 1,192,955
NET ASSETS EEFE 3,199,132 3,137,596
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXREE
Share capital &N 27(a) 1 1
Reserves it 27(c) 3,174,281 3,082,573
Total equity attributable to equity AATEERREGERERE
shareholders of the Company 3,174,282 3,082,574
Non-controlling interests R R 24,850 55,022
TOTAL EQUITY S 3,199,132 3,137,596

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 21 March

2023.

GUAN Yihong
ERAR
Chairman
E

The notes on pages 122 to 244 form part of these financial statements.

Li Zhuoguang
%

Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer

HITEFREBHNBE

E

e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
meEREER

for the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE2022F 12 431 B IEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi) (LAA R #ZI7R)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

NG
Share- Fair value
based reserve Non-
Share Share Capital ~ payments  Statutory  Exchange (non- Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve  recycling) profits Total  interests equity
D)
RER NHERME

Rx RIVEE AARE  GRRE iRER  EXRBE (TWER)  REBEN Bt REs 28R

Note  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBO0O0  RMB0O0  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBO0O  RMBO000  RMBO0O

M ARETR ARETR ARETR ARBTRT ARETT ARMTT ARMTR ARETR ARETR ARBTT ARETR
note 27(3)  note 27(c)i)  note 27(c)fi) - note 27(c)fii)  note 27(c)iv)  note 27(c)(y)  note 27(c)(w)
Hitore) MEaon W HEzom KEzon  KEnow  BEaom

Balance at 1 January 2021 20215151 BiKR I 288455 2 W03 T (3631) 300 MOST 3016555 43847 3060402
Changes in equity for 2021 RN ENERERD
Profit for the year eyl - - - - - - - 3996 3399% 207 3%
Other comprehensive income Et2Eks - - - - - (19770) 132771 - 53,001 - 53,001
Total comprehensive income FENGER - - - - - (197700 132701 39936 392937 27 425,154
Equity-ettled share-based WRM REREIRE

transactions 55 % - - - 8274 - - - - 8274 - 8274
Dividends declared in respect of the ~ BEFEHEERRE

previous years e - (48734) = - - - - - (48734) - (48734)
Dividends approved and paid to BRERBERT

non-controlling interest holders HER Rk RER

in a subsidiary BEARE - 4 - - - - - - - (7500) (7500)
Appropriation to statutory reserve BRtERE 2leliv) = p = = 47839 = - 8 = = =
Acquisition of non-controlling WiEsaREs

interests o)) = = = = = = = (286,458) (286,458) (13542) (300,000)
Balance at 31 December 2021 R2021512831 B &R 1 288U 2 37297 M5B (I6I) 136673 146315 3082574 5502 31375%
The notes on pages 122 to 244 form part of these financial statements. F12B ZFE 244 BB AR EIREZH —HB 5 ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

REEREER

for the year ended 31 December 2022 £ 2022F 12 831 B IEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi) (LAA R#ZIR)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

AAARBRRELN
Share- Fair value
based reserve Non-
Share Share Capital ~ payments  Statutory  Exchange (non- Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve  recycling) profits Total interests equity
HRH
AEBN AVERE
ks RGEE ARG (REE  iERE  EXRE (TUER)  REER B FEREE  4RE
Note  RMB'0O0 ~ RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
M AR®Tn ARMTn ARETn ARMTr ARETR ARETn ARETR ARMTn ARETR ARMTn AR%TR
note 27(a) - note 7(c)fi) - note 27(c)i) - note 27(c)ij) - note 27(c)liv)  note 27(c)(y)  note 27(¢){v)
Bt Hzoon Kooy HEaom HEaon HEzon o)
Balance at 31 December 2021 R2021512B318R
and 1 January 2022 W01 B1ANES 1 283582 23297 14573 (I611) 136673 146315 3082574 55022 3,137,5%
Changes in equity for 2022 R0NFHEEED
Profit for the year EEgT - - - - - - - 49280 49,280 6330 55610
Other comprehensive income A2 Eks - - - - - 213295 (126444) - 86,851 - 86,851
Total comprehensive income 2ENEEE - - - - - 213295 (126444) 49280 136,131 6330 142,461
Capital injection from non-controling ~ FEAFZERER T E
interests - - - - - - - - - 1,500 1,500
Equity-ettled share-based SR RER IR
transactions HERS 2% - - - 1313 - - - - 1313 - 13I8
Shares issued due to exercise of RirfeEREmEIHRE
share options 27(a)fi) * 15,598 - (2,786) - - - - 12,812 - 12,812
Share options forfeited during FAERRRERE
the year % - - - (97) - - - 97 - - -
Disposal of an indirect nonwholly ~ (HE—FF#E2E
owned subsidiary HEAA 5(0) - - - - - - - - - 1,598 1,598
Dividends approved and paid to ERERERAFAAT
shareholders of the Company RRAKE 27(d) - (70,968) - - - - - - (70,98) - (70,98)
Dividends approved to non- BRETHEAR
controlling interest holders in a FERERRAAD
subsidiary e - - - - - - - - - (396000 (39,600)
Appropriation to statutory reserve ey 27(0)() - - - - 54,999 - - (54999) - - -
Balance at 31 December 2022 R02512A31 B0 1 2780454 2 M 1915m (2816) 10229 140693 3174282 24850 3,199,132

* The amount represents amount less than RMB1,000.

The notes on pages 122 to 244 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

MERTRER

for the year ended 31 December 2022 & Z 2022 12 A31HIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi) (AA B EZI7R)

2022 2021
20224 20214F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Hat ARBT T AREEFTT
Operating activities RETEE
Cash generated from operations BEMFIRE 19(b) 771,954 989,604
Income tax paid ETETEH 25(a) (87,718) (133,426)
Net cash generated from RETHRMBRSTFE
operating activities 684,236 856,178
Investing activities REEE
Payment for purchases of property, plant BEYE  BEREEAR
and equipment, and right-of-use assets EREEENK (370,055) (336,273)
Payment for purchases of intangible assets & B # 2 & E MK (10,570) (6,309)
Advances for investment BT (29,392) =
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEWE - BRE RFHEUR
and equipment, and right-of-use assets FAREENMSHIE 1,021 9,114
Proceeds from disposal of a non-wholly HE—FHEZERNBRRN
owned subsidiary FriS k18 595 =
Payment for interests in associates AT N B R B FRIE (245) (8,700)
Loans to associates mEEE A RIREE R 30(b) (49,950) =
Advances to associates [ E N A HR R E R (17,650) (24,900)
Repayment from associates DN RIER - 4,900
Interest received 2HFE 16,134 14,664
Payment for deposits with banks with R BB EE=EA
original maturity date over three months RITIF AR (852,241) (735,840)
Withdrawal of deposits with banks with REURFIEBABB=EAN
original maturity date over three months RITIFK 735,840 673,312
Payment for purchases of financial assets BEESMEEMNNR - (116,982)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets HEERMEEMNMEHIEA - 40,000
Restoration costs paid B HEEA A (1,420) (2,370)
Settlement of consideration payable for ERNERENRE
acquisition - (1,049)
Other cash flows arising from investing REFHEENEMBLRE
activities (9,760) -
Net cash used in investing activities RETEHARSFE (587,693) (490,433)
The notes on pages 122 to 244 form part of these financial statements. F12EHEEF 244 B MM B AN 75 R R A —
5 .
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
nVT\ Iﬁaﬁ/]lbi%

for the year ended 31 December 2022 #(Z2022F 12 31 B IEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (AN ER¥ZIR)

2022 2021
20225 20214
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
HaE ARBT T AR¥EFTT
Financing activities ALE ST B
Proceeds from issuance of shares EITER BRI TR EY
due to exercise of share options FriS5R 27(a)(ii) 12,812 =
Proceeds from bank loans RITEREHRIE 19(c) 60,000 -
Repayment of bank loans BERITER 19(c) (30,000) (42,950)
Payment of capital element and interest HEAREARLY &
element of lease liabilities FMEH ﬁ*ﬁ 19(c) (441,384) (387,371)
Interest of bank loans paid B IRITERFE 19(c) (809) (537)
Capital injection from non-controlling 1N 7#? fRiEREE
interests of subsidiaries 1,500 -
Payment for acquisition of non-controlling YT B 2 R FEIE AR 13X
interests of subsidiaries 19(c) - (301,500)
Dividends paid to equity shareholders BEAAR AR RARE
of the Company (70,968) (48,734)
Dividends paid to non-controlling B FEERERFFE ANIRE
interests holders (12,000) (7,500)
Net cash used in financing activities BMEEEFTRRSFE (480,849) (788,592)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents  IR& RIREFEMHFR D (384,306) (422,847)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R1ATBRRERBCEEY 19(a) 1,342,090 1,843,903
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes SNETE R EE R 8 141,088 (78,966)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December R 12H31BMRE MRS EEY 19(a) 1,098,872 1,342,090
The notes on pages 122 to 244 form part of these financial statements. FIREEF 244 B MM FBN AT B REA —
i | 7N
285 ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

nVT\

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k%A &% 855}

122

BB EwRET

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Statement of Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
all applicable International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs")
which collective term includes all applicable individual International
Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards and
Interpretations issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
("IASB"), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
These financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Significant accounting policies adopted

by the Group are disclosed below.

The IASB has issued certain amendments to IFRSs that are available for
early adoption for the current accounting period of the Group. Note 1(c)
provides information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to the extent that they
are relevant to the Group for the current accounting period reflected in

these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2022 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as

the “Group”) and the Group's interest in associates.

Item included in the financial statements of each entity in the Group are
measured using the currency that best reflects the economic substance
of the underlying events and circumstances relevant to the entity
(the “Functional Currency”). The financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (‘RMB"), rounded to the nearest thousand except for earnings
per share information. The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis except that financial
assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI) and financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss

(FVPL) are stated at their fair value as explained in note 1(f).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R B RAR MR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 &7 885) » U EEZITR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Basis of preparation of the financial statements (continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs
requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.

Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both

current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of IFRSs that
have significant effect on the financial statements and major sources of

estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 2.

Changes in accounting policies

The IASB has issued a number of amendments to IFRSs that are first

effective for the current accounting period of the Group:

Amendment to IAS 16, Property, plant and equipment: Proceeds

before intended use

Amendments to |IAS 37, Provisions, contingent liabilities and

contingent assets: Onerous contracts — cost of fulfilling a contract

None of these developments have had a material effect on how the
Group's results and financial position for the current or prior periods
have been prepared or presented in these financial statements. The
Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not yet

effective for the current accounting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=
i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k%A &% 855}

B BRI

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls
an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing whether the Group
has power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties)

are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the financial
statements from the date that control commences until the date
that control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows
and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same way
as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of

impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not
attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in respect of
which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the holders
of those interests which would result in the Group as a whole having
a contractual obligation in respect of those interests that meets the
definition of a financial liability. For each business combination, the
Group can elect to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the

subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement
of financial position within equity, separately from equity attributable
to the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling interests in
the results of the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit
or loss and total comprehensive income for the year between non-

controlling interests and the equity shareholders of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R B RAR MR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 &7 885) » U EEZITR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that do not result in
a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby
adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss

is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair
value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
of a financial asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition

of an investment in an associate or joint venture.

In the Company's statement of financial position, an investment in a

subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 1(j)(ii)).

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company has significant
influence, but not control or joint control, over its management,

including participation in the financial and operating policy decisions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=
i

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k%A &% 855}

1
(e)

B BRI

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Associates (continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements under the equity method, unless it is classified as
held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as held for
sale). Under the equity method, the investment is initially recorded at
cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group's share of the acquisition-date
fair values of the investee's identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). The cost of the investment includes purchase price,
other costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the investment,
and any direct investment into the associate that forms part of the
Group's equity investment. Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for
the post acquisition change in the Group's share of the investee’s net
assets and any impairment losses relating to the investment (see note
1()(ii)). Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group's share of the
post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and any impairment
losses for the year are recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, whereas the Group's share of the post-acquisition post-
tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive income is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income.

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest in the associate,
the Group's interest is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee.
For this purpose, the Group's interest is the carrying amount of the
investment under the equity method, together with any other long-term
interests that in substance form part of the Group's net investment in

the associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
interest in the investee, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they are

recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R B RAR MR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 &7 885) » U EEZITR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Associates (continued)

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit
or loss. Any interest retained in that former investee at the date when
significant influence is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset (see
note 1(f).

Other investments in equity securities

The Group's policies for investments in equity securities, other than

investments in subsidiaries and associates, are set out below.

All investments in equity instruments must be measured at fair value.
However, in limited circumstances, cost may be an appropriate estimate
of fair value. That may be the case if insufficient more recent information
is available to measure fair value, or if there is a wide range of possible
fair value measurements and cost represents the best estimate of fair

value within that range.

Investments in equity securities are recognised/derecognised on
the date the Group commits to purchase/sell the investment. The
investments are initially stated at fair value plus directly attributable
transaction costs, except for those investments measured at fair value
through profit or loss (FVPL) for which transaction costs are recognised
directly in profit or loss. For an explanation of how the Group determines
fair value of financial instruments, see note 28(e). These investments are
subsequently accounted for equity investments, depending on their

classification.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBIRARME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G aZ855) + AN R ¥ZT)

1
(f)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Other investments in equity securities (continued)

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVPL unless the equity
investment is not held for trading purposes and on initial recognition
of the investment the Group makes an election to designate the
investment at FVOCI (non-recycling) such that subsequent changes in
fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income. Such elections
are made on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but may only be
made if the investment meets the definition of equity from the issuer’s
perspective. Where such an election is made, the amount accumulated
in other comprehensive income remains in the fair value reserve (non-
recycling) until the investment is disposed of. At the time of disposal,
the amount accumulated in the fair value reserve (non-recycling) is
transferred to retained earnings. It is not recycled through profit or
loss. Dividends from an investment in equity securities, irrespective of
whether classified as at FVPL or FVOCI, are recognised in profit or loss as

other income in accordance with the policy set out in note 1(u)(iii).

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including construction in progress, are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
note 1(j)(ii). No depreciation is provided for in respect of construction in

progress until it is completed and ready for its intended use.

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and equipment
includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the initial estimate,
where relevant, of the costs of dismantling and removing the items
and restoring the site on which they are located, and an appropriate

proportion of production overheads and borrowing costs.

Items may be produced while bringing an item of property, plant and
equipment to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management. The proceeds
from selling any such items and the related costs are recognised in profit

or loss.

128 © JIUMAOJIU INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED N E N EFRZEAR B R A A

1
(f)

BEESTHE®)
BB ABHRE ()

BRAFHRESRDBRBAFEFAE
@ BRIFZABREREYIFRFEE A
AEBENPERREFEESRER
ERBRAFESAEMEE WS (TR #
E) > RBREAFEEDREMCE2EKR
R - ARBREDRTAMEMNEL - HE
ERTARRRENEARAETENBEAT
TR - MELAREE - AIREME
EE RN EREERN A FERE (1T
BE)RE  EERERHERL - RHE
B RAFERE (TRIRLE) R0
SEBREREAN  MIEERBREE -
KERABLFRE (PO BARAFER
ABSRIEAFEFARBEEKE) MK
B TOREBHTEE 1 ()i PRt AV R M8 2 B
RAHE MU

M ~ = N&R A

WE - BEIRE(BREZIR) ZBKA
BERFITE RRERBEIR (RHME1])
(i) - MAIRERZTIRIELITERK - BEE
FRTIREIREAEREREAL -

BEEME BERRBRBENKABEY
BRA BERSTRA  HFELBEEERER
AR IR TR B P R 5% P 78 B AN B 0] 2
far (H4808) REELPINEERTEER
RABTRAKAN ©

EENE BERRKERBEINEEEH
EREED APENLE AR - AT8E
ELRBER -  BEENUZEEREBNME
A RAMBEAR AR IR FER o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R B RAR MR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 &7 885) » U EEZITR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item
of property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item

and are recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant
and equipment, less their estimated residual value, if any, using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Leasehold Improvement Over the shorter of the lease term

and 5 years
Kitchen equipment 5 years
Electronic equipment 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Furniture and fixtures and 5 years

other equipment
Freehold land Not depreciated as the freehold land

has unlimited useful life

Buildings situated on Over their estimated useful life,

freehold land being no more than 25 years after
the date of acquisition
Leasehold land Depreciated over the unexpired

term of lease

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed
annually.

Intangible assets

Research and development costs comprise all costs that are directly
attributable to research and development activities or that can be
allocated on a reasonable basis to such activities.

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred. Expenditure on development activities
is capitalised if the product or process is technically and commercially
feasible and the Group has sufficient resources and the intention to
complete development. The expenditure capitalised includes the costs
of materials, direct labour, and an appropriate proportion of overheads
and borrowing costs, where applicable. Capitalised development costs
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses
(see note 1(j)(ii)). Other development expenditure is recognised as an

expense in the period in which it is incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBIRARME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G aZ855) + AN R ¥ZT)

1
(h)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Intangible assets (continued)

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated at cost
less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated useful life is finite)

and impairment losses (see note 1(j)(ii)).

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is charged to
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated useful
lives. The following intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised
from the date they are available for use and their estimated useful lives
are as follows:
- Software 5 years
- Brand name 5 years
Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed annually.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the contract
is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed where the
customer has both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and

to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that use.

As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and non-lease
component(s), the Group has elected not to separate non-lease
components and accounts for each lease component and any associated

non-lease components as a single lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises a right-of-use
asset and a lease liability, except for short-term leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets which, for the
Group are primarily apartments and electronic devices. When the Group
enters into a lease in respect of a low-value asset, the Group decides
whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease
payments associated with those leases which are not capitalised are
recognised as an expense on a systematic basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R B RAR MR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (bt 5 G aZ 8550 + U R¥EZIT)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leased assets (continued)
As a lessee (continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially recognised at
the present value of the lease payments payable over the lease term,
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate
cannot be readily determined, using a relevant incremental borrowing
rate. After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at amortised
cost and interest expense is calculated using the effective interest
method. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or
rate are not included in the measurement of the lease liability and hence
are charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are

incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is capitalised is initially
measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability plus any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, and any initial direct costs incurred. Where applicable, the cost of
the right-of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle
and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or
the site on which it is located, discounted to their present value, less any
lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset is subsequently stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see notes
1(g) and 1()(ii)

The initial fair value of refundable rental deposits is accounted
for separately from the right-of-use assets in accordance with the
accounting policy applicable to investments in debt securities carried
at amortised cost (see notes 1(f), 1(u)(iv) and 1(j)(i)). Any difference
between the initial fair value and the nominal value of the deposits is
accounted for as additional lease payments made and is included in the

cost of right-of-use assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBIRARME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G aZ855) + AN R ¥ZT)

1
(i)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leased assets (continued)
As a lessee (continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in future
lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, or there is a
change in the Group's estimate of the amount expected to be payable
under a residual value guarantee, or there is a change arising from
the reassessment of whether the Group will be reasonably certain to
exercise a purchase, extension or termination option. When the lease
liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made
to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced

to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a change in the scope
of a lease or the consideration for a lease that is not originally provided
for in the lease contract (“lease modification”) that is not accounted for
as a separate lease. In this case the lease liability is remeasured based on
the revised lease payments and lease term using a revised discount rate
at the effective date of the modification. The only exceptions are any
rent concessions which arose as a direct consequence of the COVID-19
pandemic and which satisfied the conditions set out in paragraph 468
of IFRS 16 Leases. In such cases, the Group has taken advantage of the
practical expedient not to assess whether the rent concessions are lease
modifications, and recognised the change in consideration as negative
variable lease payments in profit or loss in the period in which the event

or condition that triggers the rent concessions occurred.

In the consolidated statement of financial position, the current portion
of long-term lease liabilities is determined as the present value of
contractual payments that are due to be settled within twelve months

after the reporting period.

The Group presents right-of-use assets and presents lease liabilities

separately in the statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R B RAR MR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (bt 5 G aZ 8550 + U R¥EZIT)

1 EESTEE %)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses
(ECLs) on financial assets measured at amortised cost (including

cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables);

Financial assets measured at fair value, including units in equity
securities measured at FVPL and equity securities designated at

FVOCI (non-recycling), are not subject to the ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit
losses are measured as the present value of all expected cash
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the

Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using the following

discount rates where the effect of discounting is material:

- fixed-rate financial assets and trade and other receivables:
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition or an

approximation thereof.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the
maximum contractual period over which the Group is exposed to

credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account reasonable and
supportable information that is available without undue cost
or effort. This includes information about past events, current

conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R B RAR MR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G aZ855) + AN R ¥ZT)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments (continued)
Measurement of ECLs (continued)

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result

from possible default events within the 12 months after the

reporting date; and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result from

all possible default events over the expected lives of the items

to which the ECL model applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these financial assets are
estimated using a provision matrix based on the Group's historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the

debtors and an assessment of both the current and forecast general

economic conditions at the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises a loss
allowance equal to 12-month ECLs unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk of the financial instrument since

initial recognition, in which case the loss allowance is measured at

an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R B RAR MR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (bt 5 G aZ 8550 + U R¥EZIT)

1 EESTEE %)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments (continued)
Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of default occurring on the financial instrument assessed
at the reporting date with that assessed at the date of initial
recognition. In making this reassessment, the Group considers that
a default event occurs when (i) the borrower is unlikely to pay its
credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the
Group to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or (i)
the financial asset is 30 days past due. The Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking

information that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when
assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial

recognition:

- failure to make payments of principal or interest on their

contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in a financial

instrument’s external or internal credit rating (if available);

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating

results of the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have a significant adverse
effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its obligation to the

Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments, the
assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is performed on
either an individual basis or a collective basis. When the assessment
is performed on a collective basis, the financial instruments are
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics, such as past

due status and credit risk ratings.
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1
(4)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments (continued)
Significant increases in credit risk (continued)

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect changes in
the financial instrument’s credit risk since initial recognition. Any
change in the ECL amount is recognised as an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss. The Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment
to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account, except
for investments in debt securities that are measured at FVOCI
(recycling), for which the loss allowance is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the fair value reserve

(recycling).

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with note 1(u)(iv) is
calculated based on the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
unless the financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross

carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether a financial asset
is credit-impaired. A financial asset is credit-impaired when one
or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated

future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R B RAR MR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (bt 5 G aZ 8550 + U R¥EZIT)

1 EESTEE %)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments (continued)
Basis of calculation of interest income (continued)

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the

following observable events:
- significant financial difficulties of the debtor;
- abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market, economic or
legal environment that have an adverse effect on the debtor;

or

- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of

financial difficulties of the issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either
partially or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when the Group determines that
the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the

write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously written off
are recognised as a reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the

period in which the recovery occurs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBIRARME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G aZ855) + AN R ¥ZT)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1 EESTTEE %)

(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued) () EEBEREERE &)
(ii) Impairment of other non-current assets (i) Eftt3EREBEERE

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period to identify indications that the
following assets may be impaired or, an impairment loss previously

recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets;

- intangible assets;

- investments in associates; and

- investments in a subsidiary in the Company’s statement of

financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. In addition, for goodwill, intangible assets that are not
yet available for use and intangible assets that have indefinite useful
lives, the recoverable amount is estimated at each reporting period

whether or not there is any indication of impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group of
assets that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-

generating unit).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R B RAR MR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 &7 885) » U EEZITR)

1 BEESTEHE )

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(j) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(ii) Impairment of other non-current assets (continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the cash-generating unit (or group of units) and then, to
reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced below its individual fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if

determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment

loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior periods. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the periods

in which the reversals are recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBIRARME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G aZ855) + AN R ¥ZT)

1
(4)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group is required to prepare
an interim financial report in compliance with IAS 34, Interim
financial reporting, in respect of the first six months of the financial
year. At the end of the interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at

the end of the financial year (see note 1(j)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in respect of
goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent period. This is the case
even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been recognised had
the impairment been assessed only at the end of the financial year

to which the interim period relates.

(k) Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for sale in the ordinary course of
business, in the process of production for such sale or in the form of
materials or supplies to be consumed in the production process or in

the rendering of services.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula and
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and

condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated

costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is
recognised as an expense in the period in which the related revenue is

recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5 % a2 BH5h

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Inventories (continued)

The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down
of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories

recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays non-
refundable consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue (see note 1(u)). A contract liability would also be recognised
if the Group has an unconditional right to receive non-refundable
consideration before the Group recognises the related revenue. In such
cases, a corresponding receivable would also be recognised (see note
1(m)).

For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract asset or a
net contract liability is presented. For multiple contracts, contract assets
and contract liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented on a net

basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing component, the
contract balance includes interest accrued under the effective interest

method (see note 1(u)).

) Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an unconditional
right to receive consideration. A right to receive consideration is
unconditional if only the passage of time is required before payment
of that consideration is due. If revenue has been recognised before the
Group has an unconditional right to receive consideration, the amount

is presented as a contract asset.

Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component
are initially measured at their transaction price. Trade receivables that
contain a significant financing component and other receivables are
initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. All receivables
are subsequently stated at amortised cost, using the effective interest

method and including an allowance for credit losses (see note 1(j)(i)).
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1
(n)

B BRI

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Software-as-a-service (SaaS) arrangement costs

A SaaS arrangement is a service arrangement where the Group has a
right to access to the supplier's application software running on the
supplier's cloud infrastructure during the term of the arrangement, but

not control over the underlying software asset.

Costs to implement a SaaS arrangement, including those incurred in
configuring or customising the access to the supplier’s application
software, are evaluated to determine if they give rise to a separate
asset that the Group controls. Any resulting asset is recognised and
accounted for in accordance with the policy for intangible assets as
set out in note 1(h). Implementation costs that do not give rise to an
asset are recognised in profit or loss as incurred, which may be over the
period the configuration or customisation services are received to the
extent that such services are distinct from the SaaS, or over the term of
the SaaS arrangement to the extent the configuration or customisation

services are not distinct from the SaaS.

Payment made in advance of receiving the related services is recognised

as prepayment.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for expected credit

losses (ECL) in accordance with the policy set out in note 1(j)(i).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting

would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R B RAR MR

(Fxpressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B8 5= B &85 + AA REZTR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at fair value less

transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing

borrowings are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest

method. Interest expense is recognised in accordance with the Group's

accounting policy for borrowing costs (see note 1(w)).

Employee benefits

(i)

Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated services are
rendered by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are stated at their

present values.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations of the PRC, the Group
participates in a defined contribution basic pension insurance in the
social insurance system established and managed by government
organisations. The Group makes contributions to basic pension
insurance plans based on the applicable benchmarks and rates
stipulated by the government. The local government authorities
are responsible for the pension obligations payable to the retired
employees covered under the defined contribution basic pension
insurance. There are no forfeited contributions for the defined
contribution basic pension insurance in the PRC social insurance
system as the contributions are fully vested to the employees upon

payment to the scheme.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. Contributions to the plan
vest immediately. There are no forfeited contributions for the the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes as the contributions are fully

vested to the employees upon payment to the scheme.

1

(q)

BEESTHE )

B

S EERBEATERT DRALE -
MIATE RS - 5t B S H0E B E R R R
44 PR A 51 BE - I S BT TR B A E MR
EERAG S HRERR (BHE W) °

EEER
() EHEERA R EBHRRKT
E-LIF PN

e FERLL FFHFR wHEHM
FRARFEIHAREFERRBARA S
EEBREABRENFEREAGERE °
HMEENAKBEAEELEEAY
2 FHcBRRAEREIIR-

RIBDEOBRERIER  AKE
SE-THHBRFRERIREE - B
HERBREE T B EBERERERNR
2R - AEEREBEERBFR
EHILL X - HEKRKE R EIE
HEER - T BTHBARERXER
HRERXERRSRBRENRKES
BPOR®E - FREEERREIE T
REHRKERNRARES KRB L ED QWK
HX - REAAHFRR M F5EEE
BEBETES -

AKETREELRHMELTRESFTE
&pl - RELRBHIEEHEAR
BHNREREZE -—HAGERESF
& - HErEF LM ERAE T IR
B o BHERTERET B W ED QUM
R RE/SHFN M T 8IHEH
SETES -

ZZ - FFW ANNUAL REPORT 2022 o 143



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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1 BEESTTEHE %)
() EEEF (&)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r) Employee benefits (continued)

(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined

contribution retirement plans (continued)

Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans are

recognised as part of the cost of assets or charged to profit or loss

as the related services are rendered by the employees.

(i) Share-based payments

The fair value of shares or share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding increase
in a share-based payments reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at grant date using the income approach model, in
case of shares granted, and binomial option pricing model, in
case of share options granted, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the shares/options were granted. Where
the employees have to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the shares/options, the total estimated
fair value of the shares/options is spread over the vesting period,

taking into account the probability that the shares/options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of shares/options that is
expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/credited
to the profit or loss for the year of the review. On vesting date,
the amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the
actual number of shares/options that vest (with a corresponding
adjustment to the share-based payments reserve). The equity
amount is recognised in the share-based payments reserve until
either the option is exercised (when it is included in the amount

recognised in share capital for the shares issued) or the option

expires (when it is released directly to retained profits).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R B RAR MR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 &7 885) » U EEZITR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Employee benefits (continued)
(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when the
Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when it recognises restructuring costs involving the payment of

termination benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred
tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,

respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the
year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
each reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of

previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses

and unused tax credits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBIRARME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G aZ855) + AN R ¥ZT)

1
(s)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities, and all
deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences include
those that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable temporary
differences, provided those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred
tax asset can be carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary differences
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss

or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are those temporary differences arising from goodwill not
deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not
part of a business combination), and temporary differences relating to
investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the reversal and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future,
or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is probable that they

will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of
the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of each reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are

not discounted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R B RAR MR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 &7 885) » U EEZITR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the
related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements therein,
are presented separately from each other and are not offset. Current tax
assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax

liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Company or the
Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset

and settle the liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to

income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets
are expected to be settled or recovered, intend to realise the
current tax assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a net

basis or realise and settle simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBIRARME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G aZ855) + AN R ¥ZT)

1
(t)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure

expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation
is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the

probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises from the sale

of goods and the provision of services.

The Group is the principal for its revenue transactions and recognises
revenue on a gross basis. In determining whether the Group acts as a
principal or as an agent, it considers whether it obtains control of the
products before they are transferred to the customers. Control refers to
the Group's ability to direct the use of and obtain substantially all of the

remaining benefits from the products or services.

Further details of the Group's revenue and other income recognition are

as follows:

(i) Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or service
is transferred to the customer at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be entitled,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties such

as value added tax.

The Group principally generates revenue from restaurant

operations, delivery business and sales of specialities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R B RAR MR

(Fxpressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B8 5= B &85 + AA REZTR)

1 EESTEE %)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u) Revenue and other income (continued)

(i)

(i)

(iii

(iv

)

—

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

For restaurant operations and delivery business for which the
control of services is transferred at a point in time, revenue is
recognised when the related services have been rendered to

customers.

Revenue from the sales of specialities for which the control of
goods is transferred at a point in time, is recognised when the

goods are delivered and title have passed.

Management and service fee income

Management and service fee income is recognised when related

services are rendered.

Dividends

- Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised

when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is established.

- Dividend income from listed investments is recognised when

the share price of the investment goes ex-dividend.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues under the effective
interest method using the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset

to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement of financial
position initially when there is reasonable assurance that they will
be received and that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as income in profit or loss on a systematic
basis in the same periods in which the expenses are incurred.
Grants that compensate the Group for the cost of an asset are
deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and consequently
are effectively recognised in profit or loss over the useful life of the

asset by way of reduced depreciation expense.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBIRARME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G aZ855) + AN R ¥ZT)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of each reporting period.

Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. The transaction date is
the date on which the Company initially recognises such non-monetary
assets or liabilities. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the

foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into RMB at the exchange
rates approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of
the transactions. Statement of financial position items, are translated
into RMB at the closing foreign exchange rates at the end of each
reporting period. The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity in

the exchange reserve.

(w) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are

expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R B RAR MR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 &7 885) » U EEZITR)

1 BEESTEHE )

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(x) Related parties

(a)

A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to

the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group

or the Group's parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions

applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow

subsidiary is related to the others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which

the other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other

entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the

Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBIRARME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G aZ855) + AN R ¥ZT)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1 EESTTEE %)

(x) Related parties (continued) (x) EEEER (&)
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions (b) fRFFE THERGE - B —fHEEH
applies: (continued) AEEE B : (&)

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the (vii) @) FTHBIA THZEREEKR
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of the %gﬁ&%.u B (ZEENS
entity (or of a parent of the entity). RNANEEBBEABZ— -

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, (i) ZERXEFMBEEMNIMKER
provides key management personnel services to the Group or AlMAEBERAEB G QAREE
to the Group's parent. EEBABRTE -

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who BRIATHAEHRREXNE DIEERERE
may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their BRI RS Z AT TR ERIEZA
dealings with the entity. THENFBKE -

(y) Segment reporting (y) 7#BHE
Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported LEDENRAFRERMEMAS HFIEE
in the financial statements, are identified from the financial information 8 DEBEHRNAEESEEREAR
provided regularly to the Group's most senior executive management for REMIBEERZR - 2EEEABKIK
the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the performance ZEEMDRERTASEE RS K
of, the Group's various lines of business and geographical locations. 15 DA R 5 A 5% 55 6 7 R Mb i O 2R 35 o
Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for HUBHREMS  BEANEREEDITEG
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar economic REEW BRIEZZFHIHBEEHEULER
characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of products BRFEEMMRBESZ £ERFRHEE -
and services, the nature of production processes, the type or class of BEREASIERN  DIEERKIEERBAA
customers, the methods used to distribute the products or provide FANATAREERFEE T EEBEL o
the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating ERmMEWIEBEEZRMEED IFA Ll
segments which are not individually material may be aggregated if they AE D4 - RIFREARE 23R ©

share a majority of these criteria.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5% %855

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

Notes 26 and 28 contain information about the assumptions and
their risk factors relating to fair value of restricted stock units/share
options granted and financial instruments. Other significant sources of

estimation uncertainty are as follows:

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to assess whether there is any indication that
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets may be impaired.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets is estimated. Changes in
facts and circumstances may result in revisions to the conclusion of
whether an indication of impairment exists and revised estimates of

recoverable amounts, which would affect profit or loss in future periods.

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, and right-of-use assets, are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets.
The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of the assets regularly in
order to determine the amount of depreciation expense to be recorded
during any reporting period. The useful lives are based on the Group's
historical experience with similar assets. The depreciation expense for
future periods is adjusted if there are material changes from previous

estimates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBIRARME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 B & BASN + AN R H517)

2

()

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(continued)
Provision for restoration costs

As explained in note 23, the Group makes provision for restoration
costs based on the best estimate of the expected costs to be incurred
upon expiry of the respective rental agreements, which are subject to
uncertainty and might differ from the actual costs incurred. Any increase

or decrease in the provision would affect profit or loss in future periods.

Determining the lease term

As explained in policy note 1(i), the lease liability is initially recognised at
the present value of the lease payments payable over the lease term. In
determining the lease term at the commencement date for leases that
include renewal options exercisable by the Group, the Group evaluates
the likelihood of exercising the renewal options taking into account all
relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for
the Group to exercise the option, including favourable terms, leasehold
improvements undertaken and the importance of that underlying asset
to the Group's operation. The lease term is reassessed when there is a
significant event or significant change in circumstance that is within
the Group's control. Any increase or decrease in the lease term would
affect the amount of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets recognised

in future years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 &7 885) » U EEZITR)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WARDHHE
(a) Revenue a) WA
The principal activities of the Group are restaurant operations, delivery AEENFEEBREBRLE  HEXER
business and sales of specialities. REFEHE -
(i) Disaggregation of revenue (i) WADE
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by major REERBIEBEDHREBEES L
service lines is as follows: WA ERLAT -
2022 2021
20225 20214F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TT AR¥ETT

Revenue from contracts with customers

B BHREEAF 1S REER

within the scope of IFRS 15: HWREEESHHRA :

Restaurant operations BERLE 3,203,210 3,524,424

Delivery business INE TS 787,114 621,506

Sales of specialities HEEE 1,478 15,855

Others Hh 13,920 17,919
4,005,722 4,179,704

Note: Revenue was mainly recognised at point in time when control over a 5T HQAEIEEAHEWTHW%E’H il

product or service was transferred to the customer. 15 = R R B AR

No revenue from individual customer contributing over 10% of total MEERBREREZE2022F X20214F

revenue of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 12ANBIEFEHAEENBRKART

2021. BB 10% °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBIRARME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k%A &% 855}

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(@) Revenue (continued)

(ii) Revenue expected to be recognised in the future arising

from contracts in existence at the reporting date

Contracts within the scope of IFRS 15

As at 31 December 2022, the aggregated amount of the transaction
price allocated to the remaining performance obligations under
the Group's existing contracts is RMB3,006,000 (31 December
2021: RMB4,751,000). This amount represents the customer loyalty
scheme. The Group will recognise the expected revenue in future
over the remaining contract period, which is expected to occur over
the next 12 to 24 months (31 December 2021: 12 to 36 months).

(b) Segment Reporting

The Group manages its businesses by restaurant brands. In a manner

consistent with the way in which information is reported internally

to the Group’s most senior executive management for the purposes

of resource allocation and performance assessment, the Group has

presented the following reportable segments.

Jiu Mao Jiu: this segment operates restaurants and delivery business

offering family-oriented food under Jiu Mao Jiu brand.

Tai Er: this segment operates restaurants featuring Chinese

sauerkraut fish and Sichuan cuisine under Tai Er brand.

Others: this segment includes restaurants operating in other brands
such as Double Eggs, Song Hot Pot, Uncle Chef and Lai Mei Li

Grilled Fish, as well as franchise business of Double Eggs.

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating
resources between segments, the Group's senior executive
management monitors the results, assets and liabilities attributable

to each reportable segment on the following bases:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R B RAR MR

(Fxpressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B8 5= B &85 + AA REZTR)

3 WARDEHRE &)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(b) Segment Reporting (continued)

(i)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued)

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets and current
assets with the exception of interests in associates, other non-
current financial assets, deferred tax assets and other headquarter
assets. Segment liabilities include lease liabilities, provisions, trade
and other payables and contract liabilities attributable to the
restaurant operations activities of the individual segments and bank

borrowings managed directly by the segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments
with reference to sales generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments or which otherwise arise
from the depreciation or amortisation of assets attributable to those

segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is “Non-GAAP
Operating Profit” During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
management has revised the definition of Non-GAAP Operating
Profit for a better understanding on the Group's multi-brand and
multi-concept strategy by shareholders and investors. Under the
revised reporting segment information, no headquarter expenses
are allocated to any reportable segments but separately disclosed.
On the other hand, advertising and promotion expenses and
certain other expenses attributable to store operations, which were
unallocated and disclosed separately in the previous years, are

allocated to each reportable segment.

Upon the above revisions, the Group defines Non-GAAP Operating
Profit as revenue deducting the following expenses at store-level (i)
raw materials and consumables used, (ii) staff costs, (i) depreciation
of right-of-use assets, (iv) other rentals and related expenses, (V)
depreciation and amortisation of other assets, (vi) utility expenses,
(vii) advertising and promotion expenses and (viii) other expenses,

excluding unallocated headquarter expenses.

The segment result for the year ended 31 December 2021 has also

been revised to conform to the current year's presentation.

(b) 7 ERERE (&)

(i

)

nEEE  EEREE(E)

DHEEBREMBRY  BVEER
MBEE H MNBZEARMER  H
I RBEREE  BERBEER
Hi@apEERRIN - DHBERR
HEBAI>BNERLEXBRENE
BB BE BZNRHEMENA
RENABURAEDHMEREEN
RITHER ©

—=

\

WAERRX2ZE@OBELNHE
RRAX  EBOMEEEETEX
BEMELANAXOREATREDE

ARBmYEIENO T ERIERR
BETERIKERE] o REIE 2022512
A3VRIEEE  EBEEEBIEAR
S EKENENER F ERER
REEFHMTRARERNZ mE R
LB c REBEEEITREDHE
R el Y R Gl =y
AE - EEEBEEE - Z—FHE R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R B RAR MR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (& 55 & &% 855h

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(b) Segment Reporting (continued)

(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued)

In addition to receiving segment information concerning Non-

GAAP Operating Profit, management is provided with segment

information concerning inter segment sales, expense from

borrowings managed directly by the segments, net gains/(losses)

on restaurants closures.

Information regarding the Group's reportable segments as provided

to the Group's most senior executive management for the purposes

of resource allocation and assessment of segment performance for

the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 is set out below.

F UABHST)

3 WARDEI®RE (&)
(b) DI (£)
() DS - SEREE (&)

B Uk B 5 B IE A 3R & 2 B4 F
WA EAR  ERERIZEERS
HMEME KA BEEETEMNER
WXL BEEEK S (ER)F
RS B E R

TXEFNREZE20225 % 20215128
31 BIEFEREIRS B RATE D&
BAAEEESETREEABRM
RS E A HE D EHER o

JiuMao Jiu Tai Er Others Total
AER A= A @it
202 2001 2022 2001 202 2001 2022 2021
WNE WNE WNE WNE WNE ME WNE ME
RMB'000 RMBOOD  RMB'000 RMBOOD  RMB'000 RMBOOD  RMB'000 RMBI000
ARETL  ARETT AREIn AR%Tr ARETR ARETn ARETR ARETR
Reportable segment revenue THEABYA

Revenue from extemal customers  RESMBERRIMA 605,511 760462 3108328 329208 291,883 127058 4005722 4179704
Reportable segment profit/(loss) ~ TREAER / (H8)

(Non-GAAP Operating Profit) (FOREHERRENE) 78,031 97965 444,893 718540 (6,346) (7208) 516578 80997
Finance costs BANK (11,582) (20260 (61,294) (51,258) (8,234) (3789  (81,110) (75,307)
Gains/(losses) on restaurants RERENNG/
closures, net (B8) 58 1433 201 (2,216) (5,268) (306) 54 (1,089) (4363)
Impairment losses of property, ER
plant and equipment and PRIEAERERE
right-of-use assets (4,157) (11,092) (2,862) (4.941) (148) (2,767) (7,167) (18,800)
Reportable segment assets THEAPEE 891,037 659268 2462541 2508370 356,625 02353 3710203 3389991
Reportable segment liabilities ~~ THEABEE 526,875 359786 2275416 1381107 458,874 260809 3261165 3,001,702
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 &7 885) » U EEZITR)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(b) Segment Reporting (continued)

(b) 7 ERERE (&)

3 WARDHEKE (&)

(ii) Reconciliations of reportable segment profit or loss, assets (i) AIRESEERE  BEREEBWN
and liabilities iR
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T T ARETIT
Profit Al
Reportable segment profit Al E 5 &% A
(Non-GAAP Operating Profit) (GEAR T ERILEF)E) 516,578 809,297
Other revenue H A 71,348 64,236
Travelling and related expenses Z ik AR (25,537) (23,624)
Share of (losses)/profits of associates RS AR (BB) (3,264) 984
Other net (losses)/income Hth (&518) WEF5E (87,805) 11,422
Finance costs A A (81,110) (75,307)
Impairment losses of property, plant and Y - BB RKEEAR
equipment and right-of-use assets FREEERERE (7,167) (18,800)
Unallocated headquarter expenses ROBABEFAZ (288,712) (262,288)
Consolidated profit before taxation REBRTRATREF 94,331 505,920
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBIRARME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 B & BASN + AN R H517)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 3 WARDHBRE @)

(b) Segment Reporting (continued) (b) DEBERE (&)
(ii) Reconciliations of reportable segment profit or loss, assets (i) IHRELIER - EEREEBHN
and liabilities (continued) R (&)

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T ARETF T

Assets BE
Reportable segment assets AImEDHEE 3,710,203 3,389,991
Elimination of inter-segment receivables 53 5] FE UK TE B i 8 (2,196,265) (1,242,530)
1,513,938 2,147,461
Interests in associates REEE R R RS 10,066 13,085
Other non-current financial assets HEMIEmeemEE 153,864 320,602
Deferred tax assets EEFIBE E 115,015 82,219
Unallocated headquarter assets ROBLBIHEE 3,614,189 2,571,729
Consolidated total assets RERREE 5,407,072 5,135,096
2022 2021
2022% 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETF T

Liabilities =N
Reportable segment liabilities ARG AE 3,261,165 3,001,702
Elimination of inter-segment payables 53 0 1 FE A~ SR IB A M 55 (2,196,265) (1,242,530
1,064,900 1,759,172
Current taxation BNEARR I8 17,467 38,259
Deferred tax liabilities BEERIBEE 7,595 47,204
Unallocated headquarter liabilities ROBARE EE 1,117,978 152,865
Consolidated total liabilities FararE 2,207,940 1,997,500
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 A
b2 0 =]

BA SRR FTRE

(Fxpressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B8 5= B &85 + AA REZTR)

3 WARDHEKE (&)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(b) Segment Reporting (continued)

(iii) Geographic information

Analysis of the Group's revenue from external customers as well as

analysis of the Group's carrying amount of non-current assets by

geographical market has not been presented as over 90% of the

Group's revenue and non-current assets are generated and located

in the PRC.

4 OTHER REVENUE

(b) PEBHE (&)
(i) EE R
RN & B B 8 90%
ERE RARA R

WA RIEREE
C AR T

B2 AEERBIIBERHUWAR
D ARAKE RS EEREE

BT ©

4 HigA

2022 2021
20224 20214F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARET T
Interest income on: TN EIBR WA -
— bank deposits — RITEK 21,589 4,699
— rental deposits —HERS 2,136 1,774
- others — EAfth 4,038 7,686
27,763 14,159
Income from value-added tax super deduction R BB ER IR &
and exemption (note (i) e A (FIEEW)) 27,562 43,461
Government grants (note (ii)) BT #e By (BR & if) ) 16,023 6,616
71,348 64,236
Notes: PfsE -

(i)  Income from value-added tax super deduction and exemption represented
the super deduction and exemption on value-added tax granted by the

government authorities in the PRC.

(i)  Government grants mainly represented unconditional cash awards granted

by the government authorities in the PRC.

() REIEEDINGHEIR K #A % i Y A8 BB

FHRRE T s E TN

(i) BUSHBIEEREF K
IR & 18R o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R BB IRAR MR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 B & BASN + AN R H517)

5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 5 BR®ADZER
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BRELAT SR DR (FEA) LTS IEER S
i 2
2022 2021
20225 20214F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T AREFIT
(a) Finance costs (a) AEHKAK
Interest on bank loans (note 19(c)) RITEFFE (I7E19(0)) 809 537
Interest on lease liabilities (note 19(c)) HEaEFE (FFE1900) 78,663 73,402
Interest on provisions (note 23) BEN S (PH5E23) 1,638 1,368
81,110 75,307
(b) Staff costs (including directors’ (b) EIRZE (BIFEFFHH)
emoluments)
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TERHEAMET 845,408 1,010,435
Contributions to defined contribution TE R SR IRET B R
retirement plan 26,939 20,602
Equity-settled share-based payment LA 25 45 B LARR (0 AR B B
expenses (note 26) AL (FE26) 13,733 8,274
886,080 1,039,311
Outsourced staff costs IO E TR 247,777 17,557
1,133,857 1,056,868
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 &7 885) » U EEZITR)

5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 5 BRFADERR (&)
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARETT

(c) Other net losses/(income) (c) HRfbfE#E (W) F5E
Losses on disposal of property, plant and HEME - BE &R
equipment and right-of-use assets AR EAEEENEE 734 2,468
Losses on rental deposits HEREHER 355 2,095
Income on COVID-19 rent concessions 20198 KRS R
HeRemA - (1,345)
Net foreign exchange losses/(gains) SNERESE (Wak ) JF 58 78,862 (17,893)
Donations B 848 221
Net fair value changes of financial assets RN ER AEZED
measured at FVPL CREEATEEZEFE 7,686 2,389
Gain on disposal of the other non-current HEHEMIEREB EREED
financial assets & - (601)
Loss on disposal of a non-wholly owned HEF2ENBAAMN
subsidiary (note) &1 (i) 1,991 =
Others HAth (2,671) 1,244
87,805 (11,422)
Note: On 17 June 2022, the Group and the non-controlling interest holders BsE : R2022F6 A17H » ANEB R IR HERS
disposed their 80.85% and 19.15% equity interests of Double Eggs RAEARE=FAHERES AR 2BHE
respectively to a third party at the consideration of RMB630,000 in RIBHHI80.85% % 19.15% % * REEHA
aggregate. The Group recognised a disposal loss of RMB1,991,000 and a AR¥630,0007T - AEEBERLEEBRE
decrease in non-controlling interests of RMB1,598,000. Upon completion of AR1,991,0007T & IEERER R D AR
disposal, the Group ceased to hold any interest over Double Eggs. #£1,598,0007T ° HETHK & - NREETH

R2RBEERBHS A (E R o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R BB IRAR MR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 B & BASN + AN R H517)

5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 5 BRBIAIER (2)
2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETTT
(d) Other expenses (d) Bz

Auditors’ remuneration ZEEN B &
- audit services — BRI 2,800 2,600
- non-audit services — EFFIRE 800 800
3,600 3,400
Professional service fees BERBEER 66,599 64,409
Expenses for opening new restaurants FRFEENRX 44,922 33,859
Transportation and related expenses B MEERAX 125,158 100,339
Maintenance expenses HEX 14,552 9,816
Bank charges RITE 8,934 8,813
Insurance expenses REgF X 2,548 2,161
Business development expenses ¥BERRX 5,785 5323
Office expenses MEEFAT 15,020 9,780
Research and development expenses A 3,082 1,816
Cleaning fees BRE A 16,430 14,776
Cultural event expenses XAbEE RS 1,004 832
Others HAh 8,490 4,490
316,124 259,814
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R B RAR MR

(Fxpressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B8 5= B &85 + AA REZTR)

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 5 BRFADERR (&)
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARETT

(e) Other items (e) EEH
Amortisation (note 12) o (fsE12) 5,918 3,412
Depreciation (note 11) e (M)
— property, plant and equipment — % - BRE KRB 184,350 155,730
- right-of-use assets —EREEE 403,013 342,546
587,363 498,276
Impairment losses of property, plant and Y5 - R ek A K
equipment and right-of-use assets FAEERBEEE
(note (7)) (note 11) (B EEG) (Fi=ET1) 7,167 18,800
7,167 18,800
Raw materials and consumables used BT AR IR M e FEA 1,447,132 1,537,366
Cost of inventories (note (ii)) (note 17(b)) TFERA (FFEEG))
(Mf3E17(0)) 1,499,369 1,580,604
Other rentals and related expenses Hb & KRR 83,248 96,885
Notes: M ek

(i) “Impairment losses of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets”
was presented as a separate line item in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss of the Company for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

(i) Cost of inventories includes RMB52,237,000 for the year ended 31 December
2022 (for the year ended 31 December 2021: RMB43,238,000), relating to
“staff costs’, “depreciation and amortisation expenses’, which amount is also
included in the respective total amounts disclosed separately above or in
note 5(b) for each of these types of expenses.

(i)

(% BEREEURSERAEEEREE
B IREE2022F % 202112 A31 B IEFE
AARTEIBERPUABLIER 25 ©

GERABFERIBITRA]  [TEREHE
X | BENEZE2022F12 831 BILFE®
ARM52,237,0005t (B £2021412H31H
WL« ARM43,238,0007T) ° Lt &% IR
AT ATE £ X EE 7R M HR B A BB s M R 5 (b)
BRASZERAERNSE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBIRARME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 B & BASN + AN R H517)

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6 ZREBHRRAMNMAEH
STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(a) Taxation in the consolidated statements of profit or loss (a) GrEBZRAMNFIIEE -
represents:
2022 2021
2022 % 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETTT
Current tax BIHABL 1R
Provision for the year FERE
~ PRC income tax — RS 70,712 128,802
— Other jurisdictions — HEMElERER 1,307 1,157
Over-provision in respect of prior years BT FEMBERE (156) (376)
71,863 129,583
Deferred tax ELEBR
Origination and reversal of accumulated tax loss EEREEZFAHIBEER
and temporary differences (note 25(b)) Tt =R (fFEE25(0)) (33,142) 4,184
38,721 133,767
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (k5% %855

INCOME TAX

IN THE CONSOLIDATED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit

) BiIER X ERE AR

* LA BT
6 FEBERANFENR @)

at applicable tax rates: FIRE BR -
2022 2021
20225 20214F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETTT
Profit before taxation o 258 A e A 94,331 505,920
Notional tax on profit before taxation, calculated ERABRTAEMNOBELIE -
at the rates applicable to profits in the REARVEEEERL
jurisdictions concerned AR E 39,805 124,081
Effect of preferential income tax rates of certain ETHBRRNEBRMEH
subsidiaries (iii) S0k d(i) (5,133) (1,868)
Effect of non-deductible expenses TRIHIBH 2 H 2 11,257 6,623
Tax effect of unused tax losses and deductible REER AL AHIARE R
temporary differences not recognised AENEREEENTETE 2,174 7,393
Tax effect of using the deductible losses and PR AR I HEEE &
deductible temporary differences not AR EEENTHIESE
recognised (182) (145)
Effect of recognising the deductible losses and TR B F EARERRLET I
temporary differences for which no deferred B EMATEEE R
tax asset was recognised in previous years TRMEENTE (7,595) =
Over-provision in respect of prior years BRARE FE BB (156) (376)
Others HAh, (1,449) (1,941)
Actual tax expense ERBIERS 38,721 133,767
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R B RAR MR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 B & BASN + AN R H517)

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit

at applicable tax rates: (continued)

Notes:

(i) Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and the British
Virgin Islands (the “BVI"), the Group is not subject to any income tax in the

Cayman Islands and the BVI.

(i) The Group's subsidiaries in Hong Kong did not have any other assessable

profits for the years ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

(iii) Taxable income for the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC are subject to PRC
income tax rate of 25% for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,

unless otherwise specified below.

Certain subsidiaries met the criteria for enterprises/branches in catering
industry established in Hainan Province in the PRC and were entitled to the

preferential income tax rate of 15% from 2020 to 2024.

Certain subsidiaries met the criteria required for preferential income tax
rate granted to small and low profit-making enterprise in the PRC, and
were entitled to a preferential income tax rate of 2.5% on taxable income
for the first RMB1,000,000 and 5% on taxable income for the subsequent

RMB1,000,000 to RMB3,000,000.

(iv)  The Company's subsidiaries incorporated overseas, other than Hong Kong
and the BVI, are subject to overseas profits tax at 3% to 28% on estimated

assessable profit for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

(v)  According to the Corporate Income Tax Law and its implementation rules,
dividends and interest receivable by non-PRC corporate residents from PRC
enterprises are subject to withholding tax at a rate of 10%, unless reduced
by tax treaties or arrangements, for profits earned since 1 January 2008. The
withholding tax rate of 10% was applicable for the Group for the years ended

31 December 2022 and 2021.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

(Fxpressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B8 5= B &85 + AA REZTR)

7 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 7 ESHFM
Directors’ emoluments as recorded in the financial statements are set PIAB SRR E S FHNEZIT ¢
out below:

Year ended 31 December 2022

BE2nENANALEE
Directors' Salaries,

and allowances Retirement Share-based

supervisors' and other  Discretionary scheme payments
fees benefits bonuses  contributions Sub-Total (note (b)) Total

HRHH

ESRk e BER ERNAR
Ezhg AftiRA RETA  BAGEER et (MEED) 3t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR  ARBTR ARRTR ARETR ARMTR ARMTx ARMTn

Chairman £33

Mr. Guan Yihong ('Mr Guan’) EREEE(EEE] - 967 104 18 1,089 734 1823
Executive directors BTES

Mr. Li Zhuoguang LS - 651 121 17 789 959 1,748
Ms. Cui Longyu EFTAL - 649 123 2 793 1,358 2,151
Mr. He Chengxiao RS - 835 126 2 982 1,461 2,443

Independent non-executive directors B FHTEE

Mr. Deng Tao BEks 120 - - - 120 - 120
Ms. Tang Zhihui (note (2) EREBLL () 120 - - - 120 - 120
Ms. Zhu Rui (note () RERT (W) 120 = = = 120 = 120
Total &t 360 3,102 474 77 4,013 4,512 8,525
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBIRARME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 B & BASN + AN R H517)

7 EEHM 2

Year ended 31 December 2021
B0 128318 ILEE

7 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Directors’ Salaries,
and allowances Retirement Share-based
supervisors' and other  Discretionary scheme payments
fees benefits bonuses  contributions Sub-Total (note (b)) Total
SRt R
EER Ho 2R et
B ey Efoih WETL  RIGHEIE gt (P (o)) @t
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
ARETE  ARETT  ARETR ARETR ARETT  ARETR  ARETR
Chairman £
Mr Guan Bk - 819 68 17 904 125 1029
Executive directors YTES
Mr.Li Zhuoguang FHREE = 692 120 16 828 848 1676
Ms. Cui Longyu EFFNL - 692 120 20 832 1,063 1,895
Mr. He Chengxiao s - 879 202 20 1,001 1,085 2,186
Independent non-executive directors BAFH1TES
Mr. Zhong Weibin EERLE
(resigned on 16 April 2021) (R021F4 A6 AEHT) 30 : - - 30 = 30
Mr. Deng Tao i)y 120 L - - 120 - 120
Mr.van Xu BEEE
(resigned on 16 April 2021) (R0 F4 16 AREHE) 200 - - - 200 = 200
Ms. Tang Znihui (note (z)) ERERL (M) 90 - - - 9% - 9%
Ms. Zhu Rui (note (a)) RERL (W) % - - - 9 - %
Total it 530 3082 510 73 4195 3021 7316
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R B RAR MR

(Fxpressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B8 5= B &85 + AA REZTR)

7 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Notes:

(@) Ms. Tang Zhihui and Ms. Zhu Rui were appointed as independent non-
executive directors of the Company on 16 April 2021.

(b) These represent the estimated value of restricted stock units and share
options granted to the directors under the Company's restricted stock units
scheme and share option scheme. The value of these shares/share options
is measured according to the Group's accounting policies for share-based
payment transactions as set out in note 1(r)(ii) and, in accordance with that
policy, includes adjustments to reverse amounts accrued in previous years
where grants of equity instruments are forfeited prior to vesting.

(c)  During the year ended 31 December 2022, there were no amounts paid or
payable by the Group to the directors or any of the highest paid individuals
set out in note 8 below as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as a compensation for loss of office (2021: nil). There was no arrangement
under which a director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: nil).

(d) The executive directors confirmed that their emoluments shown above were
paid for their services in connection with the management of the affairs of
the Company and the Group.

8 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, four (2021: four) are
directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 7. The emolument in

respect of the other one (2021: one) individual is as follows:

7 EEHM 2

fE

@) BEEBLLRABRIN2021F4A16BH%
ZEBRNARBLIFNTES -

(b) WRRRBEARBZRGIBN FLE N E
IRFERT B TEEROSIR G B R BB
R EEHEE © SR ERENEE
ARIBIEEE1 (1) (1) AT B AN 5 B DA R A A E R Y
MR ZH & BERETE - RE - RIBEZK
R BEUBEBIERNNERTARNBE
FRERFTOB @S RIEHFE -

(© REZE20202%F12A8318ILEFE @ AEEH
EHEEN NXHEsEHEAZEHEM
AL SKEMERGRIE - (ERIMAREE
B A0 AN 55 [ 1% | 28 B 3K 1 A B T A (2
(20214F : &) - M EAESNEZ 20226
12831 BIEFERES R EREEMED
ZHE (20214F « 4&) -

(d) BITESER - EXIREENFMIIE
FSERARARAEEEBORE A

8 mEMENAL

BEoEenAR/ALTEENA (20214 : [0
Z)EE HEBRKE7HE - SEHEM
—% (2021F : —%) ATHBSWT :

2022 2021
20225 20214F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARBT T

Salaries and other emoluments Fe hEME 913 931
Discretionary bonuses BB TEAT 84 83
Share-based payments LARRAD B E R A 3R 24 187
Retirement scheme contributions RIRET B R 28 27

1,049 1,228
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 B & BASN + AN R H517)

8 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

The emolument of the one (2021: one) individual with the highest

emoluments is within the following bands:

8 BEEMiE&rnm AL

—% (2021F : —&) e er A TH BN
ENFTHEE :

2022 2021

20225 20214

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

AE AH

HKD1,000,001 — HKD1,500,000 1,000,001 7L 21,500,000 7T 1 1

9 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Tax effects relating to each component of other comprehensive income

2022 2021
20225 202145

Before-tax Tax Net-oftax  Before-tax Tax  Net-of tax

amount  expense  amount amount  expense amount

BRBLA BEk  BREE Bt

&R HERX ] *8  BERX Eax:

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000

ARBTRE ARBTR ARBTR AR%ETT ARETT ARETR
Exchange differences on translation of financial BERE R A F R R A

statements of operations outside the Mainland China X Z 8 213,295 - 213,295 (79,770) - (79,770)
Equity investments at fair value through other BATEH AR 2 EREEN
comprehensive income - net movement in fair ek s - ATEREEEFE

value reserve (non-recycling) (RapE) (165780) 39336  (126444) 177275 (44504) 132771

Other comprehensive income EthZmiE 47,515 39,336 86,851 97,505 (44,504) 53,001
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=
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BA SRR FTRE

(Fxpressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B8 5= B &85 + AA REZTR)

10 BIRER

10 EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a) Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2022 is based on the profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company of RMB49,280,000 (2021: RMB339,936,000) and the
weighted average of 1,453,662,569 shares (2021: 1,453,410,000) in issue
during the year.

(a)

SREREF

HE200F12A31BLEFENERERR
F IR F A AR B 2 AR ER B A s I A R
49,280,0007T (20214 = AR#339,936,000
7o) - READEITIR G A I E T E
1,453,662,5690% (20214F : 1,453,410,0000%)

AT -
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
Shares Shares
BE 1% 2%
Issued shares at 1 January ®1ATBE&ITRG 1,453,410,000 1,453,410,000
Effect of shares issued due to exercise of share EITEREREMEITRNOTE
options 252,569 =
Weighted average number of shares at 12 A31 BEIAR 5 InAE 5 £
31 December 1,453,662,569 1,453,410,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBIRARME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 B & BASN + AN R H517)

10 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 10 8RER (&)
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) BREERER

The calculation of diluted earnings per share during the year ended
31 December 2022 is based on the profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company of RMB49,280,000 (2021: RMB339,936,000)
and the weighted average of 1,453,662,569 shares (2021: 1,453,970,000),

calculated as follows:

HZE2022F 1283 ALEENEREE
BAIRA R A R R PG & A A R
49,280,0007T (20214 = AR#339,936,000
7o) - R BN T EL1,453,662,5690%8
(20214 : 1,453,970,0008%) 5t 40K :

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TT ARETT

Weighted average number of ordinary shares at 12 A31 B 89 E BRIt 1ok

31 December 1,453,662,569 1,453,410,000
Effect of deemed issue of shares under the RIBEAR R B W B IRERT IR

Company's share option scheme for nil NEREBEHITRNDONZE

consideration (note 26) (FfzE26) - 560,000
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 12 A31 B A9 mAR hnsE

(diluted) at 31 December FIHE (HE) 1,453,662,569 1,453,970,000

For year ended 31 December 2022, the potential ordinary shares of
restricted stock units scheme and employee’s share option scheme were

anti-dilutive.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B M RAR M

b2 0 =]

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (bt 5 G aZ 8550 + U R¥EZIT)

NYE- - BERREREAEER

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSET

(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount

E
(a) BREIEYIAR

Kitchen Furniture Buildings
equipment  Leasehold and fixtures situated on
Property- andothers-  land - Leasehold Kitchen ~ Electronic Motor ~ andother  Frechold  freehold Construction
Right-of-  Right-of-  Right-of- improvement-  equipment-  equipment-  vehicles- equipment-  land- land - in progress -
useassets  useassets  useassets  Subtotal Owned Owned Owned ~ Owned ~ Owned  Owned Owned Owned  Subtotal Total
EERE BER BAfR
0%-  Rik- EEDH- WREE KAER
fFE AR EAR E E E B REt EBRA  i#zl E
& & i Mt HEEE EERE B3R g 3% EEid NeF  ERIR it it
RMBOOD  RMBOOO  AMBOO0  RMBOOO0 RMBO00 RMB000 RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBOOD RMB 00 RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBUOOO
ARBTL ARETT ARBTT ARETZ  ARBTR  ARETr ARETR ARMTR ARMTT ARBTR ARETT ARETR ARBTR ARETR
Cost: A
At 1 January 2021 ROE1A1R 200459 665 - N 468530 154330 58002 5380 57,567 4504 518 17516 766341 27775%
Additions RE 594304 - B 617.901 108172 53806 17741 1935 11438 - - 120021 313113 931014
Trnsfer fiom constucton EBALRIE
In progress - - = - 93630 1130 - - 13149 - - (127.909) = -
Disposzls il (209657) (6465) - D6 [42657) (14616) (6082 (153) 5659 o 5 5 (69761)  (285283)
Tanertointangbleassets ~ EREERAE - - - - - - - - - - - Be) B (67
Bxchange adjustments Eige (484 0 = (439) (174) () @ = ) (68) (1) (1) 347) (839)
At31 December 2021 and RnEnR31BR
1 January 2022 WNF1R1A 2388758 187 BT 241254 627,507 214617 69657 7162 76470 4406 506 5955 100628 3418822
Additions RE 525352 - 10259 535611 04599 4476 16428 m 12299 - - 01103 359362 894973
Trensfer fiom constuction EBALRIE
in progress - - - - 85547 15813 l - 6,175 S = (107.5%) = =
Other disposals EfitE %41 = o [93431) (15917) 9848) (3451) (10) (3759 A = 5 (32083 (126416)
Disposel o a non-wholly nE-Fk2E
owned subsidiry KB (8815) - - (8815) (1.55) (4) (139 - 1] - - - (164) (1049
Tanfertointengbleassels ~ EREERAE - - - - - - - - - - - 148 (%8 (1400
Bxchange adjustments S 4169 5 - 4174 1878 174 P - 3 118 1 15 234 6508
At 31 December 2022 RORENANA 2816033 192 386 2850081 762359 26509 8579 138 91291 451 20 18071 1331%1 4182042
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBIRARME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 B & BASN + AN R H517)

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSET (continued)

(@) Reconciliation of carrying amount (continued)

=)

(a) BREE¥AR (&)

NYE- - BERREREAEER

Kitchen Furniture Buildings
equipment  Leasehold and fixtures situated on
Property - and others - fand - Leasehold Kitchen  Electronic Motor ~ andother  Freehold freehold ~ Construction
Right-of-  Right-of- Right-of- improvement-  equipment- equipment-  vehicles- equipment-  land- land - in progress -
useassets  useassets  useassets  Subtotal Owned Owned Owned ~ Owned  Owned Owned Owned Owned  Subtotal Total
EERE BEEA BAfH
0E-  Rik- EEih- HR%E KAER
fFE AR EAR £ EH £ BE  REt ABAA  t#zl EH
& g i Mt HEEE ERERE  B1RR g R EEi KeT  ERIE it it
RMBOOD  RMBO00 RMBOOD  RMBOOO RMBO00 RMB000 RMBOOD  RMBO00 RUBOOD  RMBOOO RMB000 RMB 000 RMBOOD  RMBO0O
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT  ARETR  ARBTn  ARETR ARETr ARETr ARETr ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR
Accumulated depreciation: ~ E3FHE
AtT January 2021 MR 17534 4964 - 780306 207635 35,904 26705 2132 17797 - b - 300179 1090485
Charge for the year Epi 341449 605 9 34254 102701 3261 821 86 11639 - ] - 155730 498,276
Wiitten back on disposals AHENHE (157671) (5533) - (163204 (35,709) (1019 (4992) (150) (4354) = = = (55399 (218603)
Bxchange adjustments EiAE (191) 0 - (19) (8) 1] 0) = (14 - (M - (1) (304)
At31 December 2021 VPRI
and 1 January 2022 WE1A1A 958929 b3) 9 959456 21454 7794 29929 2868 25068 - i - 410398 136985
Charge for the year ERik 401766 3 4 120040 39612 10089 e REY) - 3 O 5[ K )
Witten backon other disposals ~ EE it EME (86.259) S S (89,259) (14748) (7656) (2966) 9 m) = - - (8092 (114351)
Witten back on disposa of AYE-FE2E
anon-uholowneg suhsdiary  HEAZHAE (74) - M) (1241 (153 ) - m - - N 7 I (0]
Exchange adjustments EiAE %7 1 = 988 n 18 6 - 0 - 4 - m 1259
At 31 December 2022 RONENANA 169681 59 1716 127145 378816 109785 36962 3 36,086 = 08 = 565430 1836886
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B M RAR M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (bt 5 G aZ 8550 + U R¥EZIT)

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSET (continued)

(@) Reconciliation of carrying amount (continued)

=)

(a) BREIE¥AR (&)

NYE- - BERREREAEE

Kitchen Furniture Buildings
equipment  Leasehold and fixtures situated on
Property- andothers-  land - Leasehold Kitchen  Electronic Motor ~ andother ~ Frechold  freehold ~Construction
Right-of- Right-of-  Right-of- improvement-  equipment- equipment-  vehicles- equipment-  land- land - in progress -
useassets  useassets  useassets  Subtotal Owned Owned Owned ~ Owned  Owned  Owned Owned Owned  Subtotal Total
HERE BARA BAfH
0E-  REk- EEih- WREE KAER
fFE GAE  RAR E £ E B REt ABRA  i#zl £
& g i Mt HEEE EERE B3R g 3% ERid KEF  ERIE it it
RMBOOD  RMBO00 RMBOOD  RMBOOO RUBO00 RMBO00 RMBOOD  RMBO00 RUBOOD  RMBOOO RMB 000 RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOO
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT  ARETR  ARBTr  ARETn ARETr ARETr ARETr ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR
Impairment; HE:
At T January 2021 RonE1R1R 14993 14993 6,962 238 ] 856 1137 26,130
Addition RE 11029 5690 2081 18800 18800
Wien backon disposdls RiEHHE 6039 6039 6789 (1064 ] B89 63y (12269
At31 December 2021 ROnEnA3IBR
and 1 January 2022 WNEIAIR 8958 8958 14202 6954 1548 B0 32662
Addition #E 4504 199 668 7167 7167
Wiiten backon disposdls REhiE (59 (59 8] 63) (108 bn (4
Witten back on disposel AtE-FE2E
of 3 non-wholly onned RN
uUbsidiary (819 819) 56) (56) (873)
At31 December 2022 EIEREILE 7633 = 7633 18230 8570 3,108 29908 3154
Net Book Value: BH¥E:
At 31 December 2022 ROENANA 1538719 133 040 1570992 35313 146939 4617 3610 52097 454 41 18071 73668 2307615
At 31 December 2021 ROnERANA 14080 152 BI05 1444128 336,763 129699 3978 4294 4884 4406 479 5995 S8 2016306
— T = — 43k ANNUAL REPORT 2022 o 177

—_=__



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBIRARME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b5 G aZ855) + AN R ¥ZT)

NYE -  BERRERERAEER

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND

(a)

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSET (continued)
Reconciliation of carrying amount (continued)
Impairment loss

As at the end of each reporting period, in view of the unfavourable
future prospects of certain restaurants, the Group’s management
estimated the recoverable amount of each such restaurant (cash-
generating unit (“CGU")) with indication of impairment. The recoverable
amount of each CGU is determined based on the value-in-use
calculations by preparing cash flow projections of the relevant CGU
derived from the most recent financial forecast approved by the
management covering the remaining lease term. Based on the result
of the assessments, the management of the Group determined that
the recoverable amounts of certain CGUs are lower than the carrying
amounts. The impairment amount has been allocated to each category
of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets such that the
carrying amount of each category of asset is not reduced below the
highest of its fair value less cost of disposal, its value in use and zero. The
cash flows are discounted using a discount rate ranging from 13.34% to
25.54% as at 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021: 13.32% to 27.26%).
The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating to the
relevant CGU.

As at 31 December 2022, an impairment loss of RMB7,167,000 (31
December 2021: RMB18,800,000) was recognised in profit or loss to write
down the carrying amounts of respective property, plant and equipment
to their recoverable amounts of RMB39,681,000 (31 December 2021:
RMB19,343,000). The above impairment loss was allocated to the assets
including leasehold improvement and other equipment within the CGU

on a pro rata basis.
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E (&)

(a) BREIE¥IER (&)

VRN =

REEREBRR - SRS T 2B RKA
STE - AEBEREC M ARETR
NEEHREE(ReELEN) JRES
o SHeEEEMMAIRESETRE
CREBEFNEFEEE HER: BREE
EEMENSIRVBEENCREHRTH
EH) N EHEBRSELENNBESRE
A - BRIETHER  AEBEEEET
ETHeEEASEMMAKRESEERED
B -RESEE RESENE  BEK
BEAREAREE  NESEEENR
HENMEREAFEREERE - HEH
BERZEZENESHE ° 702022 F12 A31
H ReEREEAMBEENF13.34%
Z2554% (20214128318 : 13.32% 2
27.26%) I o AT AR E9HTIR R Th R B AT IE
Rk ELAARAIR & A B A B B E R -

2022412 8318 » ERNBEERREES
BAREK7,167,0007T (20215124318 : A
R#18,800,0007T) ' LAKEAME - KE

FENRAEMRZETTKRESEAR
#39,681,0007C (202112 A318 : AREE
19,343,0007T,) ° 3R (B &5 18 T Lt Il 5 e
ERECELABVANEEMERE R M



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R B RAR MR

(Fxpressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B8 5= B &85 + AA REZTR)

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND 11

(b)

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSET (continued)

Right-of-use assets

(b)

The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by class of

underlying asset is as follows:

M¥E- BERREREAESE
E®)

EREEE

REREEDBENEREEENKREFE
DM

2022 2021
20225 20214F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®ETT ARET T

Property — Right-of-use assets, carried at

YE - EREEE

depreciated cost (note (i) PASTE R AN BR (BT 3E()) 1,538,719 1,420,871
Kitchen equipment — Right-of-use assets, BIE&E — EAEEE -
carried at depreciated cost (note (ii)) LAY B B AR 21 B (B (i) ) 133 152
Leasehold land - Right-of-use assets, HELTH —FRAEEE -
carried at depreciated cost (note (iii)) VAFT & K AN %1 BR (B3 Gii)) 32,140 23,105
1,570,992 1,444,128
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11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND

(b)

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSET (continued)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases recognised in profit or

loss is as follows:

(b) EREEE (&)

NYE BERREREAESE
E®)

HEANERTRZANEERBNREBE W
DT ¢

2022 2021
20225 20214F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETT
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets by BEEBEED ENERAEEERN
class of underlying asset: TEMX
Property — Right-of-use assets mHE - ERERE 401,766 341,449
Kitchen equipment and others — Right-of-use BE®ZEREMm — FRAEEE
assets 23 605
Leasehold land - Right-of-use assets HELTH —FREEE 1,224 492
403,013 342,546
Interest on lease liabilities (note 5(a)) HEBENFE (H756) 78,663 73,402
Expense relating to short-term leases H1%G HAFE EAERA A 2 56,099 36,215
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets HREEEAEHEEENRX -
(excluding short-term leases of low-value assets) TEEREEEENESHHEE 97 47
Variable lease payments not included in the Rt AHEB BT =M A&
measurement of lease liabilities HERRK 31,161 63,583
COVID-19-related rent concessions received B UER 201978 M m S m A
HEH% (4,109) (4,305)
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(b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R B RAR MR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 &7 885) » U EEZITR)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSET (continued)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

During the year, additions to right-of-use assets were RMB535,611,000
(31 December 2021: RMB617,901,000). This amount included the
purchase of a leasehold land of RMB10,259,000 (31 December 2021:
RMB23,597,000), and the remainder primarily related to the capitalised

lease payments payable under new tenancy agreements.

Details of total cash outflow for leases and the maturity analysis of lease

liabilities are set out in notes 19(d) and 22, respectively.

The Group early adopted the Amendment to IFRS 16, Leases, Covid-
19-related rent concessions beyond 30 June 2021 in the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2021, and applies the
practical expedient to all eligible rent concessions received by the

Group. Further details are disclosed in (i) below.

NYE - - BERRERERAEER

E (&)

(b) EREEE (&)

RERN EREEERERARK
535,611,0007C (2021128318 : AR
617,901,0007T) ° Lk BEHEEHE L
AER#10,259,0007T (2021412 A31H = A
R#23,597,0007T)  MEREEE B EHRIRS
HEHRENNEMAESNHER

MERSRHARERMAEAGIBHB ST
FIED RIE AT FE19(d) & 22 °

AEBEREE2021F12 831 HIEFED
M RRIBERABE T KR EERE 16
55 HEBETA - 202146 530 H#692019
Mk mERIGEAERE  WERAEE
WEBHEEERHSHERANITEE
0k o E—TFIBEEN T X) °
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R BB IRAR MR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 B & BASN + AN R H517)

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSET (continued)

(b) Right-of-use assets (continued)

Notes:

(i)  Property — Right-of-use assets

AND

The Group has obtained the right to use properties as its restaurants through
tenancy agreements. The leases run for an initial period of 2 to 12 years.

The Group leased a number of restaurants which contain vari

able lease

payment terms that are based on sales generated from the restaurants and
minimum annual lease payment terms that are fixed. These payment terms

are common in restaurants in mainland China where the Group
operates. During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,
received rent concessions in the form of a discount on fixed

principally
the Group
payments

during the period of severe social distancing and travel restriction measures

introduced to contain the spread of COVID-19. The amount of

fixed and

NYE BERREREAESE
E®)

(b) EREEE (&)
GEE

Rl

M - ERREAE

AEEDEAHEERERSEMEIEREE
BER - HORTAH2E12FF -

AEEZHEENHERESERBEREL
RHERELETEXESFHENRIGEROT]
BHEMRIER - ZENREREREEE
ERENTRANBERER - REE2022
FR2021F12A31HILFE - AEBELB
1E201 958 AR TR (45 1 B e AR AR 41 A BB B
T B e PR IS pE O EARS - DA E R0
FRUBASRE - FANEERAIEHE

variable lease payments for the year is summarised below: e BBanT
2022
20224
COVID-19 rent concessions
2019 BRFEFHELSHE
Variable Deducted
payments from
Fixed and other variable Recognised Total
payments rentals payments as income Subtotal payments
AR#ARR REAEER
B E R HitfH € Hkx  ERAEBA Nat BT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR¥TR AR%BTRT AR¥TR AR¥®TR AR%TxR
Leased assets HEEE 445,493 87,357 (4,109) - (4,109) 528,741
2021
20214
COVID-19 rent concessions
20195 IR B HIE SRR
Variable Deducted
payments from
Fixed and other variable Recognised Total
payments rentals payments as income Subtotal payments
AERR  RAIERR
& E K Hibh % kR BERB/KA NEF B
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARBTRT ARETRT ARETT ARBTT
Leased assets HEBE 391,676 99,845 (2,960) (1,345) (4,305) 487,216
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R B RAR MR

(Fxpressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B8 5= B &85 + AA REZTR)

NYE - - BERRERERAEER

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSET (continued)

(b) Right-of-use assets (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(ii)

(if)

(iv)

Kitchen equipment — Right-of-use assets

The Group leases certain kitchen equipment under leases expiring from 3
years. None of the leases includes variable lease payments.

Leasehold land - Right-of-use assets

The Group’s land-use rights on leasehold land are located in the PRC.
Amortisation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
respective periods of the land-use rights, which are 20 to 50 years (2021: 20
years).

The Group has obtained the 50-year land use right through a land use rights
transfer agreement to construct and establish a multifunctional national
supply chain center base during the years ended 31 December 2022. A lump
sum payment was made upfront to acquire the land use right and there are
no ongoing payments to be made.

Rental deposits

The refundable rental deposit itself is not part of the lease payments and is in
the scope of IFRS 9. Therefore, the rental deposit should be measured at fair
value on initial recognition. The difference between the initial fair value and
the nominal value of the deposit is an additional lease payment made by the
Group and it is included in the measurement of the right-of-use assets.

E (&)
(b) ERREE (&)

BaE - (&)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

BRERE - EAREE
AEBERROEEETEERE - BRA
3% - EAE RS TRAENR -

METH — FEREEE

ANEENFE 380+t AR R R E o
RIBSFER M IR E R AR ER Tt E A
HOER AR E - A20E504F (20214 :
204F) ©

HE202F12831BIEEE  AEEER
b {5 FRME B G 15 s B R HA SO G 9 L (s
B RN ET 22 B RS D
i o B ARS THEAEB AN —FXK
B BERENK -

HERS

TIRETE RS AL I A —
5 LEERHGREEAFRNBE -
it - TR IR AR 45 RERRS 1 2 fAiEt
£ - ML 0NS AT EREERN0ZERA
S5 B0 L KOOV B 3L R A R R A
EHHE -
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e MBIRARME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 B & BASN + AN R H517)

12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

12 BEREE

Software Brand name Total
B mEER @st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETT
Cost: B
At 1 January 2021 R2021F1 818 13,488 6,389 19,877
Purchases BE 6,309 - 6,309
Transferred from construction in progress EEBEEETRE 3,672 - 3,672
Exchange adjustments PE R - (139) (139)
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 M2021F 128318 &
202291 A81H 23,469 6,250 29,719
Purchases BE 10,570 - 10,570
Transferred from construction in progress EERATETIRE 1,406 = 1,406
Disposal of a non-wholly owned subsidiary HE—MIEZEMBE LA (26) = (26)
Exchange adjustments ME 5, 58 2 = 167 167
At 31 December 2022 202212 A31H 35419 6,417 41,836
Accumulated amortisation: E- 5 £
At 1 January 2021 R2021E1 A1H 7,538 425 7,963
Charge for the year FRMk 2,126 1,286 3,412
Exchange adjustments b N % - (45) (45)
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 R2021F12 8318 &
2022%1 A1H 9,664 1,666 11,330
Charge for the year FRNk 4,627 1,291 5918
Written back on disposal of a non-wholly HE—FE2ENRB AT
owned subsidiary [ (12) - (12)
Exchange adjustments PE 5 L - 38 38
At 31 December 2022 M2022F 12 A31H 14,279 2,995 17,274
Net book value: FREFE :
At 31 December 2022 M2022F12 A31H 21,140 3,422 24,562
At 31 December 2021 2021912831 H 13,805 4,584 18,389

The amortisation charge for the year is included in “depreciation and
amortisation of other assets” in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 &7 885) » U EEZITR)

13 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES 13 RIFBARNERE

(a) List of subsidiaries ORIENGETIES
The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries which THREBSHAEENES  BENERE
principally and significantly affected the results, assets or liabilities of the EEEAREZZENNE QRS -
Group.

Proportion of ownership interest

FEZ R LA
Place of Particulars of Group's
incorporation and issued and effective  Held by the Held by a
Company name operation paid-up capital interest Company  subsidiary  Principal activities
MR BRIR AEE (i) |
DAER Egy MRERFE EEES ARAKE  DEABE  IEEH
Jiumaojiu (Guangzhou) Holdings Limited The PRC RMB 234,058,200 100% - 100%  Investment holding
("IMJ Holdings") (i)(il
RENBM) BRAERDE (TAEAER) (6) PE N REER
234,058,2007T
Guangzhou Jiumaojiu Catering Chain Co,, Ltd. The PRC RMB 133,690,000 100% - 100%  Restaurant operations and
(Guangzhou Jiumaojiu”) (ii) relevant delivery business
BMNAENEREHEERAR (EMAEAL) () HE NS EEEE AN ERY
133,690,0007C
Foshan Maidian Food Co, Ltd. (ii) The PRC RMB 50,000,000 100% = 100%  Food processing and
central kitchens
RILTESRRERAR) e ARE RAMIRTRERE
50,000,0007T
Nanjing Jiumaojiu Restaurant Management The PRC RMB 30,000,000 100% - 100%  Restaurant operations and
Co, Ltd. (ii) relevant delivery business
BRNENERERBRAR) i ARE EEER LRI ERR
30,000,000
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R B RAR MR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 B & BASN + AN R H517)

13 ABATRNKRE &)

13 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(a) List of subsidiaries (continued)

(a) MIBARIIR (&)

Proportion of ownership interest

&R LAl
Place of Particulars of Group's
incorporation and issued and effective  Held by the Held by a
Company name operation paid-up capital interest Company  subsidiary  Principal activities
R BRTR A& ) |
DAER B2y HRERFE EEEE ADAKE  LARABE  IEEH
Guangzhou Tai Er Catering Chain Co, Ltd. The PRC RMB 140,376,028 88% = 88%  Restaurant operations and
("Tai Er Catering") (ii) relevant delivery business

BMA—BREHARRA (TAER) (i) el AR EEEL AR GRS

140,376,0287C

Shanghai Er You Catering Management Co, Ltd. The PRC RMB 30,000,000 88% - 88%  Restaurant operations and

("Shanghai Er You') (ii) relevant delivery business

FE-RERERERAR ([ LE=AM P ARE EEEE LRI ERER

30,000,0007T

Tai Er (Guangzhou) Investment Co,, Ltd. (i The PRC RMB 10,000,000 100% - 100%  Investment holding

A= (BM) REBRAR) hE ARE RAER

10,000,0007C
Guangzhou Pin Xin Yue Gu Enterprise Management  The PRC RMB 99,800,000 100% = 100%  Investment holding
Co, Ltd. (i)

EHRERACEERERAAI) G AR REER

99,800,0007C

Notes: BfsE -

(i)  This entity is wholly foreign owned enterprise in the PRC. The official name of (i) EZE?%%E* “\@B’\W\‘ﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁ% ° ZEBY
this entity is in Chinese. The English translation of the name is for reference BEAREATX - HEREN B EFEMR
only. 2% o

(i) These entities are PRC limited liability companies. The official names of these (ii) EZ%E‘%%‘? ﬁﬁﬁﬁ&@aﬁ ° E%%?E%W\J
entities are in Chinese. The English translation of the names is for reference EE%WZ%EPX MR B A R (E 4
only. 2E -
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subsidiaries of the Group which has a material non-controlling
interest (NCI). The summarised financial information presented

below represents the amounts before any inter-company

elimination.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R B RAR MR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 &7 885) » U EEZITR)

13 ABARNKRE &)

13 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(b) The following table lists out the information relating to the

Tai Er Catering

(b) TRINGAERERIITB S (F
zhiiEm) MAKENBRRER - T
NE2FNFBEEHBER QR RME
RIH)SHE

Shanghai Er You

p gt 33 tE=F
2022 2021 2022 2021
20224 20214 20224 20214F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTT AR%BTR ARBTT
NC| percentage (note 27(c)(vii)) FERERA DL
(P sE27(c)(vii)) 12% 12% 12% 12%
Current assets MEAE 228,784 205,097 39,873 81,899
Non-current assets EMENEE 794,964 835,127 210,396 218,586
Current liabilities BB E 239,035 57,044 55,524 21,103
Non-current liabilities FRBEE 566,451 594,294 164,197 167,606
Net assets FEE 218,262 388,886 30,548 111,776
Carrying amount of NCI FEERE R IREE 26,191 46,666 66 9,813
Revenue KA 1,673,416 1,981,766 362,026 473,753
Profit for the year F & A 159,379 190,591 7 41,556
Total comprehensive income ZHIKERTE 159,379 190,591 7 41,556
Profit allocated to NCl g 2= FEERR
T 2 ) 9,380 28,175 1 6,070
Dividend paid to NCI XA T IR S
%S (39,600) (7,500 - =
Cash flows generated from KEEBEHRERE
operating activities 600,665 305,334 147,485 72,978
Cash flows used in investing RETMARESRE
activities (64,897) (70,171) (8,172) (16,461)
Cash flows used in financing BETEFFARERE
activities (503,402) (212,930) (136,535) (53,676)
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e MBIRARME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 B & BASN + AN R H517)

14 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

14 REFE QR MNER

2022 2021

20224 20214

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARBTT

Interests in associates N NSl OE F 10,066 13,085
The following list contains the particulars of associates, which are TRETNEERRFE - ZFHE QT

unlisted corporate entities whose quoted market price is not available:

REFRETSRENIF LT ARER

Form of Place of Particulars of  Proportion of ownership
business incorporation issuedand interest and voting rights
Name of associate structure and business paid-up capital  held by the Groupasat  Principal activities
BN BRIk ARERUTERREN
BELNRER ERRERA  £ERE BHRERRE HEEEERREELN TTEE
2022 2021
2022% 20215
Guangzhou Jiang Er Dai Catering Co,, Ltd. ("Jiang  Incorporated The PRC RMB280,000 30% 30%  Restaurant operations and relevant
Er Dai") (note (i)) delivery business, mainly providing
Xinjiang-style cuisine
EMB_RERBRAR (B=K)) ERIZA f AR%280,0007C RESLLABNERS
(BitsE0) IEREFBAKER
Guangzhou Hun Fan Chi Catering Incorporated The PRC RMBB827,129 13% 13%  Restaurant operations and relevant
Management Co,, Ltd. ("Hun Fan Chi") delivery business, mainly providing
(note (i)(ii) Chaoshan flavour cuisine
BMRACERERERAR (MR S i AR%8271297C RESLLABNERS
(HE=E ) FEREHIERER
Guangdong Tai Er Agricultural Science and Incorporated The PRC RMB13,000,000 49% 49%  Trading
Technology Co, Ltd. (‘Guangdong Tai Er
Agricultural’) (note (i)
BERAZREMRERAA aEfit AL Gl AR#13,000,0007C g5

(TRRAZRZ)) (M)
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R B RAR MR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 &7 885) » U EEZITR)

14 REEE N TR (&)

14 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Form of Place of Particulars of  Proportion of ownership
business incorporation issuedand interest and voting rights
Name of associate structure and business paid-up capital ~ held by the Groupasat  Principal activities
ERALE BRIk AKERUTERREN
NGRS ERRBEA  EERE HREREE BOERERREBLA FTEE
2022 2021
20226 20215
Heyuan Tai Er Agricultural Science and Incorporated The PRC RMB10,000,000 49% 49%  Fish farming
Technology Co, Ltd.
("Heyuan Tai Er Agricultural’) (note (7))
MRAZBENRERAR EEai/ AV PE ARE10000,0007C )
(DRR=RZ 1) ()
Jiangmen Tai Niu Agricultural Technology Incorporated The PRC RMB500,000 49% - (attle farming
Co, Ltd. ("Jiangmen Tai Niu Agricultural’)
(note (i)
IFAGBENBEERAR EaljzAYI E ARE5000007C 2%

(NIFAFRX]) (HEEH)

The above associates are accounted for using the equity method in the

financial statements.
Notes:

(i) The official names of these entities are in Chinese.The English translation of
the names is for identification only.

(i)  The Group has nominated one director out of a total of five directors on
the board of the entity, and in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the Group can exercise significant influence on the financial and operating
policy decision of the entity.

FitiB A RE ARSI EAREMBIRE

BERNTE T BRATX - HER IR
EEHBA -

rEFEREZERESSaAIRES Y
R —EER - AARRERRA - A5H
AHZEBNU B REEBRARERER

=272
2
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e MBIRARME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 B & BASN + AN R H517)

14 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 14 R E R T RER (&)
Aggregate information of associates that are not individually material: (BRI S PN o) AN 2
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET ARET T
Aggregate carrying amount of individually FEVBEmEAPERNIEEXR
immaterial associates in the consolidated @‘ ERRIMRERE
financial statements 10,066 13,085
Aggregate amounts of the Group's share of those 75 B B (R B & A R A9 4858
associates’
- (Losses)/profits and total comprehensive income — — 84 & E TS JE‘E‘TE)/
from continuing operations A R R E s R (3,264) 984
15 OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS 15 HitERBemERE
2022 2021
2022 % 20214F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREBT T
Equity securities designated at FVOCI EERRAFEFARMEME
(non-recycling) Wz B IR AN 38 25 (R AT E])
— Unlisted equity securities (note (a)) — EEMRAES (HizE@) 54,009 211,354
— Listed equity securities (note (b)) — EmRRAES (KisED) 11,410 18,473
Financial assets measured at FVPL RAVEFABRITENEHEE
— Investments in limited partnership enterprises —REREBLENRE
(note (c)) (Bt EE()) 29,601 29,601
— Investments in funds (note (d)) — RELHIRE (MiFEd) 58,844 61,174
153,864 320,602
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R B RAR MR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 &7 885) » U EEZITR)

15 OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

(continued)

Notes:

()

The Group held unlisted equity investments in several entities. The entities
are incorporated in the PRC and engaged in investing, catering, or food and
beverage industry. The Group designated its investments in unlisted equity
securities at FVOCI (non-recycling), as the investments are held for strategic
purposes. Fair value of each unlisted equity securities is determined by the
directors of the Company with reference to the valuation performed, using
the price-to-sales ratios of comparable listed companies adjusted for lack
of marketability discount if no market information of recent transactions
is available, such as recent fund-raising transactions undertaken by the
investees. Otherwise, the costs are used as approximation of fair value if the
initial investment date is relatively close to the measurement date, or the
investees are start-up entities when there is no catalyst for a change in fair
value.

The Group held equity securities listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The Group designated its investments
in the listed equity securities at FVOCI (non-recycling), as the investments
are held for long-term investment purpose. Fair value of the listed equity
securities is measured by referencing to the stock price.

The Group held investments in limited partnership enterprises (the
“Partnership Enterprise(s)”). These Partnership Enterprises are specialised in
equity investment. The Group has an intention of holding such investments
as long-term investments. According to the Partnership Enterprises
agreements, the Partnership Enterprises are managed by their general
partner. The Group participates in the Partnership Enterprise as one of the
limited partners who does not have power on selection nor removal of assets
manager or general partner of the Partnership Enterprise. In addition, the
Group does not have any right on making operating, investing and financing
decision of the Partnership Enterprise. The directors are of the opinion that
the Group does not have any control nor significant influence to affect
the variable returns through its investment in the Partnership Enterprise
and therefore these investments are accounted for at fair value. Fair value
of such investments is measured by referencing to the latest investment
transactions. Otherwise, the costs are used as approximation of fair value if
the initial investment date is relatively close to the measurement date, or the
investees are start-up entities when there is no catalyst for a change in fair
value.

The Group held investments in funds operated by a fund management
company. The investments are accounted for at fair value. Since the units
in the funds are redeemable at the net asset value of the funds, fair value
of such investments is measured according to the net asset value as at 31
December 2022.

15 EERBEMEE &)

AEERETERK A LTRAKE - Z
SERNPHEMKT > IRERE &
R R M MAEHTE - ARZFRETIEK
B B RS E - A AREEEZSIE LMK
AEFNRE BIEATFEF A2 E RS
(TATEME) T E - EETRAB LSS BH
RFEDEARREELERMETHEHERE
EEREMAIALR EmARMMHEE
b R = T 55 7 488 I AT AR 1 A R (i3
AR ZHTIHER - FIINRE S SO
TERERS) - BRI WeiaKRE B HHE
FTEAHEEET - IREHRAVIAIER
YHEBRNFELBELCHNERLT - EAK
AMERAFEMITUUE -

AEERBEERERARIMARRAER
ERHBRAES dARZEREDRES
KREBMES Rt AKEREEZSE LK
REHNEEBRAFEF AR 2R
(TAEEE) FHE - EMRAEFESNRFETD
SERZEHIE

AEESEEREBEE([ABEED W
BRE - ZEARECEBFARNERARE -
AEERBRARSREERIRE - RIE
BRLEN  ABLXAEEBREBAE
2 REBERERABAZ —2EHER
¥ MERABABRRELARLEER
CEMNEEETEASLTERBA ° 1 A
SEERELABLENEE  KARBRE
R - BRERE - AR EW E ARG K
FEREEN  WEBERGBEENREY
BREOE  ARZERERAFEANK -
ZERENNTENZERLRRERZ HEt
2 - BRI - WY)RIkE A HEG & B HEY
Bl SREHRBINE BRI AEATE
BHRCBNERT - fAKKERRTFE
AT EME

AEEMBAH RESEREQATCENES
HIZE - ZERERATFEAR - HRES
BUAIREASHEEFEER  BARZSFE
BH AT ERR2022F12 B31 BREEFET

=
= -
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16 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 16 HitERBEE
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T R ARETT

Advances for investment WE R 76,013 46,621
Prepayment for purchase of other property, BEHEMYZE  BER
plant and equipment RABER TR R 3,373 2,845
Amounts due from related parties (note 30(c))  FEUK BB 5 708 (BisE30(0) 47,950 =
127,336 49,466
17 INVENTORIES 17 &

(@) Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial (a) KEFHERRARANEE RS :
position comprise:

2022 2021
20225 202145
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T R ARBT T

Food ingredients B 73,056 34,919
Condiment product BEL N 23,547 17,203
Beverage Rt 4,240 2,218
Other materials E bt 17,256 16,410

118,099 70,750
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B M RAR M

(Fxpressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B8 5= B &85 + AA REZTR)

17 INVENTORIES (continued) 17 78 (&)
(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an (b) BHERAB W ABENEESE
expense and included in profit or loss is as follows: DHAT :
2022 2021
2022 20214F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARET T
Carrying amount of inventories sold EEFEREE 1,499,369 1,580,604
18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18 BE5 K H B RKA
2022 2021
2022 % 20214F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETT
Trade debtors B Z WA 20,615 12,223
Other receivables and deposits H b EYRIE R R & 312,553 222,238
Interests receivables FEUR S, 8,821 501
Prepayments SEENEN 71,061 102,476
Amounts due from related parties (note 30(c)) Uk Ba B 5 7k E (M RE30(0)) 92,406 71,520
505,456 408,958
All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be recovered or MBS S REMBYGRBABBRER —FR
recognised as expense within one year or are recovered on demand. U [e] sk g 2R A F S sl i E skl ] o
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2

B BWRMEE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 B & BASN + AN R H517)

18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 18 B R HMBWRIA (4)
Ageing analysis: BRER AT ¢
As at the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade RBEER  BBERAEIRBEHZIINE
debtors (which are included in trade and other receivables), based on SEBGRIE (GTAE 5 R H M ERGRIR) B
the revenue recognition date, is as follows: R HITANT -
2022 2021
20225 20214F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETT
Within 1 month R1EAA 20,615 12,223
Trade debtors are due within 30 days from the date of revenue B o REWHIER W AR B HEF30A R
recognition. Further details on the Group's credit policy are set out in I AERNEEEERENE—FFHE
note 28(a). BT EE28(a)

19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER BEERBEEEEBYUREME

(a)

CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

lllbiﬁﬂ
(a) RERBRLZEYEE :

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TT AR¥ETT

Cash on hand

Cash at bank

Less: restricted bank deposits (note(i))

Less: deposits with banks with original maturity

date over three months

FHERS 33 33
R17F\E 1,961,643 2,079,689
R R HIERIT R (B EEx)) (10,563) (1,792)
B REEEBB=EA N

RITIER (852,241) (735,840)

Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated

RAMBRAREESGRE

statement of financial position and the mEXRNRERBEEED
consolidated cash flow statement (note(ii)) GEIO) 1,098,872 1,342,090
(i) Asat 31 December 2022, the deposits with banks were pledged as securities ) M2022%128318  RITFERELEHIES
for a currency forward contract. As at 31 December 2021, the deposits with — P EERIIES LRI o 72021412 A31
banks were restricted for two contractual disputes by the Courts. B+ RITEREMRRE HAUD AR S o
(i) As at 31 December 2022, cash and cash equivalents placed with banks in (i) M2022%F12A8318  FRATREANHIERTT
Mainland China amounted to RMB429,861,000 (2021: RMB572,712,000). HEERRESFEYAARKE429,861,0007T
Remittance of funds out of Mainland China is subject to the relevant rules (20214 : AR¥572,712,0007T) - BLEH
and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC B B PR B U B AR B B ANE

government.

HIFR A BOERR ©
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e MBRRME

(Fxpressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B8 5= B &85 + AA REZTR)

19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER 19BERBEEEBYUREME

CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued) TREER @)
(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash generated (b) BRB AR R EBFAEIRESMNE
from operations: ik -
2022 2021
2022 20214F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
HaE ARBT T ARET T
Profit before taxation o 25 Al s A 94,331 505,920
Adjustments for: AT SIEEL L
Interest income FLEMA 4 (27,763) (14,159)
Depreciation e 5(e) 587,363 498,276
Amortisation of intangible assets A 5(e) 5,918 3,412
Finance costs BERA 5(a) 81,110 75,307
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BEREER
plant and equipment and EREEERE
right-of-use assets 5(c) 734 2,468
Share of losses/(profits) of associates FEAEERE DA RIERCRF)) 14 3,264 (984)
Impairment loss on property, Y - B KRB R
plant and equipment and FAREEREEE
right-of-use assets 5(e) 7,167 18,800
Equity-settled share-based payment DA BB AR D B EREA
expenses NRAXZ 5(b) 13,733 8,274
Losses on disposal of an indirect HE—HREFZEWB AT
non-wholly owned subsidiary [E518 5(c) 1,991 -
COVID-19-related rent concessions EYER20197E M S M AR
received HERRE 11(b) (4,109) (4,305)
Gain on disposal of the other HEEMIERED S MEEN K
non-current financial assets 5(c) - (601)
Change in fair value of other HiheREEN AT EE
financial asset 5(c) 7,686 2,389
Changes in working capital: EBEREE :
Increase in inventories FEEMN (47,349) (19,656)
Increase in trade and other B 5 I H Ath FE W R IE &
receivables and rental deposits e R (70,055) (106,744)
Increase in trade and other B 5 R EAFER FRIE N R
payables and accruals FEET & FE N 128,361 21,066
(Decrease)/increase in contract BHIBEECRD), /8N
liabilities (1,657) 1,806
Increase in restricted bank deposits PR B ERIT A FIE N (8,771) (1,665)
Cash generated from operations KEREMBERS 771,954 989,604
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19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER
CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued)

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities from financing
activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising
from financing activities are liabilities for which cash flows were, or
future cash flows will be, classified in the Group's consolidated cash flow

statement as cash flows from financing activities.

9BEERBEEEBEYUREME

(0 REEBELEMNEENYHIER

TRHAVNAEEREBMETHNEEED
(BHERSRIREEY) - REEDIE
ENBERRERESHARKRSRES
EDERRNEAEEFRERERERNIEKS
MEFEHNRERENAE -

Finance
Bank costs Lease
loans payable liabilities Total
BITEN EARERES HEER @t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR AR®TR AR®TR AR%¥Tx

note 24 note 22
Hiat24 MizE22

At 1 January 2022 #2022%1 818 - - 1,504791 1,504,791
Changes from financing cash flows: MERSRESY
Proceeds from bank loans RITE RS E 60,000 - - 60,000
Repayment of bank loans BEBITER (30,000) - - (30,000)
Interest of bank loans paid BERRITERFE - (809) = (809)
Payment of capital element and interest HEBBERSH K

element of lease liabilities FEBAARK - - (441,384) (441,384)
Payment for acquisition of non-controlling Ehg: )=o)

interests of subsidiaries FErE R 2 R = = - -
Total changes from financing cash flows MER SR ELHEE 30,000 (809) (441,384) (412,193)
Other changes: Rt 25 :
Interest expenses (note 5(a)) FIS X (fEEs() - 809 78,663 79,472
COVID-19-related rent concessions received BIE019B R B SR

(note 11(b)) 1R SR (FfE11(0) - - (4,109) (4,109)
Addition NE - - 521,287 521,287
Disposal & - - (8,897) (8,897)
Total other changes Hith S8 - 809 586,944 587,753
At 31 December 2022 2022F12H31H 30,000 - 1,650,351 1,680,351
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R B RAR MR

(Fxpressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B8 5= B &85 + AA REZTR)

CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued)

(continued)

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:

19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER

WRERBSEEBYUAREME

EREER &)

(c) REEBELEMNEGNHEE : (8)

Consideration

payable for
acquisition
Finance of non-
costs  controlling Lease
Bank loans payable interests liabilities Total
B
FEER
et R
RITER  MERE ENRE HEEE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTE ARETT ARETT ARETRT ARETR
note 24 note 22
fF24 LGPV
At 1 January 2021 R2021F1 818 42,950 - 1,500 1,284,182 1328632
Changes from financing cash flows: MERSRESLE
pl I AR /= 155 £h
Repayment of bank loans BERTER (42,950) - - - (42,950)
Interest of bank loans paid BRBTERFS = (537) = = (537)
Payment of capital element and interest HEAREARHD R

element of lease liabilities FEBA IR = = = (387,371) (387,371)
Payment for acquisition of non-controlling  YtEE NI B A Al M FEERR

interests of subsidiaries R - - (301,500) - (301,500)
Total changes from financing cash flows HERSNELHEHE (42,950) (537) (301,500) (387,371) (732,358)
Other changes: Hit2 s
Interest expenses (note 5(a)) FIEFL (PH3ES@) - 537 - 73,402 73,939
COVID-19-related rent concessions received 2 ME2019EMRBER

(note 11(b)) ERESEE (b)) - - - (4,305) (4,305)
Acquisition of non-controlling interests Wb AR R s (FIEE27(C)(vil))

(note 27(c)(vii)) - - 300,000 - 300,000
Addition NE - - - 584,542 584,542
Disposal e - - - (45,659) (45,659)
Total other changes Hin@g)as - 537 300,000 607,980 908,517
At 31 December 2021 R20215128318 - - - 1,504,791 1,504,791
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19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER

CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued) EREER &)

(d) Total cash out flow for leases:

(d) HENRERHAE :

WRERBSEBYUAREME

2022 2021
2022%F 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T AREFIT
Within operating cash flows RELEREREN 87,357 99,845
Within investing cash flows RIEEREREN 10,259 23,597
Within financing cash flows KBRS REN 441,384 387,371
539,000 510,813

These amounts relate to the following: I ESRETIARE ¢
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T AREEF T
Lease rentals settled BENHEERS 532,850 491,521

COVID-19-related rent concession received B UE 201 9T AR RS TR

MRS R R (4,109) (4,305)
Purchase of leasehold land BEEELTH 10,259 23,597
539,000 510,813
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20 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

20 BEF REMENRE

2022 2021
202245 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T R ARETT

Trade payables Z S RIE 188,247 141,207
Other payables and accrued charges Hih RN FRIBEREGER 231,938 212,267
Amounts due to related parties (note 30(c)) JE 1~ B8 5 IR (M9 5E30(0)) 36,282 12,461
Dividends payable FEFIAR B 3,897 3,795

460,364 369,730

All trade and other payables (including amounts due to related parties)

are expected to be settled or recognised as income within one year or

are repayable on demand.

As at the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade

payables, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

B E 5 N E RN RIE (BRI B
FOR) BHMR —F RSB LR KL

BREREER -

RBEEHR  REZZEAHZINEZE
FRIBOREDHTAT

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T R AR¥ETT

Within 1 year

=

—5FR

188,247 141,207
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21 CONTRACT LIABILITIES 21 BHER
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T R ARETT

Customer loyalty scheme (note) AR BT 8 (FEE) 3,186 4,891

Advanced payment received B E R 1,028 980

4,214 5,871

Note: The estimated loyalty points which can be used in future consumptions in Mk - RBEHR  BRABEMELENATA

the restaurants arising from the customer loyalty scheme at the end of the RAREREHENMGTSNE - RO
reporting period represented the transaction price allocated to unsatisfied REITRAEBHIRHER -

performance obligation.

Movements in contract liabilities: ABHEENES
Contract
liabilities
EHEE
RMB'000
AREFTT
Balance at 1 January 2021 202191 A1 BB &R 4,065
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of HAFEAERBRAMESENEBERLD
recognising revenue during the year (4,306)
Increase in contract liabilities BHEEEM 6,112
Balance at 31 December 2021 M20214F12 A31 &4 5,871
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of EFANERBAMEREHEERD
recognising revenue during the year (5,871)
Increase in contract liabilities BRI EEM 4,214
Balance at 31 December 2022 R2022412 A31 HAE 464 4,214
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22 LEASE LIABILITIES 22 HEAR
The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities of the THREIRHEMRAEEHE B FENH
Group's lease liabilities at the end of the reporting period: TEAEIEA -
2022 2021
20224 20214F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TT AR¥ETT

Within 1 year —FR 453,647 401,102
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFA 386,541 369,946
After 2 years but within 5 years MERERFA 777,442 704,712
After 5 years hFE 245,138 226,654
1,862,768 1,702,414
Less: total future interest expenses W RRF B BEE 212,417 197,623
Present value of lease liabilities HEAREE 1,650,351 1,504,791
Lease liabilities included in the consolidated FTAGETBRARNEEAE
statement of financial position
— Within 1 year ——FR 442,913 390,685
— After 1 year but within 2 years — —FHREREA 360,040 343,083
— After 2 years but within 5 years — MEREIFA 665,018 601,411
— After 5 years — AF# 182,380 169,612
1,207,438 1,114,106
1,650,351 1,504,791
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23 PROVISIONS 23 #1E

2022 2021
20225 20214F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET T AREFT
Provisions for restoration costs 1EE KA 37,949 31,645

The movements of provisions during the year were as follows: RERBEZLEOT
2022 2021
20225 20214F
RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR¥T R ARETT

Balance at 1 January ®1 A1 BeEEE 31,645 27,050
Additional provisions AN 6,308 5,597
Interest on provisions BT S 1,638 1,368
Provisions utilised BB AR (1,420) (2,370)
Disposal of a non-wholly owned subsidiary HE—fE2ENRB AR (222) -
Balance at 31 December M12 A31 BR &R 37,949 31,645

Pursuant to the terms of the respective tenancy agreements entered
into by the Group, the Group is required to return its leased properties
to the conditions as stipulated in the tenancy agreements at the
expiration of the corresponding lease term as appropriate. The provision
for reinstatement costs was estimated based on certain assumptions
and estimates made by the Group's management with reference to
historical reinstatement costs and/or other available market information.
The estimation basis is reviewed on an ongoing basis and revised where

appropriate.
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24 BANK LOANS

The analysis of the repayment schedule of bank loans is as follows:

24 SRITER
BATRRESEEANNT -

2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARBET T

Within one year or on demand R—FEARNERIIRERER
— unsecured and unguaranteed — IR R AR 30,000 -
30,000 -

All of the Group's banking facilities are subject to the fulfilment of
covenants relating to certain of the Group’s balance sheet ratios, as are
commonly found in lending arrangements with financial institutions.
If the Group were to breach the covenants the drawn down facilities
would become payable on demand. The Group regularly monitors
its compliance with these covenants. Further details of the Group's
management of liquidity risk are set out in note 28(b). As at 31
December 2022, none of the covenants relating to drawn down facilities
had been breached (2021: Nil).

REBEWMARTHENARTEASE
ETEEBERELEEENZLY  H B
RAOBRNESRBEIT LHERTH -
AR EERRZY - BIREHNBE AR
BRI  AEBTEHERZEZNNE
REN BAAEEERRDESRARA
#— S RBEIN R FE28(b) © R2022%F 12
A3 BEERERCIRREENHZLY
(20214F : £&) o
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25INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 25 &8 BERARNEFER
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(@) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of financial (a) GREFFAM R RWENERHES

position represents:

2022 2021
20225 20214F
RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR®T R ARBET T

At 1 January ®1A1H 33,322 37,165
Provisions for PRC income tax B ATIS B R 70,712 128,802
Provisions for income tax of other jurisdictions FE M RERE R B TS BB 1,307 1,157
Over-provision in respect of prior years WA FERBEREE (156) (376)
Income tax paid BRAEH (87,718) (133,426)
At 31 December M12A31H8 17,467 33,322
Representing: Bl :
Current tax payables FETBNERBE1E 17,467 38,259
Prepaid current tax under trade and other B 5 R EAEWIE T &
receivables TR BN ERRR IE = (4,937)
17,467 33,322
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4 A
b2 0 =]

BA SRR FTRE

(Fxpressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B8 5= B &85 + AA REZTR)

25 GRE MR R ROFTEH (&)

IN THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised

(i)

Movement of each component of deferred tax assets and

liabilities

The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position and the movements

(b) ERRELEHRBEERAE
EEBEEEREBESHINE

(i)

B

REFEBAMBRNENERRE
ERE (AE),/ BESH REHEN

during the year are as follows: e
Fair value Fair value
adjustment  adjustment
Deferred tax (assets)/ EEHE(EE)/ Unused tax Lease  Impairment from business ~from financial
liabiltes arising from: BEEER: losses  expenses losses acquisition assets Others Total
REEH RESR
ABA WEH BEN
bl HERY REFE ATERE  ATERE A &3t
RMBI000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB1000 RMB000 RMB000
ARBTT  ARETRT ARBTR  ARETT ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
At31 Decernber 2020 and T January 2001 120008128318 &
%A1 (44.326) (30,025) (6,144) 1777 1300 (6,258) (83676)
Charged!credited) to proftor loss Rt AEINE 8900 (6874 (104 (349) - 3530 4184
Credited to reserves BN - = = - 4504 - 44504
Exchange adjustments B AR - 2 - (29) = = (27)
At31 December 2001 R0 128318 B4 G687 (7168 1,400 45,804 Rns (E509)
(Creclitec)/charged to profit or loss (;1A) B/ BlEas (21,857) (6,476) (2,637) (349) - (1,83) (33,142)
Charge to reserves BRI - - - - (39,336) - (39,336)
Bxchange adjustments E - () - 76 - - 3
At 31 December 2022 RunE1A318 (57,283) (43,376) (9,805) 1127 6,468 (4,551) (107,420)
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25INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 25 &Z8HBRARVAEH 2

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised (continued) (b) EREARELEREEERERE (&)
(i) Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of financial (i) FREPIARRKE IR
position
2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET AREBT T
Net deferred tax asset recognised in the iR a MR R R
consolidated statements of financial EERIA A EFAE
position (115,015) (82,219)
Net deferred tax liability recognised in the iR e MR R ERH
consolidated statement of financial EERIR A EFRE
position 7,595 47,204
(107,420) (35,015)
(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised () RERELEMIEEE

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(s), the Group
has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses
of RMB26,283,000 (2021: RMB46,300,000) and temporary differences of
RMB11,018,000 (2021: RMB3,889,000) of certain subsidiaries located in
the PRC, respectively, as it is not probable that future taxable profits
against which the losses or temporary differences can be utilised will be

available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity.
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25INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

(0)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
Deferred tax assets not recognised (Continued)

The expiration information of the Group's unrecognised deferred tax

assets in respect of cumulative tax losses is set out below:

25 GRE MR R ROFTEH (&)

() RERELERIBEE (&

REE AR R HIAE R RFERRELEN
HEEMZHENEIIMT

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBFT ARBTT

2022 20224 - 1,789
2023 20234 2,730 8,103
2024 20244 2,412 6,051
2026 2026 5,106 19,557
2027 20274 11,556 -
2028 20284 4,479 10,800
Total #ast 26,283 46,300

All the tax losses of subsidiaries of the Group in PRC can be carried
forward for a maximum period of five years. Pursuant to the Notice
No. 8 issued by the Ministry of Finance and the State Administration
of Taxation of the PRC on 6 February 2020, the maximum carried
forward period of the tax losses affected by COVID-19 in certain difficult
industries, such as catering industry, is extended from five years to eight

years.

NEBRFENH B R RRETAHEERE
BB RAF - REFBEG BB RE
R E BN 202052 A6 H BRI E5RRE
WMo ETRERNERNTE (PINERE) X
2019 MR Z R Z Ao B IBEEIER
BREAEPHAATERE/N\F -
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25INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

(d)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

According to the CIT Law and its implementation rules, dividends
receivable by non-PRC corporate residents from PRC enterprises are
subject to withholding income tax at 10%, unless reduced by tax treaties

or arrangements, for profits earned since 1 January 2008.

As at 31 December 2022, deferred tax liabilities in respect of the
dividend withholding tax relating to the distributable profits of the
Company's subsidiaries were not recognised as the Company controls
the dividend policy of the subsidiaries. Based on the assessment
made by management as at 31 December 2022, it was determined
that the distributable profits of the Company’s subsidiaries would not
be distributed to the Hong Kong and overseas holding companies
in the foreseeable future. The amounts of undistributed profit of the

Company's subsidiaries are set out below:

25 GRE MR R RO EH (&)

(d) RERELEHRERB

BEBEEMEREREEREN - PR
FEIREE 2008 1 A1 BEBREA M T
FRBECEERR  BRIFEMBEHESL
PR - IEP B E R R EWAR B 10%

PR TBINFSH -

2022512 A31 8 + BEAESEE AR QR B
NEIE A 2K F) A B e iR R TR LR R
BEEFREERE  RRABAARZHMEA
AR EE - REBEREMN2022F 1248
31 BEH MRS - EEEAQRMNE AR
BRI DR & TR A RRRTE DR TEA
RBIMERRAR] - AABIMBARNKXD

RN SREFIAT -

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBFT

Distributable profits earned by PRC subsidiaries P B Fff A B1R 200841 A1 H Bk
on or after 1 January 2008 2 18 BREXAY AT 4t 5 I V4 ) 679,894 598,776
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26 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group has the following

share-based payment arrangements:

Restricted Stock Units Scheme

The Group’s ultimate controlling party, Mr. Guan, operates a share-
based incentive scheme (the “RSUs Scheme”) under which the restricted
stock units (“RSUs") of Guangzhou Jiumaojiu will be granted as share
incentives to qualified directors and employees of Guangzhou Jiumaojiu
and its subsidiaries through an employee shareholding platform (the
“RSU platform”), Guangzhou Maixuan Investment Center (Limited
Partnership), which was a shareholder of Guangzhou Jiumaojiu prior to
the Reorganisation. Pursuant to the relevant terms of the RSUs Scheme,
the RSUs have been converted into shares of a shareholder of the
Company upon the Reorganisation, which principal terms largely mirror
that of the RSUs Scheme.

The RSUs granted would vest on specific dates, on condition that
employees remain in service without any performance requirements.
Once the vesting conditions underlying the respective RSUs are met, the
RSUs are considered duly and validly issued to the holder, and free of

restrictions on transfer.

The total number of RSUs is on the assumption that the 1,000,000,000
shares (being the number of shares after the subdivision on 15 January
2020 of the Company had been issued throughout 2019 and before the
IPO on 15 January 2020).

26 IREREEURDAERNN
=h

FA

HE2002F12A318ILEE AEBHE
LATR BARRAD BB BEE N TR HE

3 BR&IAR 2 EE {51 &l

AEBHRKREH D ELREBRITROD BB
AE(TRRBIRMEMES ) - RIEZS
g BMAENNZREIRNELML ([ZER
B B ) SRBRERRTE ([XR
IR EMF A ) BMTERKRES O (B
Ra®) (BEABEMNEANBRR) KT
BMNENREMBARNEEREETR
BE - ERRMDEE - RIFZR I E
Rt EIMARBR IR - XRFIKOBEMLER
BEARBRARDBRRNEND  EX =2
R BUR B Z R I B 0 BB AL 5 Bl RO = 2

ER BRI ELHREE R B R
B RHREEDER  BUEEMKREA
B3R - — BB XM G R EAL AR R
BRI ER - IR IR BB AL BN AR A IE
ARBERETTHBEA - BABERERH) -

PR A% 17 B AL B BUA R R AR A1 2019
FRERR2020F1 A15BEXRAHABEER
BE/TR 2K B 4A1,000,000,000 8% (812020
F1A15BRMDDIFEMNRNDENE ) BEE o

ZZ - FFH ANNUAL REPORT 2022 » 209



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBIRARME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 B & BASN + AN R H517)

26 UESEEURGHBERNS

26 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(continued)
(a) Restricted Stock Units Scheme (continued)

During years ended 31 December 2014, 2015 and 2018, Mr. Guan had
granted RSUs to certain directors and employees of the Group under the
Scheme, which vest after five years from the date of grant. Movements in
RSUs granted to the Group's directors and employees and the respective

weighted-average grant date fair value are as follows:

(a)

(&)
ZIRGIR A BT E (&)

B E2014%F ~ 20155 % 2018512 A31 A1k
FE  BAEEBRETERNEAERETE
EREEROZRHKMNDELN HEFR
THHEhFERRE - A5SEEERIES
T 5 1) SZ2BR 51 AR 1 B8 1 K 4R B AN SF 1 3%
ERBAXNTENESHET

Weighted

average grant

Number of  date fair value
RSUs per RSU
BEZ RS KRG

SREKRG BUAMEFS
BEUHE RHBHAFE

RMB

AR

Outstanding as of 1 January 2021 BZ2021F1 A1 A REE 8,819,603 1.17

Vested during the year (note) FAREHB () (1,765,893) 1.17
Outstanding as of 31 December 2021 and BZ2021F128318 K

31 December 2022 2022F 12831 B REB 7,053,710 117

Note: On 31 March 2021 and 4 August 2021, Mr. Guan and two former employees
reached agreements that the former employees were entitled to the
granted RSUs without remaining in service due to the former employees’
contribution to the Group previously as the the former director of
engineering and operation manager, respectively, of Guangzhou Jiumaojiu.
Therefore, the total outstanding 1,765,893 RSUs held by the two former
employees were vested on the dates of the agreement. Accordingly, the
Group recognised related share-based compensation expenses immediately
after the above RSUs were vested.
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26 UEBEEURGRERNS

26 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(a)

(continued)
Restricted Stock Units Scheme (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recognised share-
based expenses of RMB852,000 (2021: RMB1,767,000).

At 31 December 2022, a total of 17 employees (2021: 17) of the Group
have been granted with a total of 7,053,710 RSUs (31 December 2021:
7,053,710 RSUs), and the outstanding number of RSUs that could
be granted under the Scheme was 6,218,254 (31 December 2021:
6,218,254).

At 31 December 2022 and 2021, the remaining vesting periods for RSUs

granted during the year ended 31 December 2018 are as follows:

(a)

(&)
ZIRGIR DB E (&)

REE2022F12A31BIEEE  AEERE
R G BEBRHFEZ AR®852,0007T
(20214 : AR¥51,767,0007T) ©

20226128318 - EB17EAKEES
(20214 : 17%8) BHRE 7,053, 710EX R
HIRX D AL (20214F12 H318 : 7,053,710
BRI BEA) - BREZET IR EA
SR AR 10 B BRI B = /56,218,254
(20214128318 : 6,218,2541#) °

M2022F K 2021F12 A31H » # & 20184
12A31BIEFEER L ZRH R M ELH
FIgrSFBEMOT -

Remaining vesting periods

FerEEH
2022 2021
2022 20214F
RSUs granted during the years ended BZE12A31AUEFEERHL
31 December: FZIRHRPEN -
2018 20184 0.4 years 1.4 years
0.4%F 145
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26 UESEEURGHBERNS

26 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(a)

(continued)
Restricted Stock Units Scheme (continued)

Share-based compensation expense relating to RSUs granted to directors
and employees is based on the grant date fair value of the RSUs and is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the entire vesting period. The
fair value of each RSU at the grant dates is determined by reference to
the fair value of the underlying ordinary shares of Guangzhou Jiumaojiu
on the date of grant. The grant date fair value of the underlying ordinary
shares was determined with the assistance of an independent third party
valuation firm, Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory
Limited, and discounted cash flow method under the income approach
was used. The discounted cash flow derived by management considered
Guangzhou Jiumaojiu's future business plan, specific business and
financial risks, the stage of development of Guangzhou Jiumaojiu's
operations and economic and competitive elements affecting

Guangzhou Jiumaojiu's business, industry and market.

RSUs were granted under a service condition. This condition has not
been taken into account in the grant date fair value measurement of the
services received. No dividends has been taken into account in the grant
date fair value measurement of the services received. There were no

market conditions associated with the RSUs.

Employees’ Share Option Scheme

The Company has a share option scheme which was adopted on 6
December 2019 whereby the directors of the Company are authorised,
at their discretion, to invite employees of the Group, including directors
of any company in the Group, to take up options at predetermined
consideration to subscribe for shares of the Company. The options vest
after one year from the date of grant and are then exercisable within a
period of two years. Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe

for one ordinary share in the Company and is settled gross in shares.
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26 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 26 UREHRLAEUROGEERNA

(continued) %k (%)
(b) Employees’ Share Option Scheme (continued) (b) IEEBIRETTE (&)

(i) The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows: (i) REMERRBARGENT -
Number Contractual
Tranche of options life of
Date of grant number granted Vesting period options
2Rl BN
s l=p & BREZE REH EHREH

Options granted to directors and key
management personnel:

BTEERFEEEAEN

R -
- on 29 October 2021 2021 T1 1,210,800  One year after the date of grant 3 years
— 72021510 A 29H 2021 FE—#t R BEBE—F 35

Options granted to other employees:

BT H RS MEAHE

- on 29 October 2021 2021 T2 2,547,500  One year after the date of grant 3 years

— F2021510H29H 20215F B 4t RHOBEMR—F 3F
Total share options granted 3,758,300

ERHEREAR

Number Contractual

Tranche of options life of

Date of grant number granted Vesting period options

e2&d BRER

R B HEB BREZE HREDH BREH

Options granted to directors and key
management personnel:

RTYTESKEFEEBEASR

BB AR -
- on 14 November 2022 2022 T1 1,655,000 One year after the date of grant 3 years
— p20225F 11 A14R 2022FF—Ht Xt REE—F 3F

Options granted to other employees:

BT K 18 B OB -

- on 14 November 2022 2022 T2 4,213,000 One year after the date of grant 3 years
— 1202211 A14H 2022FFE RHE#RER—F 36
Total share options granted 5,868,000

ERHBREAR

ZZ - FFW ANNUAL REPORT 2022 ¢ 213



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBIRARME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 B & BASN + AN R H517)

26 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 26
(continued)

(b) Employees’ Share Option Scheme (continued) (b)

(ii) The number and weighted average exercise prices of share
options are as follows:

DRESEEUAROGAERNN

(&)
EEBRETE (2)

(i) BREHE RNETHTEED
T

2022 2021
20224 20214

Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of
exercise price options exercise price options

InfEF1g T
TEE BREHA T8 FERESE

HKD HKD

BT BT
Outstanding at 1 January W1 A1 B EARITE 19.57 5,327,200 17.98 1,694,600
Granted during the year FABKEE 16.04 5,868,000 2024 3,758,300
Exercised during the year FABITHE 18.32 (802,100) = =
Forfeited during the year FAERK 18.46 (410,600) 17.98 (125,700)
Outstanding at 31 December 12 A31 B ERTE 17.64 9,982,500 19.57 5,327,200
Exercisable at 31 December R12A31 BA17{E 19.79 4,273,500 17.98 1,568,900
Non vested at 31 December W12 831 BREB 16.04 5,709,000 20.24 3,758,300

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for
shares options exercised during the year was HKD18.32 (2021: not
applicable).

The share options outstanding at 31 December 2022 had an
exercise price of HKD16.04, HKD20.24 or HKD17.98 (31 December
2021: HKD20.24 or HKD17.98) and a weighted-average remaining
contractual life of 2.3 years (31 December 2021: 2.5 years).

The Group recognised share option expenses of RMB12,881,000
during the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: RMB6,507,000).
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FABITEBRENTTE B B8 T
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26 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 26 UREHRLAEUROGEERNA

(continued)

(b) Employees’ Share Option Scheme (continued) (b) 1=

(i) Fair value of share options and assumptions:

The fair value of services received in return for the share options
granted is measured by reference to the fair value of share
options granted. The estimated fair value of the share options
granted is measured based on a binomial option pricing model.
The contractual life of the share options is used as an input into
this model. Expectations of early exercise are incorporated into
the binomial tree model. Set out below are the fair value of share

options and assumptions.

Fair value of share options and assumptions

= e
(&)

ERRETS (&)

(i) BREQFERRBRR

A& B RER S REN A FE
D2EEREBRENQIFEFE -
ERBBRENGETRFELRES
EAHREEREAE - BRENS
HWEMBELERENGARE - =27
TEHEHEMAZ ZHABER o
BREN A FERBRREIIAT

Tranche number

BREATERER HE &
2022 T1 2022 T2
2026 E—H  2022FFHt
Fair value at measurement date RerE2R 8 (AMEREBEH) &

(being the date of grant) (HKD) NFE (B T) 7,856,000 18,918,000
Share price (HKD) B (Bt) 16.04 16.04
Exercise price (HKD) 788 (BIT) 16.04 16.04
Expected volatility T8 B 08 38.12% 38.12%
Expected option life T8 &1 B AR 4 4 2R 3 years 3 years
Early exercise level FHITREAR S 2.8 2.2
Dividend yield % B = 0% 0%
Risk-free rate A28 [ B 1 2 4.0172% 4.0172%

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility (calculated
based on the weighted average remaining life of the share options),
adjusted for any expected changes to future volatility based on
publicly available information. Expected dividends are based
on historical dividends. The fair values calculated are inherently
subjective and uncertain due to the assumptions made and
limitations of the model used. Changes in the subjective input

assumptions could materially affect the fair value estimate.

TEHRO0E TOAR IR SRR iR (1RRE A MY
MEFARGFRAE) FHE - WIRE
R R AL 1S B BB R 2O 18 &9 fa] 78 23
HEFHELRE - BHERSTIREBEBE
B BEE - mRATIEE R RERAAE
REBRRE - tELHORTFE
FEBRANEIHERTEERE - =
Bl AR BE A S QA FEME
EREARTE
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26 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(continued)
(b) Employees’ Share Option Scheme (continued)
(i) Fair value of share options and assumptions: (continued)

Share options were granted under a service condition. This
condition has not been taken into account in the grant date fair
value measurement of the services received. Where share options
are forfeited due to a failure by the employee to satisfy the service
conditions, any expenses previously recognised in relation to such
share options are reversed effective the date of the forfeiture. There

were no market conditions associated with the share option grants.

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(@) Share capital

(i) Issued share capital

26 UEBREEURGARERNS

(&)
(b) EEBERESE (&)
(i) BREAFERERK : (&

B DR BIRIS R W - &R
WARFAFRBFRBRE L BHHRF
Bt E - WA RS BER T RIS &M
BYBRERR Y - EMBERILE
R IR R FE SR A B ST R U A 3 B 3B
Bl o B2 AR AR th IR M B 7 T 05 R

iHE =
27 EX > RERKRE
(@) BRA
() BEITRAE
2022
20224

Nominal value of Nominal value of

No. of shares fully paid shares fully paid shares
M BE

RHEE IR T B IR R E B
USD RMB equivalent

E ARMEE

Ordinary shares, issued and ERITRMEEBER

fully paid:
At 1 January 2022 7202241 818 1,453,410,000 145.34 985
Shares issued due to exercise H1T s AR T &

of Share Option Scheme at 1% 3 /%0.0000001 7T

USD0.0000001 each FATHR A (P RE27(a) (i)

(note 27(a)(ii)) 802,100 0.08 1
At 31 December 2022 7202212 A31H 1,454,212,100 145.42 986
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27 EX - FERRE (&)

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(@) Share capital (continued)

(i)

(i)

Issued share capital (continued)

The ordinary share of the Company has a par value of USD0.0000001

each.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share
at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with

regard to the Company'’s residual assets.

Shares issued due to exercise of Share Option Scheme

During the year ended 31 December 2022, share options were
exercised to subscribe for a total of 802,100 (2021: Nil) ordinary
shares in the Company at a consideration of HKD14,695,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB12,812,000), of which RMB0.6
and RMB15,598,000 were credited to share capital and the share
premium account respectively. RMB2,786,000 was transferred from

the share-based payments reserve to the share premium account.

(a) A (&)

(i)

(i)

SBRITIRA (&)

AR LB SIEEA0.00000013
7T|: o

ERBFAEAEREETEE KA R
B YEAREARRREG EUGKR—
ENHTARE - FEEBEBREA LA
MepBEETEZARFHAL -

B 1T R AR ET 81 3% 4T AR 4D

REBZE2022F12831BILEEE » B
B EITHE - AR (E 14,695,000
T (HHERHARE12,812,0007T) B
AN AT A $£802,100/% (20214 : #)
L@ HPARBo6TRARK
15,598,000 7T 7 Bl 5T AR AN J B 19 % B
iR o AR¥2,786,0007T F AR (D B EERE
W R R SR RER -
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27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued) 27 EX - HERRE (&)

(b) Movements in components of equity (b) REZMHE LI DRI ED
Details of the changes in the Company’s individual components of AR AVER A AR D B Z B e 15T
equity are set out below: mr
The Company /NI
Retained
Share-based Fair value profits/
Share Share payment Exchange reserve (non-  (Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve recycling) losses) Total
N
BEREN DYERE  REER/
Re  ROEE  fRERE EXRE  (TTRE) (RHER) st
Note RMB1000 RMB000 RMB1000 RMB000 RMB1000 RMB000 RMB1000

#iE  ARMTR  ARMTL ARETT ARBTR  AR%Tn  ARETR ARMTR

At 1 January 2021 R0NE1A1A I 2884558 9% (164332) - 30147 2758370
Profit for the year EEET - - - - - 3459 3459
Other comprehensive income Ep2 AN = - 4 (78226) (741) - (78967)
Fquity-settled share-based transactions NEREENRAAER
kS 2 - - 6,507 - - - 6507
Dividends declared in respect of BEEENEERRE
previous year = (48,734) = = = = (48734)

At31 December 2021 and 1 January 202 2001128318 R

WNE1RIA 1 2,835,824 7503 (242,558) (741) 40,606 2640635
Loss for the year EEEE - - - - - (65774 (65,774)
Other comprehensive income 2 AN - - - 17617 (8435) - 209,18
Fquity-settled share-based transactions NEREE R AER
KA 2% - - 12881 - - - 12881
Shares issued due to exercise of share RiTERRERETHRN
options 27(a)fii) < 15,598 (2786) - - - 12812
Share options forfeited during the year ERRRRNERE 2% = = 97) = = 97 =
Dividends declared in respect of BEFENEERRE
previous year 27(d) = (70968) = = = = (70968)
At 31 December 2022 R00%E 128318 1 2,780454 17,501 (4.941) (9,176) (2507) 2,758,768
*  The amount represents amount less than RMB1,000. * BESBEIRARKE1000T -
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27 EX - FERRE (&)

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(c) Nature and purposes of reserves

(i)

(i)

(iii

=

Capital reserve

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group disposed
20% and 0.1% equity interest of Xi Qin Catering to non-controlling
shareholders at consideration of RMB10,000 in aggregate and retain
79.9% equity interests after disposal. The capital reserve of the
Group as at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021 represented
the difference between the consideration obtained and the
disposed proportionate interests in identifiable net assets of the

above subsidiary.

Share premium

The share premium represents the difference between the par
value of the shares of the Company and proceeds received from the

issuance of the shares of the Company.

Under the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands, the funds in the
share premium account of the Company are distributable to the
equity shareholders of the Company provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as

they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Share-based payments reserve

The share-based payments reserve represents the portion of
the grant date fair value of RSUs and unexercised share options
granted to the directors and employees of the Group that has been
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy adopted for

share-based payments in note 1(r)(ii).

(0 RBENWEERAE

(i)

(i)

(iii)

BRFE
REZE2020F12A31BILEE » K&
ELARES £ ARBE10,0007T M IEFERR
B3R & TR AR B R 209 2 0.1% A% 4+ A
P ERIRE 79.9% M 72022412
A318 %2021F12 8318 » AEBH
BN E B BUS AE B S LA T
BRI FHBFEEMLflERE
HIZEE o

R AD = (E

A7 i 18 15 78 1% B A £ T (B 2 3 1T AR
DB D T UCER B P 1S 5R0R 2 TR R 2=
B o

RERASHEREE  ARRKRME
BRANESAI DK T AR ERR
R HENREREEZDIKEE B
% ARBEHANEFGIHRE - £
—REBKBIETEEES °

LURRAD R EHE BV SR E

D RERONRBEEERTAE
BESLEEBNZRHIBRNELRNE
HEBMAFENSBY RARITERK
& - EERIEPEE () (i) At 51 PA B £
RERONFTERA 2 RERRER ©
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27 EX - HERRE (&)

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(c) Nature and purposes of reserves (continued)

(iv) Statutory reserve

(vi

=

According to the PRC Company Law, the Company's PRC
subsidiaries are required to transfer 10% of their profit after taxation,
as determined under the PRC accounting regulations, to statutory
reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered
capital. For the purpose of calculating the transfer to reserve, the
profit after taxation shall be the amount determined based on the
statutory financial statements prepared in accordance with PRC
accounting standards. The transfer to this reserve must be made

before distribution of dividend to shareholders.

Statutory reserve fund can be used to cover previous years' losses,
if any, and may be converted into share capital by the issue of new
shares to shareholders in proportion to their existing shareholdings
or by increasing the par value of the shares currently held by them,
provided that the balance after such issue is not less than 25% of

the registered capital.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprise all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial information of

operations with functional currency other than RMB.

Fair value reserve (non-recycling)

The fair value reserve (non-recycling) include post-tax accumulated
gains or losses arising from the remeasurement of the unlisted

equity securities designated at FVOCI (non-recycling).
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27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)
(c) Nature and purposes of reserves (continued)
(vii) Acquisition of non-controlling interests

On 5 September 2021, the Group acquired additional 3% equity
interests in Tai Er Catering for RMB300,000,000 and held 88% equity
interests of Tai Er Catering in aggregate upon completion of the
acquisition. The carrying amount of Tai Er Catering’s net assets
on the date of the acquisition was RMB451,400,000. The Group
recognised a decrease in non-controlling interests of RMB13,542,000
and a decrease in retained earnings of RMB286,458,000.

27 B - HERRE (&)
() EENMERRBE (&)
(vii) Y B8 FE 42 IR A 2

R2021F9ASH  AEEUARE
300,000,000 T Y B K = B R AI3% RE
SNIRHE - B TR AT RBERZE
REV88% AXHE o K —E SR B Hi
RFEEREEAARKE451,400,000
T AEEBERIFERERRDAR
#13,542,0007C RAR B B AR D AR HE
286,458,0007T °

(d) Dividends d) igE
(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company () FRERARQBERRFIRNTH
attributable to the year BE
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T ARETIT
Final dividend proposed after the end of FEBREZZRORIPRE
the year of HKDO0.01 per ordinary share BARE@AR0.01ETT
(2021: HKD0.06 per ordinary share) (20216 : BREBAR0.0657TT) 12,795 70,968

12,795 70,968

Final dividend proposed after the end of the year have not been

recognised as liabilities as at the end of the year.

FEAREEZNRARENFRIL
RERBAE -
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27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued) 27 B - HERRE (&)
(d) Dividends (continued) d) RE (&)

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company (i) L—BBFERQAATERR

attributable to the previous financial year, approved and

RRANHWRE  ERNFRARER

paid during the year A
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Final dividend in respect of the previous Bl —BRFEERRGRE
financial year of HKD0.06 per ordinary BiRE@AR0.0678TT
share (2021: HKD0.02) (20214 : 0.02/87T) 70,968 24,367
No special dividend in respect of the WRBELE—BEREN
previous financial year per ordinary share BREBRERRE
(2021: HKD0.02) (20214 = 0.02/&7T) - 24,367
70,968 48,734

Dividends of RMB39,600,000 was declared by Tai Er Catering to
their non-controlling interest holders during the year. Dividend of
RMB12,000,000 were paid during the year and unpaid dividends of
RMB27,600,000 were accrued and presented in “Trade and other
payables”as at 31 December 2022.
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27 EX - FERRE (&)

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(e) Distributability of reserves

As at 31 December 2022, the aggregate amount of distributable
reserves of the Company, calculated in accordance with the Companies
Act of the Cayman Islands, amounted to RMB2,758,767,000 (2021:
RMB2,640,634,000).

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can
continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders, by pricing products and services commensurately with the

level of risk and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in economic

conditions.

The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged throughout the years
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021. The Group monitors its capital
structure with reference to its debt position. The Group's strategy is to
maintain the equity and debt in a balanced position and ensure there
are adequate working capital to service its debt obligations. The Group's
debt to asset ratio, being the Group's total liabilities over its total assets,
as at 31 December 2022 was 40.8% (31 December 2021: 38.9%).

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to externally

imposed capital requirements.

(e)

(f)

fit f5 ] 2 R E

2022128318 REFESHEAR
RIZESTEMARRAI D IRFEELEEAA
R#2,758,767,0007C (20214 : AR
2,640,634,0007T) °

BAREHE
AEEEEBEARNEEBBAREAR
SEENTHREE  BRRERRRS

B R FT A B L AR A M0 7K F R IR B B R
AEERE  EEEEESRRREHEDR
RREMFFDE RS o

AEBEEBEREERARERERLENE
B UHERSKRROR (TlsRsE
EKT) BEEEATRNEDL RREZ
RETE  TRELEBAAEHERSE
BIELRZE -

REZE2022F %2021F12A31HIEFE -
REBNERTBRIFTE - AEFE2R
HEKBRAERAERER AEBEAK
BERMFESEEEHTE  BRERH
EEESYNEBEBEME - R20225F12 A
318 - AEEMEBEEL X (AIAREEN
BABRINBEE) A40.8% (2021412 A31
H :389%) °

AR B R E AT KB ARG RN
HEIEYE AR E K o
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28 T ELE PR EE R A FE

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in the

normal course of the Group's business.

The Group's exposure to these risks and the financial risk management
policies and practices used by the Group to manage these risks are

described below.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its
contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to the Group. The
Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and other receivables.
The Group's exposure to credit risk arising from cash and cash
equivalents and restricted deposits is limited because the counterparties
are banks and financial institutions with high-credit-quality, for which
the Group considers to have low credit risk. The Group's exposure
to credit risk arising from refundable rental deposits is considered to
be low, taking into account (i) the landlords’ credit rating and (i) the

remaining lease term and the period covered by the rental deposits.

The Group's trade receivables in connection with bills settled through
payment platforms such as Unionpay, Alipay or WeChat Pay are with
high credit rating and no past due history. The management of the
Group considers these assets are short-term in nature and the probability
of default is negligible on the basis of high-credit-rating issuers during
the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, and accordingly, no
provision for impairment of trade receivables is considered necessary by

management for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5 % a2 BH5h

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

(a)

VALUES (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

We have concentration of credit risk on amounts due from related
parties as of each reporting period with details set out in note 30. Our
management has made periodic assessments as well as individual
assessment on recoverability based on historical settlement records and
adjusts for forward-looking information. In view of the strong financial
capability of these related parties and considered the future prospects
of the industry these related parties operate, our management does
not consider there is a risk of default and does not expect any losses
from non-performance by these related parties, and accordingly, no
impairment was recognised in respect of the amounts due from related

parties.

In determining the ECL for other receivables (excluding rental deposits
and amounts due from related parties), the management of the Group
has taken into account the historical default experience and forward-
looking information, as appropriate. The management of the Group has
assessed that other receivables have not had a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition and risk of default is insignificant, and
therefore, no provision for impairment of other receivables is considered
necessary by management for the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021.

The expected credit loss rate is insignificant and close to zero.

The Group does not provide any guarantee which would expose the

Group to credit risk.

Liquidity risk

In management of liquidity risk, the Group's policy is to regularly monitor
its liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending covenants,
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash, readily realisable
marketable securities and adequate committed lines of funding from
major financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short

and longer term.

R B RAR MR
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28 SHEREERAYE#®)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities at the
end of the reporting period of the Group's financial liabilities, which
are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contracted rates or, if floating, based on rates
current at the end of the reporting period) and the earliest date the

Group can be required to pay.

(b) RBEERR (&)

TRETAESESBRABRHRERNROFR
BRAEWIHA  UEHARTRRERE (B
REMRSHON RN (HEFEHX) RER
BERROE TR REFEO BN A

SE

INY

REAX VR A ER/REEE -

More than More than Carrying

Within 1yearbut 2 years but amount at

1 year or less than less than More than 31 December

on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total 2022

R2022%

1R 1EN0E 26N E 12A318H

REX (EPE B5FR SEUE Bzt BEHE

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRL ARBTR AR%TR AR®TR ARBTRT ARWT:R

Trade and other payables B 5 REMENTIE 460,364 - - - 460,364 460,364
Bank loans RITER 30,000 - - - 30,000 30,000
Lease liabilities HEaE 453,647 386,541 777,442 245138 1,862,768 1,650,351
944,011 386,541 777,442 245,138 2,353,132 2,140,715

More than More than Carrying

Within 1 year but 2 years but amount at

1 year or less than less than More than 31 December

on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total 2021

720215

1F R 1ELE 2N E 1243188

REX B2FR B5ERA SERE st FREE

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARET:T

Trade and other payables B 5 REMENTE 369,730 = - - 369,730 369,730
Lease liabilities HEaE 401,102 369,946 704,712 226,654 1702414 1,504,791
770,832 369,946 704,712 226,654 2,072,144 1,874,521
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(0)

VALUES (continued)

Interest rate risk

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R B RAR MR

(Fxpressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B8 5= B &85 + AA REZTR)

()

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from bank loans. Borrowings

issued at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.

The Group's interest rate profile as mentioned by management is set out

in (i) below.

(i) Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate profile of the Group's

borrowings at the end of the reporting period:

28 SHEREERAYE#®)

RSN
AEBOMERBREBRERITER ° A
TR ERBTHEREAEERER SR
EN KR o B E e M A & B H H
RSB T3L)

(i) FZ=ER

TR HFIR B 5 B A B 5 3 0
R,

2022 2021
20224 20215
Effective Effective
interest rates Amount interest rates Amount
BRI 6] EBRH = &8
% RMB’000 % RMB'00!
% AR¥TR % ARETT
Fixed rate borrowings: EEEW
Bank loans RITERK 2.7% - 3.6% 30,000 - =
Lease liabilities HEAE 2.69% - 8.52% 1,650,351 2.69% - 8.52% 1,504,791
Total borrowings BB 1,680,351 1,504,791
Fixed rate borrowings as a percentage &S EFXGE AL
of total borrowings ANt 100% 100%
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B BRI

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

()

(d)

VALUES (continued)
Interest rate risk (continued)
(i) Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2022, since all of borrowings are fixed rate interest-
bearing liabilities, individual companies within the Group were

exposed to limited interest rate risk.

Currency risk

As the Group's principal activities are carried out in the PRC, the Group's
transactions are mainly denominated in RMB, which is not freely
convertible into foreign currencies. All foreign exchange transactions
involving RMB must take place through the People’s Bank of China or
other institutions authorised to buy and sell foreign exchange. The
exchange rates adopted for the foreign exchange transactions are
the rates of exchange quoted by the People’'s Bank of China that are
determined largely by supply and demand.

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily from cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other receivables and trade and other payables
that are denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a currency other than the
functional currency of the operations to which the transactions relate.
The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily Renminbi (‘RMB") and
United States Dollars ("USD").
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28 SHEREERAYE#®)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

(i)

Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group's exposure at the end of

reporting period to currency risk arising from recognised assets

or liabilities denominated in a currency other than the functional

currency of the entity to which they relate. For presentation

purposes, the amounts of the exposure are shown in RMB

translated using the spot rate at the period end date. Differences

resulting from the translation of the financial statements of foreign

operations into the Group's presentation currency are excluded.

(d)

)

E¥mEk (&)

(i

B ER

TRFAJNAEBRN RS BRAAZIA
HHEERIEER NI EEFTENE
HREEXREMEENTERR -
REREHW  FAXEARNESHEDR
BEHEANNMERKRESAR
B ETBERGBINEBOMBRE
BESARBENZREMMELNE
L

Exposure to foreign currencies

NS TR B
(expressed in Renminbi)
(AARESITR)
2022
20226
United States
Renminbi Dollars
AR P
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARET T
Cash and cash equivalents RE MRS FEY 838,079 355,735
Trade and other receivables B 5 K CE e FRIA 733,537 2,766
Trade and other payables B 5 Rk E M5B (12,843) (2,330)
Gross and net exposure arising from ERREERAEDN
recognised assets and liabilities [2\ B 4B HE Ko SRR 1,558,773 356,171
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 2RiEKBETELRAYE &)
VALUES (continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued) (d) E¥ =B (&)
(i) Exposure to currency risk (continued) (i) E¥Ep (&)

Exposure to foreign currencies
SN [\ e
(expressed in Renminbi)

(AAR®FITR)

2021
20214F
United States
Renminbi Dollars
AR ET
RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBT T ARET T

Cash and cash equivalents ReERREEED 8,473 524,090
Trade and other receivables B 5 I o FE R IE 314,597 383
Trade and other payables B 5 I B FE A 50E (8,897) (17)
Gross and net exposure arising from BEEREERARD

recognised assets and liabilities [ fex 42 58 J2 5 58 314,173 524,456
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 2RERBETELRAYE &)
VALUES (continued)

(d) E¥ @k (&)
(i) BBEDH
TR RRERE AT A R b 2 B R 4%

(d) Currency risk (continued)
(i) Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the instantaneous change in the

Group's profit after tax and retained profits that would arise if
foreign exchange rates to which the Group has significant exposure
at the end of the reporting period had changed at that date,

assuming all other risk variables remained constant.

TE - RS H A B HARER K
EMRAEARBRNERLRES
7 5% B IR T 18 0 ) % AR BB i A AT B
BB o

2022 2021

20226 20214
Effect on Effect on
Increase in profit after Increase in profit after
foreign tax and foreign tax and
exchange rate retained profit exchange rate retained profit
HRHZENR HRTET K
Ext# RETNNE Ex A REBEEFNTE
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTFT
Renminbi AR 1% 15,597 1% 3,144
United States Dollars ETT 1% 3,565 1% 5,245

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table represent
an aggregation of the instantaneous effects on each of the Group
entities’ profit after tax measured in the respective functional
currencies, translated into Renminbi at the exchange rate ruling at

the end of the reporting period for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign
exchange rates had been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk at the end of the reporting period, including inter-
company payables and receivables within the Group which are
denominated in a currency other than the functional currencies
of the lender or the borrower. The analysis excludes differences
that would result from the translation of the financial statements
of foreign operations into the Group's presentation currency. The

analysis is performed on the same basis as 2021.

ERZINDTERTIRRE A EE
EERBOBRMREN REANIEER
BAtE U REJRMLBEHRNE
REXBESARE) &R A &R

I+ B 488
53720

BFREREINTBRIXEZTNEHE TR
B UBHAEZESAKRERTRE
H 2R T o 47N L e ) 7 62 [ P 455 2
THE  BFEAERAFERAND G
SEE I EBAENAEERNTA
A6 BRI R YR IR - Z AT T
BRERRABESIEBOMERRSHE
RAKREZIEEMIENER - &
DHTIREL2021 FHER K B AEHETT
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28 SHEREERAYE#®)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(e) Fair value measurement
(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group's financial
instruments measured at the end of the reporting period on a
recurring basis, categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in IFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level into which
a fair value measurement is classified is determined with reference
to the observability and significance of the inputs used in the

valuation technique as follows:

- Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1
inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for

identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date

- Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs
i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not using
significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are

inputs for which market data are not available.

- Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant

unobservable inputs
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 2RERBETELRAYE &)
VALUES (continued)

(e) Fair value measurement (continued) (e) DFEFTE (&)
(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (i) UAAFEFTENEHEERERE
(continued) (&)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) RFEZR &)
The following table presents the Group's financial assets that are TRINTAEEBRRERARERTE
measured at fair value at the end of the reporting date: FTENEREE :
Fair value at
31 December Fair value measurements as at
2022 31 December 2022 categorised into
020225
12A31H
HAFE M2022F 1231 AN AT EFESER
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
B -t 1 E=H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARETR AR®TR AR®BT=R

Recurring fair value measurement ~ ZREMAFEITE

Financial assets: ETHEE
Other non-current financial assets: HitJERBEpmERE
- Unlisted equity securities and —ELEMRAFSK

investments in limited partnership RBBEBEERNIRE

enterprises 83,610 - - 83,610
- Listed equity securities — L RAESH 11,410 11,410 = =
— Investments in funds —RESHIRE 58,844 - 58,844 -
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 SHEMREERATE®)
VALUES (continued)

(e) Fair value measurement (continued) (e) AFEFTE (&)
(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value i) ARAFEFENEHEEREGRE
(continued) (&)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) RFEEZER (&)
Fair value at
31 December Fair value measurements as at
2021 31 December 2021 categorised into
720215
12A31H
WATE R2021F 12 A3 BN A FEFENEA
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
FE— FK FE=M
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT AR®ETE

Recurring fair value measurement  EEMAFETE

Financial assets: EMEE
Other non-current financial assets: Hit3ERBEMERE
- Unlisted equity securities and — FEETREES K

investments in limited partnership RBERGELE

enterprises KR E 240,955 = = 240,955
- Listed equity securities — FRARES 18,473 18,473 - -
~ Investments in funds —RESHKRE 61,174 - 61,174 -
The listed equity securities are accounted for at fair value in level 1 EFTIRABSHEE —RAFEAR
and measured by referencing to the stock price. W ERETE -
During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, there were B E2022F &2021F12A8318B1EF
no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfer into or out of B E—REE_JEWEERE -
Level 3. MEBASBEHE=R
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28 SHEREERAYE#®)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(e) Fair value measurement (continued)

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
(continued)

Information about Level 2 fair value measurements

The Group held investments in funds operated by the fund
management companies. The investments are accounted for at
fair value in level 2. Since the units in the funds are redeemable at
the net asset value of the funds, fair value of such investments is

measured according to the net asset value as at 31 December 2022.

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

The Group invested in unlisted equities in several entities and

limited partnership enterprises as its strategic investments.

Fair value of each unlisted equity securities is determined by
the directors of the Company with reference to the valuation
performed, using the price-to-sales ratios of comparable listed
companies adjusted for lack of marketability discount if no market
information of recent transactions is available, such as recent fund-
raising transactions undertaken by the investees. Otherwise, the
costs are used as approximation of fair value if the initial investment
date is relatively close to the measurement date, or the investees
are start-up entities when there is no catalyst for a change in fair

value.

Fair value of each limited partnership enterprises is measured by
referencing to the latest investment transactions. Otherwise, the
costs are used as approximation of fair value if there is no significant

change observed.

(e) DVEFTE (&)

(i)

UAFEAENSREERAR

(%)
BEHE-—RLFEAEHNEHR

AEEREH RESEEARLE
MESHRE ZEREEBRE-_LARQ
TFEAR BRESBEMIRESH
BEFEER  ARHZFRENDTF
Ei%20225F12 A3 BB EFENE -

BEHE=RLFESEHNEHR

AEERENRETERRERARD
KM EMBRRIESHERKIRE -

B LTRABLFOAFEDEAR
AEF2EZEAUELR LT AR
EREHEELXETOHEMEE
W R = THI5 R BT R A T R (fi
WL MR 55 ER - HlHRE
BRAETNINEERS) - BAl
EVIRIRE A RS 8 A BAE I
MIBERT AR ERARBTEIER
BEEATFESSELCHOBERLT
ERARAER A FERNIUE -

BEERAEBEENDRFENZERE
HIRERZEE - B8 - W= RER
EXREE - RAEAKAESRFER
ATPE -

ZZ - FFW ANNUAL REPORT 2022 e 235



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=
ma

BARS SRR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (& 5 B & BASN + AN R H517)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES (continued)

(e) Fair value measurement (continued)

(i)

(e) DFEFTE (&)
UAFEAENSREERAR

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (i)

(continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

(continued)

The movement during the period in the balance of Level 3 fair

value measurements is as follows:

(%)

28 SHEREERAYE#®)

BEHFE=RAFHEHTEHEH

(&

BAE=RATHENBLEBHZ DL

T @

At 31 December

At 31 December

2022 2021
20225 720214
12A31H 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARET T
Unlisted equity securities and investments in FELETMRABSHRRER
limited partnership enterprises: ARLENRE :
At 1 January M1 A1H 240,955 68,338
Additional investments in limited REREBEENTEINEE
partnership enterprises - 29,000
Additional unlisted equity securities acquired WHERAINIE E TR A FE 55 - 5,000
Disposal of investments in limited HEREBREZEENKRE
partnership enterprises - (39,399)
Net unrealised gains recognised in other TP HE M 2 E W FERR Y
comprehensive income during the year RER U E 558 (157,345) 178,016
At 31 December M12H31H8 83,610 240,955
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28 SHEREERAYE#®)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(e) Fair value measurement (continued)

(i)

(i)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

(continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements
(continued)

Any gains or losses arising from the remeasurement of the Group's
unlisted equity securities held for strategic purposes are recognised
in the fair value reserve (non-recycling) in other comprehensive
income. Upon disposal of the equity securities, the amount
accumulated in other comprehensive income is transferred directly

to retained earnings.

Any gains or losses arising from the remeasurement of the Group's
investment in limited partnership enterprises held for strategic

purposes are recognised in the profit or loss.

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities carried at other
than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial instruments carried at
amortised cost are not materially different from their fair values as at
31 December 2022 and 2021 because of the short-term maturities

of all these financial instruments.

(e) DVEFTE (&)

(i)

UAFEAENSREERAR
(%)
EHFE=RAFHEHTEHEH

(&

EMEAEBRE BN EH
FE b BN 58 25 BT EE AR VAR AT I s B
BENEMEAKREER/RFER
B (TAEm) - HERAZERR - R
H2mEaE Rt EeReERER

EREERN -

ENFEAKRENFERBAZENE
RA % DEIRE PTE SN ERKRE
S EIENE R R o

FEAFEIENEMEERE
BENATE
HRFEZEcRIANIHAR
5 MRS BRI AT R &
TEREBEER2022%F 2021412 A
NNEMATELESAER o
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29 COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments of the Group outstanding at 31 December 2022

not provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

29 FRiE

R2022%F 128318 MABITEIL REET
BHREAEHBENREBAE AN EED

I
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARET T
Contracted for acquisition of property, plant and BEIRBEME  WE X
equipment and right-of-use assets REBAREREEE 401,488 419,192
Authorised but not contracted for acquisition of LHOEBE®ARFTOBEME
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use B REREBARGERAEEE
assets 1,072 5,979
Total #Et 402,560 425,171
30 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 30 BB LIRS

In addition to the related party information disclosed elsewhere in the
financial statements, the Group entered into the following material

related party transactions.

(@) Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, including
amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in note 7 and
certain of the highest paid employees as disclosed in note 8, is as

follows.

BMEHmREMBORENEY T EH
G REBEEFIMIATERMB SRS -

(a) TEEIE A S
AEBETEZEEASNHTH (2IEHE7AT
WERANAFEESTMASEE L8 AT
EmaTeeaTMEESXNNESE) @T -

2022 2021

20224 20214F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT T ARET T

Salaries, wages and other benefits e TEREMER 6,640 6,740

Contributions to defined contribution retirement plan & &8 HFUE KT 2R 157 150
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses AR S E AR (D AETER

NG 4,604 3,475

11,401 10,365

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note 5(b)).
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 &7 885) » U EEZITR)

(continued)

Related parties transactions

During the year, the Group entered into the following material related

party transactions:

(b) BB AR5

30 EREHARS (&)

RER » REBETATERBEIRS

2022 2021
20225 20214F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETT
Acquisition of non-controlling interests from a MR E — B E B
non-controlling interest holder controlled by FEPE R T A AUHE
a director of the Group (note 27(c)(vii)) FEFERR AR (B RE27(c) (vii)) = 300,000
Sales of materials to a fellow subsidiary M —ER R B AR SEEME - 1,350
Provision of services to a fellow subsidiary EEES ) =PNSIDSE NG
and associates REARTS 225 153
Advances to associates A Gk A A BAR 17,650 24,900
Loans to associates ERTHE QT 49,950 .
Interest income from associates R EHE A TR B U A 1,173 -
Purchase of materials from associates MmEE & A REE MR 132,845 156,221
Variable lease payments to Mr. Guan (note (i) MESREI MR EHEERNR
(MHEEG)) 870 977
Dividends approved to a non-controlling interest MALE —ZESEHIN
holder controlled by a director of the Group IEIERERFFE ASDERRE 39,600 =

Note:

BT -

(i)  During the years ended 2022 and 2021, the Group entered into several lease 0]
contracts in respect of certain leasehold properties from Mr. Guan under
variable lease payment terms. The amount of rent payable by the Group
under the lease is based on sales generated from the restaurants. All of the
above lease payment amounts was determined with reference to amounts

charged by Mr. Guan to third parties.

HE202F R2021FIEFE - AEEIREA

BHE N R RE
XU ETHERL
WS SENREERE

EREMETHEHEY
AEEREEERN
ELERHERFE

L AEENRERN2EERERF=

77 WER ) SRR
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30 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)
(c) Balance with related parties

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had the following balances with

related parties:

Amounts due from related parties

30 EREHARS (&)

() EREFHETS RUASER

R2022%12 8318 AREBE LM S AL
TR

FEUR B8 B 5 FRIE
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TT AR¥ETT

Loans to associates (notes (i)(ii)) ERFEE AR (FREa i) 49,950 =
Amounts due from an associate R —RIHE & R B FRIE 1,236 =
Advances to associates (notes (ii)(iii)) B N =) 2R (BEEEG) Gii)) 89,170 71,520

140,356 71,520
Notes: BiaE -

(i)  The loans to the associate bear interest at 5% per annum and are included in
“Trade and other receivables” (note 18) and “Other non-current assets” (note
16).

(i)  The advances to the associates are interest-free and are included in “Trade
and other receivables” (note 18) and “"Other non-current assets” (note 16).

(iii)  The loans and advances to the associate are not considered individually
impaired, and the ECL assessment in respect of these advances and loans is
performed on collective basis.

240 e JIUMAOJIU INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED N ENEFRZEARBR A A

() [EEE R ERMHEFIZEME5%TE
Wt A8 5 R H A U sRIE | (HfaE18) &
[EA3EREEE | (FHFE16)

(i) MEEQARRENBREEELAREIE
SR E M EUERIE | (ME18) R HEMIER
FEE | (FIE16) ©

(iif) [ B X BB AL O B R e B R AR AR A L
BE - MABZEERRBRNEREEE
BEHA YIRS AT -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 A
b2 0 =]

BARS AR MYt

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B 5 &7 885) » U EEZITR)

30 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(0)

(continued)
Balance with related parties (continued)

Amounts due to related parties

30 EREHARS (&)

() ERERHETS MVASER (&)
FEAS BARE 75 =R IR

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T AREBTT
Trade and other payables B 5 I B FE A 50E

- an associate VNGl 8,486 12,185
~ ultimate controlling shareholder — BAIEIRARER 196 276

- a non-controlling interest holder controlled — AEE-—BESTHN
by a director of the Group R IR FEE A 27,600 =
36,282 12,461

The balances with these related parties are unsecured, interest-free and

have no fixed repayment terms.

Save for above related party transactions and the connected transactions
as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions” in this
annual report, there were no transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party and in which a director and/or any of his/her connected entity
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, and there was
no transaction, arrangement or contract of significance between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and the Company’s controlling
shareholders or any of its subsidiaries, subsisted at the end of, or at any
time during the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: nil).

d) RAFRIBERS | —HHFEH Ll #
BMARGRBAERZIN  REZE2022F
12 A31 B 1 4F [ 45 3R B o L EA ) 4 (] 5
A - BEETFEAR A S EEMKTERA R A
Az — MESR SEEMABEE
BRETPEESHERAEAEENER
X5 RHHER  TEFEHARFL
] BB A Al B AN A AIE AR AR SR sk H
MHBRRGIIHMEARS « REHELD
(20214F : 48) o
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31 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 31 A B @ | M AR R &

POSITION
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
720225 R20214%
12A31H 124318
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Htat AR¥T ARBTFIT
Non-current assets REBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—HERBARMKE
— Investment in a subsidiary — R—ERBARRIRE 20,383 7,503
— Amount due from a subsidiary — FEU— T B A R FRIE 91,227
Property, plant and equipment YE - BB R 7
Right-of-use assets EREEE = 150
Rental deposits HERS 31 27
Amount due from subsidiaries FEUS BB N B FIB 1,020,057 =
Other non-current financial assets HtIERBemEE 70,255 79,647
1,110,731 178,561
Current assets REEE
Other receivables H e GRIE 12,243 2,787
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUHT B A BIZIE 17,367 611,775
Deposits with banks with original maturity [REEA B A8 =8 A IRTTIE R
date over three months 840,750 735,840
Cash and cash equivalents RekREEEY 811,985 1,141,312
1,682,345 2,491,714
Current liabilities RBAE
Other payables H b FESTFRIE 34,308 29,486
Lease liabilities HESE - 154
34,308 29,640
Net current assets REBEEFE 1,648,037 2,462,074
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBAR 2,758,768 2,640,635
NET ASSETS EEFE 2,758,768 2,640,635
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BERRHE
Share capital %N 27(a) 1 1
Reserves f# 2,758,767 2,640,634
TOTAL EQUITY RSB 2,758,768 2,640,635
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32 NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE 32 Si&HEMNIERARERSEE
REPORTING PERIOD

After the end of the reporting period, the directors proposed a final WERE  EFERARNARE - E—F
dividend. Further details are disclosed in note 27(d). BRI E27(d) 5 -

33 IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING I3 EERRRERE
PARTY

As at the date of this report, the Directors consider the immediate RAREEH  EERANEENEES
parent of the Group to be GYH J Limited, which is incorporated in the NAIRERBERRASTEMAKZAIGYH J
BVI, and the ultimate controlling party of the Company to be Mr. Guan. Limited * RAR BB EARIERR T BB AL ©
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34 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 34 B AEM{E N ARK2022F12 8

NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS 3MAHZERBABNETFEE
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE MEVERT A ~ M EAI KRR
ACCOUNTING YEAR BEGINNING ON OR AFTER WA REE

31 DECEMBER 2022

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the IASB has issued HEAMBHRETIZEAE - HEe%ER8
a number of new or amended standards, which are not yet effective for BESDB/M LA SIS FTER] (RE
the year ended 31 December 2022 and which have not been adopted ZF2022F 12 A3 BIEFERARER - B
in these financial statements. These developments include the following RERF MR P IRN) - BEAFETREE
which may be relevant to the Group. IR BIELA T AT AL B AN B ABRE & o

Effective for
accounting periods

beginning on or after

RTSBE#HR2%
RN ESTHEEN
IFRS 17, Insurance contracts RIS ERISE 1758 - REE A AT 1 January 2023
2023F1 A1 H
Amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of financial BT 2ER|F 1 SRIERTA © FIFHREK A 1 January 2023
statements: Classification of liabilities as current 23 : BEESE BB IETE 20231 A1H
or non-current
Amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of financial R RSB SRISETAS 1 January 2023
statements and IFRS Practice Statement 2, I #7219 2 31| K B R 1 7% e 5 2E Rl 20231 18
Making materiality judgements: Disclosure of EEMEE2 - (EHEXH G -
accounting policies BETIR AR
Amendments to IAS 8, Accounting policies, R @t ERIEFISEI AN » BFFHE 1 January 2023
changes in accounting estimates and errors: BEEE BB R IR - BEHEATET 20231 A1H
Definition of accounting estimates TE
Amendments to IAS 12, Income taxes: Deferred BFR 2 ERE 125ERT AN - AT7HE - 1 January 2023
tax related to assets and liabilities arising from HE—XZEFNEERBERBL 20231 818
a single transaction BEEIE
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the RNEB AR EZ SRR RE T ERR
impact of these developments is expected to be in the period of initial BERERBREHELENTE - 295
application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely IF - REBE ERAZ ST BT &
to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements. RPN KAI R e MR EREATE -
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